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ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Good nor ni ng,
everyone.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Good nor ni ng.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Good nor ni ng.

My nanme is Andrew Hevesi. [|'mthe
chair of the New York State Assenbly Children
and Famlies Commttee. | amfilling in for
Ways and Means Chair Hel ene Wi nstein as
cochair of today's hearing. Chair Winstein
is recovering fromknee surgery and i s hoping
to join us for next week's hearings.

Today we begin the sixth in a series
of hearings conducted by the joint fiscal
commttees of the Legislature regarding the
Governor's proposed budget for the fiscal
2024- 2025 year. The hearings are conducted
pursuant to the New York State Constitution
and the Legislative Law.

Today the Assenbly Ways and Means
Comm ttee and the Senate Finance Conmttee
wi |l hear testinony concerning the Governor's
budget proposal for human services.

| want to tell you it's an honor to be

here with nmy cochair, Senator Krueger. And |
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will now start by introducing participating
menbers fromthe Assenbly, and after that
Senat or Krueger will introduce nenbers from
t he Senate.

I n addi tion, Ranking Ways and Means
Menber Ra will introduce nmenbers fromhis
conf erence.

Fromthe majority conference, we have
with us Chair Davila and Chair Kim And we
al so have Assenbl ynenbers Tapia, Darling,
Bur di ck, Jones and M taynes.

Senat e, pl ease.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Good norni ng, everyone.

And |'m delighted to be joined by
Senat ors Persaud, Liu, Brisport and, since
Senator O Mara will be a little late, we are
al so joined by his nenbers Senator Mirray,
Senat or Rol i son, and Senator Ashby.

And Senator Cleare. ay, thank you

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: G eat.

Assenbl yman Ra?

ASSEMBLYMAN RA: Thank you.

Good norning. W're currently joined
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by Assenbl yman Maher, our ranker on Soci al
Servi ces; Assenbl ywonan Byrnes, our ranker on
Children and Fam lies; Assenbl ynan Mankt el ow,
our ranker on Veterans' Affairs, and
Assenbl ynmenber Gal | ahan.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Geat. | would
also like to introduce Assenbl ynenber
Gonzal ez-Rojas as well. And we will be
i ntroduci ng other nenbers as they arrive.

Time limts for witnesses. The
governmental w tnesses will have 10 m nutes.
Nongover nnental wi tnesses will have three
mnutes. Tinme limts for questions and
answers, legislators. The chairs of the
committees relevant to each governnenta
witness will get 10 m nutes, and a second
round of three mnutes if desired.

The ranki ng nmenbers of these
committees will get five mnutes each. Al
ot her nenbers of the relevant conmittees wll
get three m nutes each

To all of our witnesses, all witten
testi mony has been submitted to the

| egi slators in advance, so we ask that all
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Wi t nesses pl ease do not read your witten
testinmony to us. |Instead, please sumari ze.

And to all ny friends in the
Legi sl ature, please let nyself or
Senat or Krueger know if you wish to ask a
guestion of each wi tness or panel of
Wi tnesses. After the opening remarks of each
wi t ness or panel of w tnesses have been
concluded, the list will be closed.

Everyone, w tnesses and | egi sl ators,
shoul d | ocate the time clock and keep an eye
on it. Please note that when the clock is
down to zero, you'll be alerted that your
time is up.

Pl ease be considerate and respect the
clock so that everyone has a chance to be
heard. And please note that these tine
frames for questioning include both questions
and answers, so nenbers are respectfully
requested not to comence a new question with
insufficient time on the clock to permt a
witness to answer. | wll renenber that

nmysel f.

Due to the length of our hearings, we
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have no alternatives but to strictly enforce
these tine limts.

| should add that if any w tnesses for
later in the day are here and have not yet
checked in, please do so at the top of the
stairs.

And I will now call on the first two
Wi tnesses, to call on you -- you've been
sitting here for an hour. So thank you to
the first witness, Suzanne M| es-CGustave, the
acting comm ssioner of the State Ofice of
Children and Fam |y Services, and al so
Bar bara Gui nn, the acting comm ssioner of the
O fice of Tenporary and Disability
Assi stance. Thank you both for being with us
here today.

G eat, please.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE:
Good norning, Chair Krueger, Children and
Fam |y Commttee Chairs Hevesi and Brisport,
and di stingui shed nenbers of the Senate and
Assenbly. And well wi shes to Chair
Weinstein. We do wish her a speedy recovery.

| "' m Suzanne M | es-CQustave, acting
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conmi ssi oner of the New York State Ofice of
Children and Fam |y Services. | appreciate
this opportunity to present Governor Hochul's
State Fiscal Year 2025 Executive Budget that
enhances our mssion to protect and
strengthen all of New York's children, youth,
famlies and communities, a commtnent | know
each of you share as well.

OCFS is conmtted to acconplishing
this goal by follow ng our guiding North Star
principle of equity. Qur pledge is that
every program policy, initiative funded by
t he Executive Budget will further transform
our human services systeminto one that is
far nore responsive, not reactive, to the
needs of underresourced and vul nerabl e
New Yor ker s.

We are doing this with a renewed
conmitnent to center each of our initiatives
inequity. |It's only by transform ng our
human services systeminto one that val ues
all voices, and brings the changes they are
calling for, that we can nake our state safer

and nore supportive for everyone.




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

14

This year's Executive Budget offers
anot her critical opportunity to make truly
meani ngful investments in OCFS's core
childcare, child welfare and adult services,
and juvenile justice prograns that deliver
t he services New Yorkers need now nore than
ever.

It's a true honor to serve a Governor
wi th such an unwavering dedication to
i ncreasi ng access to quality affordable
childcare for New York's famlies. Before
Governor Hochul took office, New York's
Chil dcare Assistance Program as you know,
struggled to give famlies the help they
needed. Under the Governor's steadfast
| eadership, investnents in childcare have
grown to record levels and New York is now a
national |eader in increasing affordability
and access to childcare.

| want to nake clear that the nore
than $7 billion over four years dedicated to
chil dcare al so woul d not have been possible
wi t hout your partnership. Today, New York is

one of just a handful of states where
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eligibility for childcare assistance is at

t he federal maxi mum of 85 percent of state
nmedi an i nconme, which is nore than $99, 000 for
a famly of four, and copays are capped at 1
percent of fam |y inconme above the poverty
level for all famlies, statew de.

This year's Executive Budget continues
the state's commtnent to affordability, with
nearly $1.8 billion this year for the
Chil dcare Assistance Program To illustrate
just how far we've cone, in fiscal year's
2022 budget, a nmere three years ago, the
total funding provided for childcare
assi stance, fromstate and federal sources,
was $832 million. That is an increase of
114.5 percent in just three years.

Governor Hochul al so understands that
wi t hout a strong workforce, we won't be able
to meet the high demand for these services.
Over the last several years, we have invested
nore than $1.4 billion in childcare
stabilization and workforce supports. This
year's budget allocates $280 mllion in

underutilized pandem ¢ funds to continue the
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Wor kf orce Retention G ant program and provide
anot her round of bonus paynments to staff in
caregiving roles, so they will stay on the
job, and funding to support child care
prograns' efforts to recruit even nore staff.
Har dwor ki ng famlies don't just
deserve access to childcare, we need to nake
sure that they have the peace of mnd to know
that when they drop their children off, it’s
at a high-quality program no matter where
they live or work. The proposed budget
provides $5 mllion to pilot Famly Childcare
Net works in regions around the state.
Hone- based providers, which include famly
and group famly providers, are the |argest
conmponent of our provider pool in New York
State and are run by nostly wormen of col or.
The budget will al so boost quality by
creating an enhanced paynent rate for
provi ders that are accredited by a nationally
recogni zed chil dcare organi zation
participate in QUALI TYstarsNY, or have
conpleted training and actively participate

in the state's Non-Patient Epinephrine
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Auto-lnjector Initiative.

Protecting our precious children is
al so a mpj or part of Governor Hochul's
broader focus on the nental health crisis.
The budget invests $1.7 mllion in the seven
regi onal infant and toddl er resource centers
across the state to expand the consultation
services they offer to providers and
famlies.

This year's Executive Budget al so

provi des over $100 mllion in funding for
after-school programm ng, an overall increase
of $17.7 mllion fromlast year's Executive

Budget. The budget al so conbi nes the

previ ous Advantage and Enpire State
After-School prograns into one single
program reducing adm nistrative burdens for
provi ders.

O course, CGovernor Hochul's
commtrment to New York’s children, youth and
famlies, and vul nerable and marginalized
popul ati ons runs so nuch deeper than
childcare, and this year's budget nakes the

critical investnments in the prograns and
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services that enable OCFS to continue
supporting, uplifting, and pronoting their
devel opnent. This year's budget includes an
increase from$4.4 mllion to over

$10 mllion to raise the m ni num wage of

enpl oyees of state-funded contractors
operating OCFS prograns.

Governor Hochul has al so included a
COLA increase in every budget she has
proposed since taking office. This year's
1.5 percent COLA will once again benefit the
famlies and vol untary agenci es who care for
New York's children in foster care, and
adoptive parents.

As New York's first femal e governor,
Governor Hochul knows and cares deeply about
the matters nost inportant to wonen. Not
only has she been fighting for wonen
bal anci ng not her hood and careers by naki ng
historic investnments in childcare, but the
Governor has al so nade tackling New York's
troublingly high rates of maternal nortality
a hall mark of her adm nistration. OCFS

appl auds Governor Hochul's focus on
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addressing the maternal and infant health
crisis in the Executive Budget, which
includes $2 mllion in new funding to reduce
the risk of Sudden Unexpected Infant Deaths
by providing sonmething so many of us take for
granted -— a safe crib.

As the Governor noted in her State of
the State, sleep-related deaths are the nost
common type of preventable child fatality
that conmes to the attention of state
officials, resulting in nore than 120 i nfant
deat hs per year. Portable cribs will be nmade
avai l abl e to underresourced famlies who need
t hem nost .

Si nce taking office, Governor Hochu
has al so nade keeping all New Yorkers safe a
top priority, as she understands that
ensuring there are effective interventions
for youth who are at risk of engaging in
crimnal activity is critical to inproving
out cones for our young people and
strengthening | ocal communities. This year's
budget includes a $3 nmillion increase in

funding, to nearly $11.4 mllion, to enhance




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

20

t he Supervision and Treatnment Services for
Juveni |l es Program or STSIP

Since its inception in 2011, STSJP has
been a key conmponent of New York's vision to
transformthe youth justice system by
incentivizing |local progranms intended to
divert at-risk youth from placenment in
detention or residential care and to safely
mai ntain themin the community

| would be remiss if |I didn't take an
opportunity to al so coormend Governor Hochul's
Executive Budget investnents designed to
i ncrease the prosecution of domestic violence
cases anong hi gh-risk of fenders, and for
prioritizing solutions for the nental health
crisis, particularly anmong our children and
youth. OCFS is a proud partner with OPDV to
hel p survivors recover and gain stability,
and with OWH on inportant cross-system
col | aborations, to advance the CGovernor's
goal s.

Before | close, | would just like to
express ny gratitude once again for al

you' ve done to bol ster our mssion to provide
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truly equitable and inpactful services
grounded in the dignity of our children,
famlies, and communities. They definitely
deserve that. While we all have different
roles to play, I'mconfident that the results
of our partnership, along with the Governor's
unwavering support, is sonething we will all
be proud of.

Under Governor Hochul's | eadershi p,
New York is a stronger, healthier, safer and
nore affordable New York than when she took
office, and this year's Executive Budget
continues to advance that progress.

Thank you for this opportunity to
speak directly to you today. | welconme any
guestions or coments you may have.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you very
much, Comm ssioner. W appreciate it.

Conmmi ssi oner Gui nn.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN: Good
nmor ni ng. Good norni ng, Chairpersons Krueger,
Persaud, Davila and Hevesi, and other nenbers

of the Legislature.
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My name is Barbara Guinn. | amthe
acting comm ssioner of the State Ofice of
Tenporary and Disability Assistance.
wel come the opportunity to speak with you
t oday about Governor Hochul's Fiscal Year
2025 Executive Budget and its support for
critical benefits and services our agency
provi des on behal f of New Yorkers.

OTDA is responsible, in conjunction
with | ocal social services districts, for the
delivery of benefits that provide econom c
assi stance and support to eligible famlies
and individuals throughout the state. This
wor k i ncludes hel ping very | owincone
New Yorkers neet their essential needs, such
as housing, food, and other basic
necessities.

Since | have the opportunity to
address you today, I'd like to start by
t hanki ng the staff of our office for their
dedi cation and efforts to serve | owincomne
New Yorkers in an unprecedented manner over
the past few years. Qur office played a

vital role in hel ping New Yorkers navi gate
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t he econom ¢ uncertainty caused by the COVID
pandem c, as well as its lingering financial
i npacts.

Through this work, OIDA delivered
$18 billion in pandenic-rel ated energency
food, housing, and utility benefits in direct
support of | ower-incone househol ds in our
state. These efforts enabled our agency to
go above and beyond to neet the chal |l enges of
provi di ng an unprecedented anmount of
assi stance to nmany New Yorkers, sone of whom
wer e seeking assistance for the very first
time.

Governor Hochul's Executive Budget
mai ntai ns the essential funding for our
agency's core prograns. These include Public
Assi stance, which currently provides nonthly
i ncome support for nore than 600, 000
i ndi vidual s; the Supplenental Nutrition
Assi stance Program with nore than
2.8 million nonthly recipients of this vital
food assi stance; the Hone Energy Assistance
Program which issued nore than 1.5 mllion

benefits last winter, totaling nore than
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$400 mllion; Child Support Services, which
collected nore than $1.6 billion on behal f of
nearly 615,000 famlies |ast year; and

di sability determ nations, through which our
staff conpl eted over 187,000 nedi cal
eligibility reviews for residents seeking
federal and state disability benefits.

These prograns are essential to
hel ping mllions of individuals in our state
each day and to support stronger famlies and
stronger comunities.

As cochair of the Child Poverty
Reducti on Advi sory Council, | can share that
in 2023 the council nade great progress in
our work to develop a plan to reduce child
poverty by 50 percent within 10 years.
Additionally, investnments and reforns
Governor Hochul and the Legislature have made
since the Child Poverty Reduction Act was
enacted are already maki ng progress toward
this goal.

Thi s progress includes expandi ng the
Enpire State Child Tax Credit to add children

under 4 years of age, who were previously
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excl uded; investing over $7 billion over four
years in childcare to expand caregivers
ability to access affordable childcare;

rai sing the m ni num wage by about $2 per
hour, phased in over the next coupl e of
years, and indexing this wage to inflation
nmovi ng forward; and inplenenting strategic
changes to hel p Public Assistance recipients
with earnings retain nore of their benefits,
with the goal of encouragi ng work and
econonmi c nobility.

These initiatives al one have the
ability to reduce child poverty in the state
by 7 percent. The council will build on this
progress and work toward reachi ng a consensus
and issuing reconmendations this year to neet
our collective goal of significantly reducing
child poverty in our state.

Governor Hochul's commtnent to
reduci ng poverty continues with the 2025
Executi ve Budget proposal to invest
$50 mllion to support locally-driven
anti-poverty initiatives in the cities of

Rochester, Syracuse, and Buffalo. These
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three conmunities have sonme of the highest
child poverty rates in the nation.

The budget al so makes ot her targeted
investnments to assist famlies in need, such
as $128 mllion for OTDA s Honel ess Housing
and Assistance Program The program funds
capital projects that create pernanent
supportive housing for famlies and
i ndi vi dual s who have experienced
homel essness. It also is the only state
resource for the devel opnment of energency
shelters, which often play a critical role in
comunities' conprehensive honel ess services
syst ens.

Governor Hochul also has conmtted to
join the federal Summer El ectronic Benefit
Transfer Program for Children, or Sunmer EBT.
The programis ained at reduci ng hunger and
food i nsecurity anong children who are unable
to access free and reduced-price school neals
during the summertinme. Eligible famlies
with school -age children will receive $120
per child during the sumrer nonths.

The Executive Budget invests
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approximately $13 million to support the
adm nistration of this program Sumer EBT
is expected to provide over $200 million in
federal benefits to serve over 2 mllion
children in New York State.

W are also excited that the Executive
Budget continues efforts included in the
fiscal year '24 budget and invests an
additional $23.7 mllion to provide
year -round enpl oynent opportunities for
at-risk youth. This includes the Sunmer
Yout h Enpl oynent Program totaling
$50 million, and the Youth Enpl oynent
Program totaling $38.8 million.

The year-round Youth Enpl oynent
Programtargets areas of the state plagued by
hi gh rates of gun violence as part of
Governor Hochul's conprehensive effort to
address this issue. Both prograns are
evi dence- based and provi de additional incone
for | owincome households, critical career
devel opnent services, as well as positive
out cones for program participants and their

conmuni ti es.
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As you know, we work closely with our
partners in the |local departnments of soci al
servi ces, who adm ni ster nany of the prograns
we supervise. These agencies play a critical
role in connecting New York famlies with
public benefits. The 2025 Executive Budget
invests nore than $17 mllion to enable
soci al services districts to increase
gualified staff needed to provide
famly-centered, traunma-informed services.
Wth the additional staff, they can offer
greater support to famlies as a unit and
hel p address any challenges to their
wel | -being and hel p them attain financial
stability.

Reduci ng child poverty and hel pi ng our
fell ow New Yorkers neet basic needs and
advance economcally is at the core of our
agency's work. W |ook forward to our
continued partnership with the Legislature in
t he com ng weeks and nont hs.

Thank you for the opportunity to
testify, and | wel come your questions.

Thank you.
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ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you. Thank

you, Comm ssioner GQuinn.

| amgoing to allot nyself -- and this
sounds selfish -- 10 mnutes to ask you sone
guestions, and then I'Il nobve on to sone of

nmy ot her coll eagues.

And, Ms. @uinn, | thank you for your
testinmony. Most of ny questions are going to
be for Conm ssioner Suzanne M| es- Custave.

So good norning. How are you?

CHAI RWOVAN KRUEGER: {1 naudi bl e. }
W11l you introduce your additional nenbers,
and | will do the same. Sorry.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Go ahead. No,
feel free. 1'Il get ny list.

Go ahead, Senate.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
just wanted to interrupt by introducing
Senat or Scarcel | a- Spant on, Senator My, and
Senat or Cber acker.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

| would also like to introduce
Assenbl ynenber s Butt enschon, Jackson, Jones,

and Lee are all here. Thank you all for
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com ng.

Jo Anne Sinon as well? Okay. She's
hiding fromne. kay.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: OCh. And
M. Anderson over there.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Okay. Welcone to
all of you. Al right, Comm ssioner, thank
you. And thanks for resetting the clock.

So | first want to start by thanking
you and OCFS for all of the great work that
you do. And particularly on a personal
| evel , you' ve been so gracious in teaching ne
a | ot about what you do and what your agency
does. And it really neans a lot, and |I'm
grat eful .

And thank you to OIDA and all of their
staff as well.

So I"'mgoing to spend the first
portion of nmy questions talking to you about
wor kf orces, just various workforces. But |
think we're in alittle bit of a hole from

the prior admnistration. 1 also want to say




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

31

there's sone really good stuff in this
budget, and |I'm grateful to Governor Hochu
for her | eadership on a variety of issues.
W have seen a change, a sea change over the
| ast three years with the new adm nistration

However, because of the prior
adm nistration and their mndl ess austerity,
every one of our workforces, every one of
themis underresourced, all of them And
they're all in dire circunstances. And |'|
go through them one by one, but the question
will be essentially the sane: How do we dig
out of these holes so our workforces can get
pai d enough that we're not seeing the kind of
dropoff in turnover rates in these
wor kf orces, which is bad for the services but
terrible for the kids they're trying to
servi ce.

So | guess the -- let ne start with
t he donestic viol ence workforce, who has not
received a cost-of-1living adjustnment since
2008. How do we help themto get paid
properly? W don't see noney in the

Executive Budget. So I'mtrying to get a
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sense of how we address this problem because
it's a longer-term probl em

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
Thank you for that question, Assenbl yman
Hevesi .

And we do appreciate your partnership
as well. M staff, they're the ones who
real ly acconmopdate you nost often with the
guestions, so | thank them But your
partnership i s appreciated.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE: |
woul d agree. | know that we are all trying
to figure out how to support our workforce.
There are certain sectors that we've been
able to invest in nore than others. But to
your specific question about the DV
community, although they are not statutorily
included in the COLA -- and | defer to the
Legi sl ature on any changes there -- they --
it is not as if their rates have not changed.
They have not been stagnant.

So their rate is subject to a growh

factor, and so there have been growh factors
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implenented in their rate for the past

several years. W can get you nunbers of
that growh. But we hear from our DV
providers all the tinme. Mich like our
foster-care providers, the MSAR rate includes
a growh factor and trend factors that we can
i ncrease that COLA.

So for DV providers, although they're
not -- they don't have the COLA in the
statute, their rate does increase with
specific growh factors. And we can get you
specifics on that.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: | appreciate that
answer. And so we have introduced a bill in
the Assenbly to catch all of the parts of our
human servi ces workforce that are not
eligible for the COLA. And that is |anguage
that we would like inserted into the budget.
| think we'll be pushing for that in our
houses as wel | .

| s that sonething -- because you see
that there's a gap, even when we do COLAs,
right? Every tinme ny colleagues and | do

COLAs we think we're doing a great thing;, we
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come back five mnutes |ater and you have
people yelling at us: What about us? W' ve
been left out.

So we have a bill to address that. So
| would ask you to take a | ook at that. |
know everything here costs noney, but this is
what happens when you spend over a decade of
keeping all of these prograns and their
wor kf orces at zero. So that's one.

|"mgoing to tal k about next -- I'm
going to nove on -- same topic, childcare.
Great investnents by the Governor. By the
way, the Governor's focus on childcare has
been amazing. And that, conplinented with
Speaker Heastie and his | eadership and Senate
Majority Leader Cousins have caused us and
led us to invest billions of dollars.

However, when you're tal king about the
chi |l dcare workforce now -- and we have given
t hem several rounds, using stinulus funds,
and some not -- of stabilization grants and
even wor kforce enhancenent. But it's just
not doi ng what we need to do. So we've

i nvested, what is it, 7 billion, or close to
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that. But if we don't pay the workforce,
we're going to continue to see a |l ack of
childcare in New York State. |Is there
sonmet hing that we can do to address that
probl en? Because even the bonuses and the
wor kf orce retention grants that we did | ast
year, they didn't have the uptake that we

t hought they woul d.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE:  So
| would agree with you that the Governor's
proposal s have been historic. So under her
| eadership, right, we've conmtted to
$7 billion over four years to support
childcare. This year alone, there's al nost
1.8 billion in the budget for childcare
assi st ance.

But | understand your point. W have
i nvested, although be it with pandem c funds,
over $1.4 billion dollars in Wrkforce
Stabilization Gants. A majority of those
grants were focused on worker retention, so
these dollars had to go directly to the
workers to retain them

But | think we need several




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

36

strategies, right, to retain our workforce.

| really look forward to our Childcare
Avai l ability Task Force. As you know, the
Governor reconvened the task force, gave them
several charges. One of those were

contenpl ating the workforce issues. Another
one was creating a roadnmap to universa

chil dcare.

| think all of those need to be
contenplated, along with the Legislature, in
the context of the budget. | think we all
have that North Star goal of paying our
wor kers nore, potentially doing nore for
famlies with respect to childcare. But it
needs to be nmeasured, and in the context of
t he budget.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Understood. And
| appreciate that. By the way, I'll ask you
a question later on, if | can, about the
timng of the report fromthe Childcare
Avai l ability Task Force.

But again, another area -- workforce
yet again -- foster care and preventative

services workforce. Again, we appreciate the
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1.5 percent COLA for sone parts of that
wor kf orce. There are others that we | eave
out .

And then particularly for the
preventative services workers, does the
adm ni stration -- does your adm nistration
| ook on the 65/35 reinbursenent to
counties -- which | believe should be
75/25 -- as a way of paying that workforce?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE:  So
the 62/38 that's in the budget -- again,
| ongst andi ng New York commtnent to
preventive services. That does not include
additional funding. So that is the funding
that we've dedicated for a decade, alnost, if
not nore, to meking sure that we focus on
preventive services for famlies who need
support as a way to prevent their entrance
into the child welfare system

| do think that, as you nentioned, we
need to |l ook at how to retain workers in al
of our industries, including preventive and
protective and our child welfare workers in

the | ocal districts.
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But that 62/38 is open-ended, right,
so counties can hire as many CPS workers as
they need. Ganted, there's a |local share,
simlar with preventive workers. But | agree
with you that we're trying to do nmany things
in partnership with our local districts to
retain local district staff, both CPS workers
and preventive workers. W rking with our
civil service partners, you may have heard of
the HELP program | know conm ssi oner Hogues
tal ked about it yesterday. W' ve benefited
fromthat HELP program counties have
benefited fromthat HELP program getting
nore people into the industry. It's
difficult to retain with the current salary,
to your original question. But we need to
recruit the next generation to nake
government service a positive and for it to
be a touted career for those com ng out of
col | ege.

So hopefully with that HELP program
we're recruiting nore folks into our
i ndustries. And retention, we're working on

programs within our local districts to retain
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enpl oyees, much |ike retaining enployees in
my industry -- in ny agency.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Understood. So |
appreciate that answer. And | just want to
tell you on a personal level | think the
65/ 35 rei nbursenent to counties is the best
public policy that |I've seen in governnent.
And t he reason why you increase that nunber
to 75 is to incentivize counties to get into
t he busi ness of preventing problens for kids.

So we're going to keep com ng back at
that until we doit. And | just do want to
say on the record while we are at 62/ 38
rei nbursenent, that violates the law. The
law is a 65/35 reinbursenent. So | just want
to put that on the record.

And | know that that was sonething the
| ast adm nistration enjoyed doi ng, going
below the law. But this admnistration has a
different tack. So I'd hope we will be able
to change that.

And then the | ast workforce | want to
touch on is the after-school workforce -- and

there's many nore, but the after-school
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wor kf orce. First, thank you for your --

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE: |
didn't hear that.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: The after-school
wor kf or ce

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
After school, thank you

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI : Yeah, absol utely.

So thank you for the proposal in the
Executi ve Budget that adds $100 milli on.
Thank you so rmuch for conbining the two,
Advant age After School and Excel sior. That
has been a stain on New York State, the fact
that you had sone kids at this level, sone
ki ds who are di sadvantaged at a | ower |evel.
It was disgraceful of the | ast
adm nistration. So thank you for that.

But the after-school prograns believe
that they need to get their per-student rate
up to $4300 per child to pay the workforce.
| s that sonmething that the Executive would be
open to?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE:  So

we were -- we are excited that the Executive
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Budget added 17 mllion additional dollars to
our existing program

And yes, the intention was always to
conbine them to reduce the administrative
burden on everyone -- on providers, on OCFS,
because we do facilitate those contracts
directly. So we look forward to issuing our
new RFP, which is not quite out yet.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: That is a serious
buzzer. Ckay.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you very
much, Comm ssioner. Appreciate it.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECER: And it even
applies to you, even though you're running
t he hearing.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: No, |'m not so
sure about that.

(Laughter.)

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUEGER:  So, Senate.
Ckay, our first questioner will be
Chair Brisport.

SENATOR BRI SPORT: Thank you,
Madam Chair. And thank you to our
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commi ssioners for your tine and your
wi |l lingness to answer our questions. M ne
are alnost entirely for Comm ssioner
M | es- Gustave at OCFS, and predom nantly on
chil dcare.

| think I want to start by responding
to a section of your testinony saying
New York is now a national |eader in
i ncreasing affordability and access to
chil dcare.

| just want to add on, you know, | do
want to say that we are starting to recover
froma pandem c that did hit our childcare
sector -- when it was already in a state of
crisis -- with multiple closures across the
state. And although we've taken sone steps
to stemthe bleeding, the underlying crisis
has not been addressed. And |I'd like to talk
about how this Executive proposal for the
budget conpares to the enornous scal e of that
crisis.

In particular, the shortage of
chil dcare providers that New Yorkers were

faci ng before the pandem ¢ has not been




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

43

addressed. Childcare slots are up less than
3 percent fromthe | owest years of the
pandem c, according to data fromthe OCFS
website. W know that one root cause of the
problemis the poverty wages for childcare
wor kers, with childcare educators earning
| ess than 96 percent of occupations in
New York State. And for the past few years,
the State Budget has included sone workforce
grants to tenporarily boost wages, but no
significant investnment in raising childcare
wages | ong term

Wiy does the Governor's budget
proposal not include nmeasures to pernmanently
i ncrease wages rather than just issuing
one-ti me bonuses?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE:  So
t hank you, Senator Brisport, for that
guesti on.

| think it's hard to argue that this
adm ni stration and this agency has done
i ncredi ble things for childcare. Wen we do
say New York is a national |eader, it's

because we are one of the few states that
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have increased the eligibility for CCAP to

t he hi ghest allowed by federal law, to

85 percent of SM. A handful of states have
done that.

So we've increased the pool of
famlies who are eligible and can take
advant age of childcare. That is increasing
access.

| agree that we need to collectively
continue to think about how to increase wages
for the sector. |In last year's budget, if
you recall, we increased the market rate for
all childcare providers to the 80th
percentile fromthe 69th percentile, where it
had | angui shed for quite sone tinme. The
federal recomnmendation is 75 percent. So
again, we are above what the federal
gover nment has recomended.

And increasing the market rate for
chil dcare providers does allow providers to
i ncrease salaries. Sone providers received
over a 30 percent increase because of that
mar ket rate increase.

| do think we're all very hopeful that
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with our partners we can collectively |ook
towards a couple of things: Really nmanaging
the workforce crisis and creating that
framewor k for universal childcare with our
partners in the Childcare Availability Task
For ce.

So we do | ook forward to their report
and recomendations. | think the statutory
charge for that task force was to do just
that, to set about creating a framework for a
phased-in rollout of universal childcare.
Because that is, again, the North Star goa
for all of us. | think we need to take
nmeasured steps, and we've done a lot in the
past two years. And |look forward to, |ike,

t he negotiati ons between the Legislature and
t he Executive on this budget.

SENATOR BRI SPORT: Thank you.

And | want to respond to the market
rate. | appreciate we've increased the
percentage of the nmarket rate survey. | was
readi ng through a study fromI|LR Buffal o
reports that found that New York State

subsidy rates still fall far short of
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covering the actual costs of childcare in
New York State. And | believe we both spoke
about this at |ast year's hearing and both
agreed that New York's childcare nodel does
not conpensate for the true cost of care, and
that it doesn't nake sense.

Do you know why this year's budget
still doesn't conpensate providers for the
true cost of care?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE:  So
| know that -- to your point |last year, we
were reeling from di sappoi nt nent when the
federal governnment did not pass the Build
Back Better bill, which would have allowed us
in all states to nove toward cost of care.

There are sone federal rules out right
now that we in the childcare industry are

waiting for the Ofice of Child Care to

finalize. | think the novenent from
all avenues -- fromlocal, state, to federa
partners -- are noving towards potentially

uni versal childcare, which was in the federa
bill that didn't pass, and the true cost of

care, which we have not transitioned to.
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So | know in our market rate survey we
did include a few questions that tried to get
at that cost of care, but we are not there
yet. So we are still under a narket survey
framewor k. The survey results are back
We're anal yzing those. That data, the actua
new survey -- the nmarket rate should be out
sonetine in October, | believe.

But | know that is the goal, because
we want to fully understand how to support
t he industry.

SENATOR BRI SPORT: Thank you.

Anot her piece of this report did a
poll that said the overwhelmng majority --
79 percent -- of respondents woul d support
public funding for universal childcare. You
know, a goal that is shared, naking it a free
public service akin to K-12 public education.

This state could certainly choose to
rai se the necessary revenue to do so in this
year's budget by ending tax breaks on
mllionaires and billionaires. |In fact,

Washi ngton, D.C., raised taxes on the rich in

order to fund additional chil dcare
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i ncentives.

| f the Governor and Legi sl ature agreed
to fully fund universal childcare by taxing
the rich, how would that inpact the
ef ficiency and m ssion of your agency?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE: |
definitely defer to the Legislature and the
Executive on any negotiations. And if that
shoul d be passed and a bill signed by the
Governor, OCFS would certainly inplenent it.

But | think with any industry, if
there is nore investnent, we can do nore.
think we all can agree that all of our social
services industries would Iike nore funding.
| f we had nore funding, we can do nore for
sure.

SENATOR BRI SPORT: Thank you.

Also in the report it showed that
42 percent of famlies with children in
New York, an adult has stayed out of the
wor kf orce because of childcare needs. For
nost of those famlies, childcare was not
af fordable. And nearly one in four parents

kept out of the workforce reported that




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

49

chil dcare was sinply no | onger avail able or
accessible in their area.

We know fromthe Cornell report that
many of the poorest areas of New York have
even fewer childcare slots now than they did
in 2021, at the height of the pandem c. Has
OCFS conduct ed any econom ¢ anal ysis of what
t he econom c cost to New York has been from
the lack of availability of childcare?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE:  So
| woul dn't say we've done an anal ysis of that
specifically. But | do know that we've
focused our efforts on providing famlies
with resources and supports to do just that,
to find avail abl e chil dcare.

W have childcare resource and
referral agencies throughout the state that
do just that. They work with providers, they
work with parents, and they help to -- they
hel p parents find avail able chil dcare.

| know that we've also invested in
several supply efforts. So we had our
Chil dcare Desert Grant |last year to build

supply, and it in fact did contribute to the
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supply in New York State. And in this year's
proposed budget, we are proposing that

$5 mllion for the famly childcare networks
to, again, support these hone-based and
group-fam | y-based chil dcare providers so
that they can becone a sustai nabl e nodel
They're already the |argest pool of providers
we have in New York State, but they need
supports. These are entrepreneurs and snal |
busi ness fol ks.

So those are the types of supports
that we would like to give the industry to
hel p them grow.

SENATOR BRI SPORT: Thank you.

And one of the ways in which parents
can becone burdened in accessing childcare is
the way we so closely tie work hours to
childcare. And this Legislature has now
passed twice a bill to decouple work hours
fromthe childcare hours eligibility.

And right before Christnmas
Governor Hochul vetoed the bill that would
decoupl e chil dcare assistance froma parent's

exact work requirenents, suggesting she
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intended to revisit this issue in the
Governor's budget proposal. However, |
didn't see anything in her proposal about
t hi s.

Di d Governor Hochul discuss the issue
of decoupling with you at all?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE:  So
t he decoupling bill was not in this year's
budget. | think, as the veto nmessage
i ndi cated, the Executive is open to
di scussing that in the context of the budget.

That specific bill had about a
$140 million price tag, and that investnent
was not contenplated in the financial plan
for | ast year.

And we do recognize that famlies need
flexibility. 1 think that's why in our
series of strategies over the past several
years we've tried to nmake childcare nore
accessible and affordable for all famlies.

| think that the heart of the
decoupling bill speaks to the burden that
applying for childcare, receiving childcare

puts on a famly. And because of that, we've
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done a lot to nake the process snoother. As
t he Governor nmentioned in |ast year's budget,
our systenms are antiquated, right, but we've
been noving towards fixing that.

So this year OCFS issued the first
prescreener on our website to attract
famlies to the OCFS website to see if they
are eligible for childcare. It is just a
prescreener, so then they can get referred to
their owm districts. And we are working on
an online application that we are in testing
ri ght now.

So, you know, there are providers out
there that provide nontraditional care. So |
think making it easier for famlies mght --
m ght definitely help.

SENATOR BRI SPORT: Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.  Your
time is up.

Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI : (1 naudi bl e.)

ASSEMBLYWOVAN DAVI LA: (I naudi bl e.)

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE

Good nor ni ng.
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ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Chair, forgive ne
for interrupting. |If | could just ask the
conmi ssioners to lean a little forward or
speak closer into mcs. Sone of the nenbers
are having trouble hearing. Thank you very
much.

Sorry for the interruption.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN DAVILA:  I'msorry, so
have two questions for Barbara Guinn.

The first one is regarding the overal
publ i c assistance caseload. |It's projected
to increase by 19,000 recipients, the biggest
increase of which is in the safety-net single
popul ation. Wat factors are contributing to
this increase?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN:  So t hank
you, Menber. Certainly there is a projection
for the public assistance caseload to
i ncrease. W have, after years of decline or
even steady public assistance casel oads, we
have seen significant rises over the past
year to two years.

The increase is largely based on, you

know, an econom c nodel that | ooks at and
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hel ps use economic factors to project the
nunber of individuals who are likely to need
public assistance in the comng year. So it
obviously is tied to, you know, efforts to

get people to work, which is obviously our

objective, is to provide the assistance while

folks need it and then to provide support so
that they can go to work

And | would just nention that, you
know, efforts like the investnents in
childcare certainly will help famlies nove
in that direction.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN DAVI LA:  Thank you.

|"mgoing to address the el ephant in
the room and that is can you provide us an
updat e on how nuch of last year's $1 billion
has been distributed to New York City for
shelter costs for asylum seekers? Only
because ny col | eagues have been asking these
guestions and we have not gotten any cl ear
answers.

This year there's a proposal to give
$2.4 billion. So we would like to know how

much of that $1 billion that we were able to
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al l ocate | ast year was spent.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN: Sure. So
first I just want to say that the investnents
that were included | ast year, as well as the
significant investnents included by
Governor Hochul this year, are essential to
hel ping New York City address this
humani tarian crisis. It is a crisis, and
it's one that Governor Hochul understands
that the state needs to help the city to
addr ess.

Wth respect to the rei nmbursenent
that's been provided to New York City to date
fromthe 1 billion, to date the city has
subnmitted requests for reinbursenent that
total -- in terns of the state-share portion
woul d be about 325 mllion. That anmount is
only through Septenber of 2023, and we do not
think that it reflects all costs. So there
is definitely considerable cost yet to be
claimed, and the city is still expecting to
fully draw down the billion dollars that was
i ncluded in the current budget.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN DAVI LA:  As you are
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aware, we're seeing this played out in the
news every day, all day. And in ny mnd

t hought the billion dollars was already
spent. But if you say 300 mllion out of the
billion -- what was the nunber --

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN:  About
325 million has been clained by the city to
date with respect to the state share for
their cost.

But that does not reflect all the
costs incurred by the still. Additional
clainms are expected. And the city is
i ndi cating that they expect to draw down the
billion dollars.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN DAVI LA:  Thank you.

My next question is going to be to
Suzanne M| es-CGustave. W have al so seen --
the entire world has seen it played out on
the news. Providers, especially providers
that are probably famliar to famlies and
are not aware but are licensed -- how nuch of
this nmoney or this increase in childcare is
going to be used for oversight to nake sure

that these incidences do not happen agai n?
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ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
Thank you, Assenbl ywonan Davila. | know we
spoke previously about the tragi c Bronx
fatality, | think you' re referring to, which
was abhorrent, should never have happened.

But | think it's just an indication
that we all have to be a |l ot nore vigilant
when to conmes to the opioid epidemic and the
gross negligence of some providers. And
unfortunately, we've had to | ook at our
training, |ook at our outreach. It is a
shane that we have to train providers on
fentanyl exposure, but that is the world

unfortunately that we're living in.

So we are educating our providers. W

are educating our licensers and our
regi strants to understand this new worl d.

As a result of that tragic, tragic
fatality, we did a lot in partnership with
Department of Health and QASAS to create
information to go out to providers, to give
them access to that info. W are working on
a training video for our providers with

respect to fentanyl. And we have increased
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our inspection requirenments for New York
Cty.

We currently have a contract with
DOHVH.  They do our inspections for our
providers. And we are in talks with them
i ncrease the inspection rates for those
providers in New York City. So all that
is -- is being inplenented currently as we

speak.

But | agree with you that we are in a

different tinme right now That specific
instance was a crimnal activity. It's, vy
know, sonetinmes hard to conpensate for
crimnal activities. But we are -- we've
taken that incident seriously, and we've
st epped up our training, education and

i nspecti ons.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN DAVI LA:  And | just want

to

ou

to close with this. | do believe that nopbst

peopl e don't understand this, but grow ng
in Bushwick, | see it at the corner of ny
house right now -- even nmarijuana, which
legal, is being conpletely laced with

fentanyl. People don't understand this.

up

S

So
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| think that there needs to be a conversation
regarding that information as well.
And providers should be held

conpletely liable. Not just their |icenses

taken away -- conpletely liable. Marijuana's
part of the problemas well. And I
understand, we nmade it legal. But legal is
legal. We're buying fromfarns that we know

where it's comng from But now there has
been a different market that has been
created. And, you know, we just don't -- we
need to educate our providers that that's
al so an i ssue.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
And just to be clear, | would agree with you.
Qur health and safety requirenents have
al ways included identifying instances where
health and safety would be a critical
i npedi ment to a childcare service and the
children in that area.

So al though, right, marijuana is
legal, it is not |legal for underage youth.
So that would not be a new piece of

information that our regul ators woul d need.
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We've always trained themto make sure that
t hey can spot any health and safety risks in
a childcare service area.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN DAVI LA:  Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
think we don't have any nore introductions
right now, but before | start with Senator --
oh, Senator Weik is here. And Senator O Mara
is here. He also was not here before.

| just want to answer al so
Assenbl ymenber Davila's question. |If they
are legal, licensed stores, | would be very
interested in hearing that anyone thought
t hey were spiking product. The problemis in
your community, alnost all those stores are
illegal. They are not licensed. They are in
violation of endless Iaws. And hopefully in
t he budget we are going to be trying to be
much stricter about being able to padl ock
t hem

But you are not wong. One of the
reasons that drugs are so dangerous, and why
we wanted to | egalize, was to nmake sure that

t he products being sold to everyone were
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safe, as opposed to what's going on in the
illegal market. So thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN DAVI LA: W are seeing a
| ot of marijuana being |laced with other
dr ugs.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: But it's not from
the | egal stores.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN DAVI LA:  No, not at all.

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUEGER: No, | know. But
|"mnot saying you're wong, | think it's
just a reinforcenent of why using the | egal
product is so inportant.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN DAVI LA:  Absol utely.
Absol utely.

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Sorry. Didn't

mean to do an editorial discussion on your

tinme.

Wth that, Senator Roxanne Persaud,
chair.

SENATOR PERSAUD: Thank you. Thank
you.

Good norni ng, Conm ssioners. It's
al ways great to see you. And | appreciate

everything that you and your staff do when we
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reach out.

|"mgoing to start by addressing
Comm ssi oner Guinn. You know, we had the
conversation about the backlog in New York
Cty. And, you know, it was a positive
conversation. And we thought everything was
going in the right direction. And then the
reports came out telling us otherw se.

It seens to be that they're clearing
up their backl og, but nore people are being
denied. Can you tell us, why is that
happeni ng? And what is your agency going to
do about that to ensure that the city is not
maki ng up rules to clean up their backl og by
denyi ng applicants?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN
Absol utely, Senator. You know, | assure you
that the tinmely and appropriate processing of
public benefit applications is essential to
the work that our agency does. And so we
understand the need for oversight to ensure
t hat each social services district, including
New York City, is appropriately processing

applications and doing so tinely.
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| believe you may be referring to the
mayor's report that was issued yesterday, and
then al so a news story al so about deni al s.
Wth respect to case processing, the city has
made significant progress in ternms of
reduci ng the backl og. The backlog was quite
hi gh during the sunmer nonths, and the city
has been taking steps to add workers to
address that backlog. The backl ogs are down
significantly fromwhere they were in the
sunmer, which is what's reflected in the nost
recent mayor's report.

Wth respect to denials, we have
| ooked into that, and we are seeing an
increase in denials across the state. It
isn't New York City alone. |In |ooking at
sonme of the factors that could be leading to
those denials, I'll say, you know, a few
t hi ngs.

One, whenever you have a situation
where cases are not being processed quickly,
you're going to have individuals who are
going to submt another application. Right?

Because they're concerned, they haven't heard
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back, and so they submit another application.
That's one factor that's playing out

t hroughout the state that we're hearing from
many of fices throughout the state.

Addi tionally, you know, when you
i nprove access to benefits where people can
apply nore easily, that also sonetines neans
nore people are applying who nay not at the
end of the day be eligible.

Agai n, we have seen an increase in
denials. | think we are going to do a deeper
dive to |l ook nore specifically at the deni al
popul ati on. Each nonth we have staff out
that are providing oversight and doi ng case
revi ews.

The Suppl enental Nutrition Assistance
Programis an area that we are very mnuch
focused on in terns of naking sure those
benefits are getting out tinely. And we wll
certainly add a specific reviewin the com ng
nmonths to specifically look at denials to
make sure that those cases are being denied
appropriately.

| amtold that nanagenent within
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New York City has taken a | ook at this matter
because they too want to nake sure that

wor kers are processing cases appropriately,
and that by and large they are finding the
denials to be appropriate. That doesn't nean
they aren't finding some issues. And based
on any issues that they're uncovering, they
are certainly providing additional training
to their staff. Because anyone who's
eligible should certainly be given the
benefits they deserve.

SENATOR PERSAUD: Thank you for that.

Can you al so give us -- you don't have
to give it to us now -- of the nunber, from
t he backl og, what percentage do you think
wer e duplicates?

ACTI NG COW SSIONER GU NN |I''m sorry,
what percentage --

SENATOR PERSAUD: What percentage of
applications were duplicates? Because if
they're saying that it could be the denials
are based on duplicate applications, what
per cent age of those applications in that

backl og were duplicates?
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ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN:  Ri ght.

And | do not have the percentage of
duplicates, but we can certainly get that
information to you. As when we neet with
soci al services conm ssioners, both
individually and as a group, we are certainly
focused on tineliness and accurate delivery
of benefits. And that is what they are
reporting.

And so we've been trying to do work to
hel p them better identify those duplicates at
one time so that they are able to nore
qui ckly take action on any applications that
have come from that househol d.

SENATOR PERSAUD: Thank you.

W had a legislation |ast year to
create a fiscal cliff task force which was
ultimately vetoed by the Governor. Tell us,
what is it that we need to do to find out
what is necessary for folks to survive in the
State of New York?

The fiscal cliff task force is
essentially to understand the needs and what

is it that we need to do so that people get
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to the point where they're weaned of f of
government assistance. |If there's no task
force that's informng us as to what needs to
be done, what else can we do to get to the
ri ght answer?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN: Ri ght .
So, Senator, we're very happy to work with
you on this topic regardl ess of a task force,
to the extent that we're able.

Looki ng at the extent to which people
are able to earn their way off benefits
wi thout facing a steep cliff is certainly a
worthwhile goal, and it is something that the
state has taken recent actions to try to
addr ess.

You know, pleased that in
Governor Hochul's first budget we were able
to get some changes through that are
essential and that we have wanted to get
t hrough for many, many years. And what those
changes did is it elimnated sonme of the
artificial cliffs for public assistance. So
j ust because you hit poverty or just because

you hit a certain threshold doesn't nmean your
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benefits should go to zero. So those cliffs
were elim nated.

We al so increased the anount that any
reci pi ent of public assistance can earn and
save. So for public assistance, we've
definitely made sone steps in the right
direction.

And then also |last year, with the
support of the Legislature -- and | know a
particular interest of yours -- we were able
to al so exclude earnings for public
assi stance once a person enters a new job
100 percent for six nonths, and then al so
very inportantly to not count stipends or
ot her inconme derived when someone's in a
training program So that change was really
critical to allow people to participate in
necessary skill devel opment w thout having to
make a choice between increasing their skills
so that they can attain economc nobility or
nmeeting their basic needs. It allows themto
do bot h.

| would say that the investnents in

childcare and the increases in eligibility
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for childcare are al so another very inportant
step that the state has nmade to all ow peopl e
to earn nore and nake work pay so that they
are not worse off by working due to the

i ncreased cost associated with childcare.

Lastly, | would just say that there
are sonme federal prograns that we are
advocating to increase earnings disregards
for, to align with what we've done in
New Yor k.

SENATOR PERSAUD: Ckay, thank you.

Can you tell me about the year-round
enpl oyment progranf? \What areas are we
covering, and how many youth are in that
pr ogr anf?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN:  So the
year-round enpl oynent programis targeted to
at-risk youth in the areas that are
identified by DCJS as part of the A VE
program So really targeted to areas with
hi gh rates of gun viol ence.

SENATOR PERSAUD: Do you have an
updated list of those areas?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN: W do.
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SENATOR PERSAUD: Can you send it to
us?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN:  Absol utely
we can send you that |ist.

SENATOR PERSAUD: And | just need to
know what's the -- how many youth are in that
program Because, you know, we've seen a
spi ke in gun violence, but we're not seeing
resources going to the areas where there is a
spike in gun violence. So I'd just love to
see what --

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN:  Yeabh,
happy to send you the list of each
participating area. They all started the
progranms up in January of this year, so we're
pl eased about that. And the expectation is
that the programw |l allow about
2,500 youth, at-risk youth to be served
year-round with this enploynment and nmentoring
opportunity.

SENATOR PERSAUD: Ckay. So what woul d
it take for us to have a year-round fully
funded Yout h Enpl oynent Progran? You know,

not just we're funding Sumrer Youth
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Enpl oynment, but the amount of funding that
we're giving -- every year you hear us saying
the sane thing -- it's not enough. W just
i ncrease the funding to cover the increase in
m ni mum wage, but we're not capturing as many
yout h as we should be capturing in sunmer
youth. Wat would it take for us to do that?
Because we continue to ask for
nmoney -- and | pronmised nmy folks that | would
not say the amount of noney |I'm asking for,
but we need to invest in our youth programto
ensure that the year-round enpl oynment program
is fully funded. So thank you for that.
ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN:  Yeabh,
t hank you, Senator. W're big proponents of
t he Sumrer Yout h Enpl oynent Program  But
right, it is limted to the sumer nonths.
And if there is, you know, a way that the
budget can come up with additional funds, we
woul d be very pleased to admi nister it.
SENATOR PERSAUD: Thank you.
ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN:  Thank you.
CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
Assenbl y.
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ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you,
Senat or .

We have been joined in the Assenbly by
Assenbl ynenbers Eachus, Alvarez, Lunsford,
Simone and Cl ark. Thank you all for com ng.

And now to Assenbl ynmenber Ed Ra,
ranker of the Ways and Means Conmitt ee.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you very much

Good norni ng, Conmi ssioners.

Comm ssioner Guinn, if | could just
foll ow up quickly on the answer about the
m grant funding. So you said $325 nillion
t hrough Septenber. |Is that just |ike housing
contracts? Because | know obviously in the
financial plan we've got up to about
1.9 billion. But that's, you know, stuff
that's gotten through the Departnent of
Heal t h and ot her agenci es.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN:  Ri ght.
Right. The 325 mllion that's been
reinbursed to date is by and | arge for
tenporary enmergency housing-rel ated costs.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA: Ckay. Thank you very

much.
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And | did ask Honel and Security | ast
week regarding the plan that was approved by
your agency and the Departnent of Budget and
whet her any aspects of that could be nade
public regardi ng, you know, what the city's
overall plan was. So | would just reiterate
that concern to you as well.

The other thing | wanted to ask about
was fiscal cliffs. W had a, you know, a
task force, | guess you would call it, bill
that was passed | ast year that was vetoed by
the Governor. [|'mnot aware of any
initiative within the budget. | think it's
definitely an issue.

| believe the bill passed unani nously,
so it had very bipartisan support to | ook at
this issue. Because, you know, too often
individuals are faced with difficult
deci sions wi th advanci ng t hensel ves but then
have a concern that they may | ose out on
benefits as a result.

So is the departnent doing anything
with regard to what that task force would

have done in | ooking at this issue so we can
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try to come up with sonme fixes to assi st
t hose i ndi vi dual s?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN: Yeabh,
absolutely. 1It's something that we are
focused on. And we'd be happy to work with
your office to provide additional information
absent a formal task force.

You know, so Governor Hochul has nade
several changes in recent budgets to have
significant changes with respect to public
assi stance prograns, to elimnate artificial
cliffs that were in place previously. So
pl eased to say that individuals are able to
earn nore -- currently it's about a 62
percent earned i nconme disregard for public
assi stance -- save nore, and then also the
investnments in childcare obviously help
reduce costs that individuals otherw se would
i ncur when they go to work.

Governor Hochul is fully conmitted to
supporting famlies and hel ping them enter
the workforce. And we agree that individuals
shoul d not have to nmake a choi ce between

addi ti onal work hours and having that offset
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nore -- you know, their increased wages be
| ess than any |loss in benefits.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  And with regard to
something that was in |ast year's budget, the
i ncome di sregard provision, | know the
departnment put out a directive | think at the
end of last year regarding this. Are we
expecting formal regulations to be
forthcom ng? And if so, when?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN: Yes, we
have fully inplenented that consistent with
the date in the statute. So we did issue the
directive at the end of Decenber. So it is
bei ng i npl enented, and we certainly are
nmoving forward with correspondi ng regul ati ons
that are al nost conplete. So | would expect
those to be issued within the com ng nonths.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA: Ckay, thank you for
t hat .

One other issue in this budget. There
is this one-tine $50 million appropriation
for Buffal o, Rochester, Syracuse for
antipoverty initiatives. Can you el aborate

on any specific plans that you have for that
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noney?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN:  Right. So
we will -- you know, as indicated by Governor
Hochul , these will be locally driven, but we
certainly will be providing a bit of state
direction. So the plans will be devel oped
with the counties, in consultation with the
mayors, in terns of what they think would be
nost effective in reducing childhood poverty
in their cities.

W would |like to see investnents that
make | ong-term changes, not just kind of a
one-off. So it can either be sonething that
changes the systemthat's available to
support famlies, or it could be direct
paynents to famlies that really put their
entire famly on a different path from an
econonmi ¢ nobility standpoint.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA: Ckay, thank you.

And | astly, assum ng these, you know,
initiatives are successful, would this be
somet hi ng your agency woul d | ook to expand in
the future, not just in cities but to rural

areas as well?
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ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN:  Right. |
can't speak to what future investnments may be
made, but | would say that the Child Poverty
Reducti on Advi sory Council is |ooking at
chi | dhood poverty with respect to a state
lens in order to come with specific
recommendati ons to have statew de inpact with
respect to reducing chil dhood poverty.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you,
Conmmi ssi oner .

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN: You're
wel cone.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Senat or Rolison, ranker.

SENATOR ROLI SON:  Thank you,

Madam Chai r.

And Conmi ssi oners, thank you for being
here this norning.

l"mgoing to direct nmy questions in
the area of OCFS. | had recently net with
t he Childcare Council of Dutchess and Putnam
and tal ked about a variety of things after
| ast session. And one of the things that was

brought up was the Child Care Resource and
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Referral, CCRR And they indicated that that
has not seen an increase in 10 years and is,
you know, critical to the sustainability of
childcare for a lot of reasons.

What are your thoughts on that,
Conmi ssi oner ?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
Thank you, Senator. | would say | would
agree. But we've already resol ved that
issue. So we are in the process of
negotiating a new contract with our CCR&Rs,
and we' ve increased their funding for a
couple of different projects they have.

| know that CCR&Rs are go-to techni cal
assi stance providers, so there are several
initiatives that we're contenplating right
now that require technical assistance. And
al t hough sone of those have to be RFPd, our
CCR&Rs are the nost -- the best suited to
provi de that specific technical assistance to
our childcare providers. So | would not be
surprised if they receive those contracts as
wel | .

But we woul d agree, they are
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instrunental to our ecosystem

SENATOR ROLI SON:  And t hank you for
that. That's good to hear. | did not know
t hat .

Because one of the things that really,
you know, concerned the Childcare Council's
i ndi vi dual providers is, you know, the |ack
of a business plan from many of our providers
because they just don't have the ability to
do it or the time to do it, which inpacts
t heir busi ness, which inpacts childcare.

Wi ch inpacts famlies, going to work, and
all the things that -- | know that you know
all of that, of course, right?

But these childcare providers that
aren't even -- they're not even -- sone of
themit's tough to even collect the nonies
and docunent it. The business plan, where --
what is OCFS doing -- is it through, you
know, the CCRRs? |Is that the nmain area that
can really be providing the assistance to
create a vi abl e business?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE

That's one of the structures, yes.
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So | think that's why we're so excited
toroll out, if passed in the budget, the
famly childcare networks. Because as
menti oned, our famly and group famly
daycare providers are the |argest conponent
of our childcare framework -- nostly snall
busi nesses, predom nantly run by wonen of
color. And we know that we need to give
t hose smal | busi nesses, those entrepreneurs,

t he appropriate business supports to maintain
and sustain their business, because they

provi de the childcare for the state.

So that childcare network -- and we
have to, right, RFP that out as well -- but
that childcare network will be that business
support. It will be hopefully business

coachi ng, sone peer-to-peer support, to
really create a foundation for those group
fam |y daycare providers and a go-to resource
for those exact specific questions.

SENATCOR ROLI SON: I n the area of
rei nbursenent, |'ve heard -- we heard it [|ast
year during budget hearings and a hearing

that Senator Brisport had on childcare early
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in the session -- was the reinbursenent based
on enrol |l ment, not attendance. That seens to
be if the child is not there.

Can you el aborate on that?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
For after-school or for general childcare?

SENATOR ROLI SON:  Just in general.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
Gener al .

SENATOR ROLI SON: I n any of the
progranms and fundi ng through OCFS.

It seens to nme that's a chall enge,
because the noney's already allocated and
it's already in the budget, and these
children, if they're not there one day
because they're sick or their siblings are
sick, they're there the next day. So why
can't we fund based on enroll nment and not
att endance?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE:  So
as a general franmework we do -- the noney
follows the child, right? The famly is
eligible for childcare assistance.

However, | think we accommobdat ed t hat
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i ssue | ast year because now, statew de,
famlies can have up to 80 absences. And
every childcare provider, every county, it
was not consistent a year ago, and now it is.
Up to 80 absences, and that childcare

provi der payment will still go to the

provi der.

And providers can now have up to
20 closure days. So that is consistent
across the state. And that's built into our
financial plan. That is what our new
regul ations for childcare assistance
provi des.

SENATOR ROLI SON:  Thank you for that.

| have 15 seconds. Real quickly, once
the federal pandem c funds are exhausted,
what's your thoughts on that?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE:  So
we' ve been using our pandenic funds for
things like the childcare workforce
stabilization. So they've not really been
baked i nto our ongoing financial commtnent.
So | think that -- |I'msure the Governor wll

continue her commtnent of 7 billion over
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five years.

SENATOR ROLI SON:  Thanks,
Conmi ssi oner .

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

Assenbl y.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
Four years. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

Chai rman Ki m

ASSEMBLYMAN KIM  Thank you, Chair

| have a coupl e of questions for
Comm ssi oner Gui nn. Thank you for your
testi nmony today.

| want to first thank ny col | eague
Ander son, Menber Anderson, for raising this
particul ar i ssue around stol en SNAP benefits.

We've seen recently in my district as
well a trend that's rising. | personally
have gone through the process of taking a
di sabl ed person in a wheelchair to the SNAP
office in LIC, with their hone-care worker,
and trying to navigate the systemand trying

to figure out where's nmy $200 for the nonth,
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and he can't get any food on the table. And
it was |i ke a seven-hour process fromgetting
fromPoint Ato Point Bto even get clarity
that, hey, sonebody's stole your |D

And the only solution that was |eft
for that person was, Oh, you should just
change your pin code and call it a day. And
that's what they told us at the SNAP offi ce.

There was no accountability, there was
no way to track what happened here, |ike who
took that $200. So ny question here is, do
we have any accountability and effort to, you
know, to figure out how nmuch noney we've | ost
so far? Are there any protocols, are we
wor king with any, you know, federal agencies
or local authorities to hold sone of these
accountabl e? And how are we going to fix
this nmoving forward i nstead of just changing
i ndi vi dual pin nunbers?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN:  Ri ght.
Thank you for your question.

Definitely the skimmng of public
benefits, including SNAP, is a serious

nati onwi de problem Qur agency has been
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working with | aw enforcenent, with the US
O G inspector generals and others to try to
support efforts to stop this action.

Thanks to the Governor and this
Legi sl ature, we now have a better answer than
j ust change your pin. Provisions were
i ncl uded and have been inplenmented as of this
past August that permt us to replace stolen
benefits. So those provisions allow us to
repl ace both SNAP stol en benefits and al so,
thanks to the Legislature, also to replace
publ i ¢ assi stance benefits.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIM  Yeah, those are al
great things, and we were definitely hel ping
the victinms get their benefits back. But if
you don't actually fix how you' re getting
hacked and how they're doing this, this is a
free-for-all.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN:  Ri ght.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIM  That neans these
peopl e are going to be, hey, there's free
noney here, we're going to continue to attack
and hack the system

So | think we need to figure out the
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next solution, how to create a nore secure
paynent system so we can root out some of
t hese targeted attacks.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN:  Yeabh,
you're absolutely right. And one effort that
we will be putting in place next nonth wll
allow recipients to easily and sinply | ock
their benefits so that they cannot be
accessed until they need them And so that
we'll roll out next nonth.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIM  Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Senat or John Li u.

SENATOR LI U Thank you, Madam Chair.

First | want to underscore
Assenbl ymenber Ron Kim s issue. The stealing
of people's benefits is a serious, serious
i ssue. We happen to share the sane
constituency, but as you nentioned, it's a
probl em st at ewi de and perhaps nati onwi de as
wel | .

So what ever new technol ogy we can | ook
at as well as just any neasures to both keep

the benefits secure and streanline the
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process for New Yorkers who need these
benefits, that would be much appreciated and
much needed.

My question is for the other
conmi ssi oner, which is about the after-school
prograns. Because | think nore and nore of
us are conming to the realization that
after-school prograns, the benefits far
out wei gh the costs. And so ny question to
you is, what is your agency doing with
after-school programs? | know there was a
nmergi ng of two separate prograns. Has that
saved any noney? And can we now extend the
progranms to nore and nore school ki ds across
t he state?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
Thank you, Senator, | appreciate that
guesti on.

So at OCFS we are very excited about
our conbi ned Advant age and Enpire program
Those are the two separate programs. So in
t hi s budget the Governor proposes an
addi tional allocation of 17.7 mllion so that

t he whol e conponent is $100 mllion.
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We know that there's been -- there
have been sone issues with our after-school
program As nentioned, OCFS adnmi nisters
those contracts directly with providers in
the community. And providers suffered during
COVID, there's no m stake about it. W had
to pivot several tines during COVID. W
changed our budget format fromenrollnment to
attendance and then, with the outreach of
provi ders, at their request we changed the
framewor k back to an expense-based budget.

So that's taken sone tine because
t hose pivots required contract anendnents at
every stage. So it's been a tough go for our
provi ders. W've |ost sone seats because of
that -- because of provider |oss. So
currently we serve about 34,000 students with
our current after-school program

Again, the effort to conbine themis
to make the program stronger. W know t hat
we need to create a framework for providers
to sustain their program and that was an
issue with the switching fromenrollnent to

attendance. It's very, very difficult to run




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

89

a sustai ni ng program

So we hope that -- we're still working
on that framework currently. The RFP is not
out yet.

SENATOR LIU: | think we're out of
time here. But the point -- | would
underscore al so the necessity to expand nore
of these programs across the state: 34,000
is a tiny nunber.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
Thank you, Senator.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

Assenbl ynmenber Darli ng.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER DARLI NG Thank you
Comm ssi oners, for your work and for being
here today.

As the chai rwoman of the Subcommittee
on Foster Care for the State of New York, |
want to anplify a major concern. Wen our
foster children age out of the foster care
system many of them have shared that they
feel like they've fallen off of a cliff.

Many of our children experience housing and
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job insecurities anpbngst other issues. And
one way | know that we can tackle this issue
is an increase in funding for the Foster
Yout h Col | ege Success Initiative.

So we need an investnent of
$10 mllion, and I say this often -- all the
time -- we can invest in our children today
or pay triple to repair the negative inpact
of lack of investnment now. Excuse me, |ater.

So what ot her plans or nmeasures are in
pl ace within the proposed budget to best
support our foster youth here in New York
State?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
Thank you, Assenbl ywonan Darling. | would
agree with you whol eheartedly. W want to
invest in all of our children.

We know t hat we have to spend
specific time and resources to really bol ster
our supports for our aging-out youth. These
are youth who have been traumati zed and grown
up, at tines, in foster care. Many of those
yout h don't have permanent resources. They

are free for adoption but have not found that
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forever famly.

So we're doing a couple of things, and
it's -- we're very excited that the
Governor's budget adds about $3 mllion in
addition to sone of our prevention, right,
funding for older youth. W have youth
devel opnent fundi ng, we have our Chafee
funding. So our federal funding provides
funds for older youth. During COVID we were
able to initiate a direct test transfer
program for our ol der youth. W spent all of
our noney, and those youth got upwards of
$2,000 for -- and they can use it for
what ever they wanted to.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER DARLI NG They said
that was really hel pful, that cash

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
And we spent all of our nobney and were able
to get a reallotnment fromthe federa
government from states who did not spend
their noney. So we just received another
$2 mllion to put back into the Chafee portal
and $3 mllion that we're going to use to

spend on clainms fromcounties who have been
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adm ni stering Chafee funds.

So al though the Chafee funding is
limted, we're trying to, right, |everage
t hat as best we can.

We are al so rethinking what agi ng out
of foster care even |ooks like. W are
partnering with a national partner to think
about permanency. Right? Again, not every
ol der person gets a forever famly. Not
every ol der person can age out into
i ndependent living. Everyone needs a support
system So we're rethinking what permanency
| ooks like. And hopefully we'll create a
framework for all of our older youth to make
sure that they age out fromfoster care into
a network of sone sort.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER DARLI NG Perfect.

Comm ssioner, |'d just ask that we
i ncl ude the youth and peopl e who have
experienced the systemas well as |legislators
who are interested in assisting. | would
| ove to be part of that process.

Thank you.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
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Wul d | ove to have you. Thank you
ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.
Senat or May.

SENATOR MAY: Thank you -- (mc off;

i naudi bl e) -- | have two questions. Sorry.
| carry a bill to establish a new SNAP

m ni mum of $100 raised fromthe 23 that is

there. And | know OTDA woul d inpl enment that,

or help inplenment that.

Can you tell us what that
i mpl enentation mght ook Iike? And
especially at the county |evel, how we would
do that?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN So you're
referring to a state-funded suppl enent to
SNAP - -

SENATOR MAY: Exactly.

ACTI NG COW SSIONER GU NN:  -- to
i ncrease everyone's mni mum benefit, right?

So, you know, SNAP clearly is a very
effective anti-poverty, anti-hunger program
and the adm nistration of the program you
know, in the schenme of things we adm nister

goes quite well in ternms of being able to
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access famlies quickly.

Wth respect to state funding, if
there were state funds added as a suppl enment,
| think we would certainly need to work
t hrough various accounting issues and
technical issues with our EBT vendor. You
know, but in the event the Legislature and
t he Executive determne that a state
suppl emrent shoul d be inpl emrented, we woul d be
very happy to work with you and our vendors
to find a solution to issue those benefits as
soon as possi bl e.

SENATOR MAY: And woul d, say, Doubl e
Up Food Bucks still be able to be applied to
that funding as well?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN: I n the
event that the Double Up Food program right,
that they could -- they could change their
nodel also to apply to state-funded benefits
as well as the federally funded SNAP, and
that would be inportant in order both to
encour age both, you know, the purchase of
healthy fruits, vegetables and al so support

| ocal farners. Yeah.
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SENATOR MAY: Right. And |ocal
stores, actually, too.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN: Yes,
absol utely.

SENATOR MAY: M second question is
about -- so | represent Syracuse, which ranks
nunber two in the country for child poverty,
and Rochester and Buffal o are al ways toget her
with Syracuse at the top of that sad |ist.

| appl aud the Governor for recognizing
this problemin the budget with that
$50 mllion. Do you have information about
how t hat woul d be distributed and how we
woul d determ ne the inpact of it after it was
di stri buted?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN:  Right. So
t he budget does indicate that about
25 mllion would go to the City of Rochester
and then about 12.2 mllion each to Syracuse
and Buffal o.

We' re happy that the appropriation
| anguage does al so carve out sone funding so
that we can evaluate. So we will be able to

contract out, nost likely, with an expert in
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the area of studying econom cs and chil dhood
poverty so that we can specifically neasure
t he outcomes of those.

Wth respect to what's funded,
we're -- you know, we're going to work with
the county social services agencies, county
executives and al so the mayors of each of
those cities as they develop a plan. And
what we would like to see is investnents that
make real |ong-lasting change, whether it is
sonmething that is part of the ecosystem of
t he provision of supports for famlies or if
it is direct paynents to famlies to really
turn their lives around and hel p them nove
not only out of poverty but hopefully well
beyond poverty.

SENATOR MAY: So you see it as
relatively flexible in ternms of the kinds of
things that it could --

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN: It is
relatively flexible, just we want to make
sure we have outcones.

SENATOR MAY: That's great.

And | know a | ot of these prograns
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suffer fromthe slowness of distributing the
funds. Wbuld you expect that this would be

fast-tracked in sonme way?

ACTI NG COMW SSI ONER GUINN: | nean, |
woul d expect that -- we are hopeful that the
Legislature will see to pass this within the

budget that is passed.

And due to that expectation, we wll
start working with the areas prior to budget
enact ment .

SENATOR MAY: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

Assenbl ynmenber Mt aynes.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN M TAYNES: CGood nor ni ng.

| have a question for each of you

Wth the recent success of the
prom sed New York City pilot program
subsi di zing childcare for undocunented
famlies, has OCFS exam ned the possibility
of a statew de program of that nature, since
t he Governor excluded undocumented children
fromreceiving aid in the past?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE

Thank you for that question, Assenbl ywonman.
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So we understand the burden of
childcare on those famlies whose children
aren't eligible. Unfortunately our federal
funds are really specific and children's
status is nost inportant. So sone famlies
where their children do have inmgration
status that it's eligible, even if that
famly's undocunented, that child will be
eligible for childcare assistance. But if
not, our federal funds unfortunately can't be
used in that way.

However, | know that we do have a
facilitated enroll ment programin New York
State. We have a provider in New York City
and a provider for the rest of the state.

And in this year's -- |last year's budget, two
specific grant prograns were approved. One
is a programfor famlies who weren't
otherwise eligible -- so fanmilies who are
above the eligibility rate, famlies who are
potentially undocunent ed.

It isalimted fund, but it is a
possibility. And we are conmtted to working

with the Legislature to see how we can
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accommpdate all famlies.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN M TAYNES: Thank you.

What is OTDA doing to ensure that
peopl e who have recently | ost EBT noney to
skinmi ng are rei nbursed for the funds that
t hey' ve | ost?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN:  So in
addition to outreach to househol ds who have
applied in the past for skinmmng, we are
wor ki ng closely with social services
districts to make sure that they are
appropriately inplenmenting the new ability
that we do have to reinburse famlies and
i ndi vidual s for lost Public Assistance as
wel | as SNAP benefits.

And |'m pl eased to say that to date

we' ve been able to rei mburse $20 mllion back

to lowincone famlies and individuals, and
we want to nmake sure that anyone who is
subject to skinmng is able to get a
rei nbursenent to the extent that we're
permtted to under |aw.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN M TAYNES: And is the

l[imt of two reinbursenents per year
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preventing people who had their noney stolen
from bei ng rei nbursed?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN:  So there
isalimt on -- for each househol d, that
t hey can get reinbursenment up to two tines
per year, with each of those issuances
equaling up to two nonths of benefits.

You know, we woul d hope through nore
education and information that those
househol ds woul d do everything they can to
protect their benefits, and we are rolling
out a change next nonth that we will strongly
publicize and | ook for help fromall the
| egi sl ative menbers to al so i nform
constituents about the ability to i Mmedi ately
| ock their card when it's not in use.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN M TAYNES: Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: (I naudi bl e.)

SENATOR MURRAY: Thank you, Chair.

Thank you, Conmm ssioners, for being
here. | hope this is working okay.

Cormm ssioner M| es-CGustave, this is
mai nly for you. You and | |ast year, we

t al ked about childcare and we tal ked about
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col |l aboration with the business conmunity.
Has t here been any of that since | ast year?
Have you been working with the business
community as far as childcare and sol utions?
ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
Yes, Senator. W're very excited about
several of our prograns.
So currently avail able, open today, is
a tax credit for enployers who have created
childcare slots for their enployees. W
rolled out the Enployer Supported Child Care
Tax Credit programin early January. The
wi ndow unfortunately is short, so
applications close today. So businesses
i stening, please submt your applications.
And those are for tax credits for
busi nesses who have created infant and
toddl er slots in the 2023 tax year, they can
get a tax credit. W do anticipate it
openi ng agai n next year for the 2024 tax
year. So we hope that's a good incentive for
enpl oyers to start supporting childcare slots
for their enpl oyees.

W're also in the mdst of rolling our
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what we affectionately call the Tri-Care
program-- the Tri-Share program but it's
secondly the Enpl oyer Supported Child Care
Pilot. So that is a programin |ast year's
budget where we will -- and there's going to
be an RFP and a facilitator to nanage the
pilot. But we're hoping to solicit enployers
who are going to support and significantly
pay for a portion of childcare slots. |If
they pay a third, the state will pay a third,
and that enployee will pay a third.

So those are the types of business
integrations that we're hoping to continue to
roll out.

SENATOR MURRAY: That's great.

And now when you say chil dcare slots,
what exactly do you nean?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
Just a spot for a child.

SENATOR MURRAY: But for specific
facilities or opening facilities in their
business? O is it optional?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE

It's optional for the -- for both prograns,
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actually. |If enployers created a program and
t hey expanded infant and toddl er seats, if
they're partnering with a nonprofit provider
and they're paying for those -- slots, 'l
say, then they may be eligible for a tax
credit.

For the Enpl oyer Supported Child Care
Pilot, they can create their own or partner
with a nonprofit. Either way, an entity
needs to be a licensed childcare provider, so
it's nost likely a partnership with an
exi sting provider in their region or
nei ghborhood. And then if they earmark those
slots for their enployees, that will trigger
the tri-share

SENATOR MURRAY: That's great.

Now, has there been any effort also --
we tal ked about some of the |arger enployers
maybe opening up childcare facilities within
their conpany. But sone of the pushback was,
you know, a |lot of regulations, a lot of red
tape, a lot of things. Has there been an
effort to kind of streamine those efforts?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE:  So
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| can't say we've been streaniining, but |
will say that we've been supporting potential
licensees. |If you' re |ooking to open a
childcare, we are aware that we have a
capacity issue. There's a suppl y-buil di ng
division in ny office, and so they're | ooking
to partner with whoever needs to -- who wants
to partner to open childcare. That worked
real |y hand-in-hand during our Desert

Program and we hel ped fol ks who woul d not
have normal |y been able to open childcare
programns through that grant program

But day-to-day business is hel ping
provi ders create and sustain that network of
chil dcare.

SENATOR MURRAY: That's great.

Now, one other issue that was brought
to my attention was when getting sonme of the
chil dcare assi stance, there were some
stipulations like certain -- with, you know,
close to hone, childcare close to hone. Sone
were saying wouldn't it be easier to use |ike
a voucher systemto pick which childcare

conmpany you want to use -- naybe closer to
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wor k, nmaybe meke it easier for soneone that's
goi ng to worKk.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
Ri ght .

SENATOR MURRAY: Are we working on
flexibility there as well?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE:  So
a primary tenet of our childcare program and
pronoted by the federal governnment, is famly
choice. So famlies should always be able to
choose where they send their child.

There are sone jurisdictions that have
very strict processes that may or may not be
funded by federal childcare dollars, but
t hose prograns funded by federal childcare
dollars are required to give famly choice.

SENATOR MURRAY: (Ckay, thank you.

That m ght have been the problem it m ght
have been a | ocal issue there.

Because | al so want to say thank you
for all you' re doing, and | also want to
t hank the Governor for being very open to
wor ki ng and finding solutions. So | really

appreci ate your efforts.
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ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
Thank you. Thank you, Senator.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI : Assenbl ynmenber
But t enschon.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN BUTTENSCHON:  Thank you,
Comm ssioners. | echo the previous conments
of ny coll eagues on the inportance of
after-school, childcare, and Early
| ntervention prograns.

| represent the Utica-Rone area, and
I"'ma lifelong resident of that district.
And unfortunately | have to tell you that we
buried another child |ast week due to gun
vi ol ence.

This is sonething that -- we've had
over a hundred youth and gun vi ol ence
incidents. In fact, a resource officer was
shot in the head by a child on a school
property.

These incidents are new to ny
district. This is not sonething that ny

comunity is used to seeing. The parents of
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the child that have used guns are asking for
secure, safe rehabilitative environments for
their children to live in. They'd pled with
nme that they can't have their children in
their hones at this tine due to concerns of
ot her children and vi ol ence.

You testified that you had the
i ncentives of diversion placenent, and |
appreciate that. But every child is
different. How will you address the question
that the parents are asking of you?

| also -- I will finish with ny
guestions, because | know you possibly won't
have tine to answer and I will have to get
themin witing, so | appreciate that.

Al so, every child is different. And
we' re facing many chal | enges of dual
di agnosis. \Wat new prograns do you see that
you wi Il develop with your fell ow
commi ssioners? And again, | ask "new
prograns” because this is not working in the
district | represent.

And finally, can you advise ne of the

i nportance of the two-on-one system as this
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is sonething that we have seen within the
comunity that collectively brings us
t oget her.

And one question for Conmm ssioner
@uinn. Did your office have any input on the
cities that will be receiving the
Anti-Poverty Initiative funding? Because
poverty is overwhelmng in ny district over
the last few years, and we weren't
considered. And we have to work at this
holistically and collectively.

| thank you for all the work that you
and your teamdo, as | know | see them here
and | -- | do reach out quite frequently. So
| know you answer. But | have to talk to
t hese parents. And we can't have this.

Thank you.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE: |
can go first. |'mnot sure how nuch tine
we' |l have, Assenbl ywoman Buttenschon, but |
appreci ate your coments, your sentinments. |
know we work very closely with you. You're
very passi onate about your counties, and we

are as well. So we know that gun viol ence
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has been a problemand crinme is a problem
Specifically | eaving out of COVID, we've seen
a higher need for nore prograns. W can talk
nore specifically about those initiatives.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Senator C eare.

SENATOR CLEARE: Good nor ni ng.

My question is simlar to the previous
guestion regarding the poverty --
anti-poverty funding for Rochester, Syracuse
and Buffalo. And I'm happy that we are
| ooki ng at anti-poverty, especially childhood
poverty.

But why are there no simlar prograns
for other poverty-stricken areas of the state
i ke South Central Brooklyn, South Bronx,

Harl en? There are other pockets of poverty.
And | just want to understand what was the
strategy, what was the thinking in not

i ncl udi ng those areas.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN:  Ri ght.

I ncl udi ng these areas, they were chosen --
these are just areas of the state that by

many neasures consistently rank to have very
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high rates of child poverty, both in the
state and in the nation. That does not mnean
that there are not other parts of our state

t hat have rates of chil dhood poverty that are
absol utel y unaccept abl e.

W will work, you know, based on the
appropriation that has passed, to inplenent
and inplement in a way that hopefully we can
learn things that are relevant that can then
be extended statew de. You know, this is one
item one investnent. It doesn't nean that
chi | dhood poverty is not sonething that needs
to be addressed at a statew de | evel.

| would refer back to our
Child Poverty Reduction Advisory Council.
This year the council will make specific
recomrendati ons to the Governor and the
Legislature on efforts that we could
i npl enent as a state that will reduce
chi | dhood poverty in our state by no |ess
than 50 percent. W believe we can do it.

We believe child poverty is sonething that
can be solved. It requires thought and it

requires investnment, and we | ook forward to
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sharing those recommendations with all of you
at the end of this year.

SENATOR CLEARE: Well, | just want to
urge the state to | ook at these other areas,
because there has been a | ong history.
There's a lot of data. And we know that we
need -- it relates -- child poverty rel ates
to crine, it relates to many ot her things
that are existing in those areas as well. So
| think we should have a nore gl obal approach

to anti-poverty.

The other question | have -- and of
course | want to tal k about after-school. W
need after-school. Across the board, we

don't have enough. Qur children need
after-school. So I'll lend ny voice to that
as wel | .

But the other thing I want to ask
about is the nonprofit human services workers
who go out every day to provide services for
New Yor kers and have not seen the raise that
they need to take care of their own famlies.
So this year we have a budget that again

| eaves out a nunmber of state human service
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work -- contracts, in the COLA | anguage,
under OTDA and ot her agenci es.

What can we do to bridge the gap?

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: And you wi Il have
to answer that question offline.

SENATOR CLEARE: And she'll send it to

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: O put it in
witing so all of us can share it.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
Sur e.

SENATOR CLEARE: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI : Assenbl ynenber
Chandl er - Wat er man.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN CHANDLER- WVATERVAN: Al |
right. Thank you, Commi ssioner. Alittle
troubl e there.

So I"'mgoing to tal k about
after-school, |ike ny coll eagues, about the
after-school program particularly Enpire
State After School Program which as a
nonprofit exec | had the privilege to be at
the inception of that program

And our district, predom nantly Bl ack
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and brown -- East Flatbush and al so parts of
Canarsie, Brownsville and Crown Heights. So
you know that there's a big uptick when it
comes to gun viol ence.

We created a task force that basically
came up with, from education and public
safety, is that we need nore after-school
progranms. Right? So it was severely, as you
know, underfunded, 150,000 for 110 kids.
There's delays when it comes to the funding
process. | know that the CBOs have not
received their noney for the | ast school
year. And they're doing anot her school year,
and | don't think they received those funds
ei t her.

There is a delay in -- on
di spossession, delay in Glaxy for the school
to admnister, for staff to support. And
then also it's due to expire, and we need an
extensi on, an expansion, with also nore
funds.

So | just want to nake sure that how
do we work out these issues that inpact this

comuni ty- based organi zation through direct
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servi ces, which of course inpacts our -- all
the staff being paid a |iving wage, our
parents, our youth. And it causes a whol e
bunch of issues that of course escal ates on
t he ground with gun viol ence.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
Thank you, Assenbl ywonan. | appreciate that
guesti on.

So | would agree. OCFS is delighted
to be one of the inplenenters of our
chil dcare after-school prograns in New York
State. W are only one of, right, a
couple -- New York State SED adm ni sters sone
after-school, but our Enpire and Advant age
prograns are obviously adm ni stered by OCFS.

So we are, as indicated in the budget,
conmbi ning those to strengthen them So we do
recogni ze that we've -- we had i ssues coni ng
out of COVID. It was difficult because there
were no kids in schools, and we changed our
contracts to a different type of budget. It
was difficult for our nonprofit providers to
adhere to those new rul es; we then changed it

back.
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So there's been a | ot of ups and downs
for the conmunity. W want to save all that
stress. In conbining them it streaniines
the requirenments, it streamines the
adm ni strative burden on both the CBGs and
OCFS. Again, we are still in the process of
finalizing the RFP, because we do know it's
expiring. W have every intention to let an
RFP out so that in the next school year fol ks
know who wi || receive those after-schoo
contracts.

But we are focused on strengthening
t he program and meki ng sure that those
provi ders are sustai ned.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN CHANDL ER- WATERMAN:
kay. We want to nmake sure there's not a | ot
of red tape with the RFP. But we can talk
and work together on how we can make sure --
make sure the CBGs are in the process of
figuring out how that could work best for
themto procure the funds. Because they have
to pay their staff, and it's going to be a
probl em on t he ground.

So | look forward to continue talking
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to you about it.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
Happy to do that.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: (M c of f;

i naudi bl e.)

SENATOR BROUK: Ckay. Hi, good
nor ni ng, Conm ssioners. Thanks for joining
us today.

Today we've heard a | ot about the
anti-poverty funding, so |I'mactually going
to continue with that trend.

| not only am proud to represent the
City of Rochester, but | also ama
bor n- and- bred Rochesterian nyself. And |
al ways want to say there's amazing things
about Rochester. | amso proud to have been
rai sed there and certainly instilled with the
values of nmy famly there, and a | ot of
i ncredi bl e things have cone out of Rochester.

Unfortunately, though, nost of the
headl i nes that we see these days are about
things |ike poverty, things |ike higher rates
of violence. So much so that |ast year ny

of fice took on the task of really digging
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into why we saw sone of these correl ations of
hi gher violence than -- it felt like nore
vi ol ence than other places in the state, and
hi gher poverty.

And one of the things that we
identified is that if you | ook at the
rel ati onship between Al M fundi ng year over
year and rate of violence in especially
upstate cities, you see that Rochester has
been chronically underfunded when conpared to
its neighboring cities, and continuously has
hi gher rates of violence. And we know -- you
know, anyone | ooking at those two things
knows that there is an intersection and a
rel ati onship.

So while we're obviously pleased to
see that there was $25 mllion allotted
t owards Rochester of this anti-poverty
funding, |I'mal so concerned. Because
according to our report, to be on par with a
city like Buffalo, it would be $34 mllion
annual ly for Rochester. W're |ooking at
$25 million in one year.

And so certainly concerns about what
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we can do in one year to alleviate nassive
anounts of not just poverty, but really
concentrated. And | want to just quickly say
to have concentrated poverty and to grow up
inthat, it nmeans that that's all you see.

So to be a young person, all you see is other
hungry young people. Right? Wen you go to
school, all you see is overcrowded

cl assroons. That's all you know. And we
know that that affects your outcone.

So ny question to you is, how did you
| and on the 25? And are there thoughts
around how to create sustained fundi ng?

ACTI NG COM SSIONER GUINN: So with
respect to the anounts, | nean, those were
based on, you know, decisions that
Governor Hochul and her teammade in terns of
how to invest.

| think 25 mllion is a significant
anount of noney, but it's certainly --
because it is one-tinme, we need to nake sure
that those investnents are done in a way that
we can learn sonething fromit and/or make a

significant difference for children, very
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specific famlies in those areas of
concentrated poverty.

You know, we agree, we certainly
understand the trauma that poverty creates
for children and creates for famlies. And
that's why | think as a state we all need to
do everything we can to reduce chil dhood
poverty.

You know, | would point to, in
addition to the specific investnent, you
know, so nany other things that are -- as
part of this budget, are inportant in terms
of --

SENATOR BROUK: Sorry, just -- to not
{unintelligible} but really quickly, | just
need to know, are there limtations on what
muni ci palities could use this for? And
you'll have to wite that to ne.

ACTI NG COW SSIONER GUINN:  It's very
flexible, and we'd be happy to work with
t he counti es.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER:  Assenbl y.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.
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Assenbl ynmenber Maher.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAHER:  Thank you.

Hel l o. Two questi ons.

Specifically, one is on youth
enpl oynment. | see that the budget has
increased, and | just want to say |'ve had
personal |y experience with this programwth
several of the counties that | represent in
t he Hudson Vall ey, and they are doing
tremendous work. We are working with |ocal
youth and | ocal famlies and school districts
to identify the youth and their famlies who
could work in these jobs. But we are | osing
some opportunity with the incone threshol d.

And just |ike we've seen that
t hreshol d increase for childcare services and
assi stance, would it be possible and is it
part of the conversations in the future to
i ncrease that for the youth enploynent, both
year-round and in the sunmer, to catch nore
youth who are just at that cliff of
eligibility?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN:  The funds

that we are using to support this program are
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federal Tenporary Assistance to Needy
Fam |ies, and so that does have a limt of
t he 200 percent of poverty.

Certainly would be willing to work
with you and see if there is any flexibility
there. The federal governnent has actually
kind of hinted in a different direction that
they're going to be a bit nore strict with
respect to inconme limts for that program
that states woul dn't have any opportunity to
exceed the 200 percent. But we certainly,
you know, are glad to see that you've
recogni zed the positive inpacts that these
prograns have. And we certainly encourage
all areas to really conduct outreach to reach
t he needi est -- the neediest youth in the
counti es.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAHER: |Is there an
opportunity to use a different pot of funding
fromthe state to increase that threshold,
especially if the feds are going in the
opposite direction?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN:  So at this

point we are solid in terns of the federal
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200 percent of poverty level. In terms of --
it would require, obviously, a different
fundi ng source to be identified.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAHER: Yes. (Ckay, that's
something | would advocate for, just on the
record.

The second part is, do you audit these
progranms? | know that sone counties do it on
their own and sonme contract with nonprofits.
Just seeing how we're maxi m zing every single
federal dollar, what is that audit process
i ke? And would | ove to have access to sone
of those statistics to see if our nodel in
some counties work where naybe they don't
work in others.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN:  Right. W
do. W go out and visit prograns, many
progranms on an annual basis to get a sense of
how t hey' re using the funds, the popul ations
that they're targeting. And obviously we do
| ook at the cost per, and do everything we
can to keep adnministrative costs associ ated
wi th the program down.

There's a | ot of variation anong the
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counties both in ternms of the type of jobs
that are available and also the length of the
program So that al so makes a difference.

But we do performreviews of those prograns,
and we'd be happy to talk with you about what
we' ve found.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAHER:  |'d | ove to know
whether it's an audit that's available via
Excel. Just the statistics on how nany
counties are using all of the noney, is there
an allotnent fromyear to year that they're
not hitting because they're not being able to
sign up the youth because of the threshol d.
|"d love to be able to quantify that, both in
my district and statewide, to see if there's
things that we can do to address it.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN:  Right. |
mean, by and | arge counties are spending
every single penny of the Sumrer Youth
Enpl oynment Program f undi ng.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAHER:  And even the
year-round, the newy established year-round?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN:  The new y

established year-round just started, so it's




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

124

yet to be seen. But | would expect simlar
out cones because they're very -- you know,
they' re not only neani ngful prograns but
they' re also very popul ar prograns for youth
t hroughout the state.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAHER: | coul dn't agree
nor e.

| definitely want to pivot now to
childcare. So | know that the m nimum wage
i ncrease, the $2 per hour, there are a | ot of
things in here that speak to those that are
provi di ng enpl oynent for childcare providers.
But there are a |lot of childcare providers
that are hindered because of sonme red tape
and bureaucracy that does exist in the State
of New York, or so they say. And | just
wanted to talk a little bit about increasing
rati os and what that process is like.

So if you have an energency -- a
facility closed and there's an energency and
there's weeks before parents can find a
chil dcare provider, some of them have to
drive an hour to and fromwork. But if there

was a process in place to easily allow,
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tenporarily, the ratio to change for existing
provi ders -- how are those conversations
going with your office and are there any
recommendat i ons bei ng nade?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE:  So
| think those conversations are ongoing. And
t hank you for your question, Assenbl yman.

You may know that we were able to
wai ve sone of our regul ations during COVID.
And so to the extent that some of those
wai vers m ght be hel pful to the provider
comunity on a nore pernanent basis, we're
open to those di scussions.

So if you have not gotten an answer or
you think the issue has not been resol ved,
we' re happy to contact you.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAHER:  Fantastic. Thank
you, and thank you bot h.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Qur next questioner is Senator Tom
O Mar a.

SENATOR O MARA: (Good norning. Thank
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you for being here, and your testinony.

Commi ssi oner M| es-Custave,
regarding -- there have been a coupl e of
guestions already on the Advantage and Enpire
State After School programs. Wat -- ny
understanding is that the RFPs are not out
yet. Wen do you expect the RFPs to cone
out? And it's also nmy understandi ng that
many agencies still have not been notified of
awar ds under the 2024 prograrns.

What's the status? And when can
peopl e expect to see these cone out?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
Thank you, Senator, for the question.

So we are excited about our new
conbi ned after-school program The RFP is
al nost finalized. W do anticipate it being
rel eased in the next several -- |I'll say
weeks, to jinx nyself. But hopefully really
soon. W do understand that providers need
to know what their plan will be for next
Septenber. So we know we're in a limted
time frane here. But that is in the works.

Wth respect to your question about
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previ ous paynments, | know we've had sone
chal l enges with those iterations of

contracts. So many of our providers who are
in the mddle of a contract amendment have to
cl ose out that contract year before they get
al l ocations or before they can even claimfor
the foll owi ng year.

So we unfortunately have a | ot of
provi ders who we call constantly. W have a
t eam here working on naking sure there is no
backl og of those after-school contracts. And
we give very personal technical assistance to
all of our contract providers.

Some contractors just don't have the
capacity to continue, right, to finalize one
year to then nove on to the next. So we're
trying to work with the providers who are
still on our open list, and we track those
very specifically, try to close those
contractors out so they can then nove on to
t he next year's funding.

SENATOR O MARA: (kay. So they can't
even apply until they're closed out?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
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No, |I'mnot saying they can't apply to the
new RFP. But they can't access their
subsequent year's funding until they cl ose
out their previous year.

SENATOR O MARA: (Ckay. WII the
comi ng RFPs, are they going to be -- for what
period of time? A five-year period of tinme?
O what period of time? O just annually?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
"1l get back to you on that. Good questi on.

SENATOR O MARA: (kay. Are there --
ot her than these two prograns, Advantage and
Enpire State After School prograns, are there
any ot her after-school prograns in the budget
that | haven't brought up?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE:  So
we do intend to fund, through sone additional
after-school funding, out-of-school tine for
ol der youth. So we recognize that our
after-school progranms are school - age
childcare, really care for fol ks under 12 --
ki ds under 12. That's our school -age
chil dcare.

We know that there needs to be
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specific focus on mddle school, high school
ki ds, and specific youth devel opnent
programm ng focused on those children after
school or out of school, during that tine.

So we do plan to create a programand to fund
in a couple of regions a very specific

out - of -school -tine pilot for ol der youth.

But that's in progress.

SENATOR O MARA: Is -- with the tight
time frane it seens to be ready for the start
of the next school year. |s there any
possibility of extending the current
contracts?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
Well, the new RFP will be ready for the next
school year. Progranms will have all ocations
for next school year. And we're hoping to
have the ol der youth out-of-school-tine
prograns be ready for next year as well.

SENATOR O MARA: (kay. Thank you

And perhaps for both of you, just in
general with regards to the $2.4 billion
all ocation for the mgrant crisis in New York

City, all these prograns we tal ked about with
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you today, are all those prograns al so
avai lable to mgrants, so in addition to the
2.4 billion that's allocated in the budget?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GU NN: So -- |
nmean, every programis eligibility criteria
differs. But with respect -- | nean,
mgrants -- sone mgrants are eligible for
Publ i c Assistance benefits and some are not.
And it does depend on their status. W have
expanded the -- you know, |ast year there was
an expansion with respect to Public
Assi stance to expand the numnber of
noncitizens who are eligible, but clearly
many of the individuals will not be eligible
for Public Assistance.

You know, the Governor's focus --

SENATCR O MARA: What kind of -- those
that are eligible, do you have an estimate of
t he nunbers? And, nore inportantly, what the
i mpact is on these progranms for New York
citizens --

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN:  Yeah. |
nmean, at the nonent the nunbers who are

receiving Public Assistance, it's not a |arge




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

131

nunber. In New York City we are looking to
see the future, but our focus also is on
hel pi ng them secure work, |egal enploynent.

SENATOR O MARA: Thank you

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

Assenbl ynenber Byrnes.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BYRNES: Thank you very
much. Al right, looks Iike we're up and
rolling now.

| want to thank both of you acting
commi ssioners for being here today.

My question, though, will be for
Acting Comm ssioner M| es-Qustave. And that
guestion is about the Raise the Age portion
of the budget.

You know, | spent nost of ny life in
the crimnal justice field as an assi stant
district attorney, even as a juvenile
prosecutor. And |I've spent a lot of tine
with nmy constituents on these issues,

i ncl udi ng uni on nenbers in the Monroe County

Detention Center. And what they have
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collectively told nme, and which | see all the
time in the news, is that they do absolutely
feel that this Raise the Age has caused teen
vi ol ence to increase, carjackings, repeated
of fenders, including nultiple tines, and no
consequences.

There's general outrage in ny
community. There's al so outrage throughout
the entire state. The Governor prom sed in
her State of the State and in her budget
address, she proni sed us that her nunber-one
priority was the safety of New Yorkers. So
as we |look at this budget, what | see is that
Rai se the Age is not helping. In fact, |
believe it's hurting people and it's creating
nore victins.

How can we start working on any form
of the solution when the Executive Budget
indicates that it's going to naintain the
sanme funding as |ast year and that there wll
be no changes to existing services? How do
we get noving forward when it appears we're
stagnant, and stagnant is hurting us?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
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Thank you, Assenbl ywonan, for that question.
| do understand your concern. | read
t he sane sensationalized press that's out,
right, that we all do, tal king about Raise
the Age and tal ki ng about the failure of
Rai se the Age. But | think we all need to
bring it back to the intent of Raise the Age.
And again, New York State was not unique in
this respect. W were one of the last two
states in the country to raise the age of
crimnal responsibility to 16 and 17. So we
were behind the eight-ball there.

So we are trying to save our children,
and not, right, confine themin adult
prisons. W know the research on brain
sci ence and what that means for youth who
experience adverse chil dhood experiences.
They can't make decisions in the ways that
adults can. These are children, and we
should treat themlike children. But we
shoul d al so be sure to have the supports and
services to advance their devel opnent.

And so | do know that counties are

putting alternatives to detention and
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prevention plans in their country Raise the
Age plans, sending themto OCFS and the
Executive, and we are approving those pl ans.
So I'd encourage you to go back to your
counties potentially to see what the counties
are doing with respect to those prevention
and alternative to detention prograns,
because the budget reappropriates

$250 million every year to support those
interventions.

And | know we're also -- we're
colliding with the aftereffects of COvID, and
we have -- we're seeing the nental health of
our youth decline. So the Raise the Age and
the increase in census that we're seeing in
detention and operated facilities now al so
coi ncided with CovID and --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN BYRNES: Thank you.
Thank you, Comm ssioner.

ACTI NG COWM SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE: - -
we know we shoul d provi de nore services.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN BYRNES: My fol | ow up,
then, would be it wasn't that nany years ago

where we had maybe 12-, 13-, 14-year-olds at
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the detention center who may have stolen a
car, and they were getting services and
t hi ngs of that nature.

And now we have at one point, alittle
over a year ago, there were 10 or 11
basically adult males all accused of nurder
at the detention center -- because they were
all shaving, they had children of their own
comng to visit themat the children's
detention center.

And the staff was afraid. They have
no ability to defend thensel ves. The whol e
dynam cs of what should be crimnal justice
has changed, and | believe not for the
better.

Thank you, Comm ssi oner.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

| think I'"mthe next Senator before we
get to chairs having second rounds.

So thank you both for being here.

And Conmi ssioner -- sorry, | don't
want to call you by your first nanes --
Comm ssi oner @Guinn, we had tal ked about this,

but then in the New York Tines yesterday
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there was an article about how the rate by
HRA of approving eligibility for benefits had
actually been plumreting, not going up --
during our conversation, | think you were
under the inpression perhaps sone progress
was being made. So | just have to ask, and |
know ot hers have brought this up, what nore

can we be doing to make sure that the City of

New York -- and again, | don't know ot her
counties' statistics. | knowny city's
aren't going the right direction. | nmean,

they are just shocking: 15 percent on tine,
that's the rate.

And then, second, tying it into what
nmy col | eague Assenbl yman Hevesi tal ked about
in the beginning, if we were paying a fair
share of the adm nistrative costs to our
| ocal DSSs, m ght we actually see inproved
ability to nmeet our targets?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN:  Thank you,
Senat or .

Wth respect to the perfornance by
New York City and other social services

districts around the state, | believe when we
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wer e speaking we were focused at that tinme on
timeliness. And we have definitely
significant inprovenent throughout 2023 with
respect to tinmeliness in New York Gty and

ot her pl aces.

We're not where we need to be, but we
are taking steps in the right direction.

That is due to targeted efforts by counties
to hire. | think that the HELP program t hat
Conmi ssi oner Custave-M |l es referenced al so
certainly has been a benefit to counties in
ternms of easing their ability to bring new
staff on. W know 38 counties have
participated in that and been able to hire a
t housand workers just since that program was
initiated.

So with respect to the denial rate,
which | think was the focus of the Tines
story yesterday, you know, again, we have
| ooked at it. We will |ook nore deeply at
t he reasons for denials to nake sure those
are appropriate denials. W have spoken with
| eadership in New York Gty about the issue.

They have | ooked into the matter to al so nake
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sure that those denials are appropriate.
Definitely need to do better there.

Wth respect to hiring, | think that
any additional funding to counties to help
themhire is always hel pful. However, in
this particular instance we are not
necessarily hearing that counties are unable
to hire due to | ack of budget authority to
hire. It is really tying back to the
significant workforce chall enges that
everyone is facing.

So things put in place to help that,
including the civil service reforns -- | know
some counties have made changes in terns of
the requirenments for workers to | oosen those
up while still maintaining, you know, a
hi gh-qual ity workforce, and then al so sone
limted areas where they have been able to
provi de increased wages for staff to do this
wor K.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

And Commi ssioner M| es-Custave, so |
j ust was hearing about the Raise the Age

concerns froma col | eague from ot her
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countries rmuch farther north of New York
City. So | actually believe in New York City
we nostly feel Raise the Age has actually
been quite effective. And | think we're
seeing a decrease in juvenile crime -- |I'm
sure not fast enough, I'msure still too
high. But | just don't know, is there an
exceptional problemof an increase in
juvenile crime in the counties that that
Assenbl ynenber represents?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE:  So
| would defer to ny coll eagues at DCIS for
the official stats.

But | know in discussions with our
partners we know that overall crinme has
decreased, juvenile crine has decreased, gun
vi ol ence has decreased. | do think people
are still reeling fromthat post-COVID spike.
But we've invested noney in our services and
| do believe we're back to our original
intention of making sure that we support and
serve our young people in age-appropriate
situations -- facilities.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

140

much.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
You' re wel cone.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECGER: | cede the rest
of ny tine.

Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

Assenbl ymenber Gonzal ez- Roj as.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJAS:  Thank
you for being here, Conmm ssioners.

As a proud nenber of the Mom Squad,
want to thank you for the Sunmer EBT
inclusion. That's sonmething that -- | wote
a letter in Decenber, when we were up agai nst
that deadline. So as nmons, we really
appreciate that -- that inclusion.

Conmmi ssi oner, there's a recent DOH
report that said one in four people were
struggling with food insecurity in New York
Are you aware of the mninmmbenefit for SNAP
for an individual ?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN: | believe
peopl e can receive a benefit that is as | ow

as about $40 per nonth, but nost are 23 --
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ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- RQIAS:  It's
$23 per nonth.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN: -- $23 per
nmonth. That certainly is not the typica
benefit, but it is a |low benefit when we're
tal ki ng about a supplenment to hel p people
pur chase food.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJIAS: Do you
think that's sufficient to address the food
insecurity that we're facing in the state?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN: Overal |
the SNAP programis a premer programin
ternms of addressing food insecurity. But in
t he event those benefits coul d be increased,
we woul d support those increases.

And, you know, at the federal |evel |
know sone changes have been nmade, and at
least | can say it is a programthat is
i ndexed each year. But certainly famlies
coul d use nore.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJIAS:  New
Jersey recently increased their rate to $95 a
nonth. So | have a bill that woul d increase

the rate to $100 a nonth, and | hope that
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we' d have the Executive's support.

Last year we funded the Nutrition
Qutreach and Education Program NOEP, which
is vital in ensuring that communities
understand the SNAP program and are able to
enroll. W funded it at $5.45 nmillion, and
that included a $2 mllion additional funding
fromthe Legislature, right, to support this
out r each.

So if it's not restored, we're
concerned about | osing NCEP workers in places
t hat were addressing sone of the |argest food
i nsecurity chall enges, including Buffalo,
Rochester, Syracuse. So |'m concerned seeing
t he additional add that we fought for not
i ncluded in the budget. So do you know why
t hat noney was not included, given the high
rates of food insecurity in New York?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN:  So the
fact that the Executive Budget does not carry
forward a | egislative add for next year is
not unique to this program and certainly
does not in any way indicate a |l ack of

support for NCEP. W too believe that the
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NCEP programis key to hel ping make sure
i ndi vidual s are aware of the benefits that
t hey can receive and hel pi ng them access
t hose benefits.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJAS: | n j ust
nmy | ast few seconds, to clarify, does
New York State allow us to replace ski mred
public benefits, New York State | aw?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN:  Yes. A
New York State | aw passed -- thankfully --
| ast year does allow us to replace benefits
that are stolen

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJIAS:  Thank
you.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

For the three-mnute chair foll ow up,
Senat or Brisport.

SENATOR BRI SPORT: Thank you.

| have a few nore childcare questions
for you, Comm ssioner.

First, being that we've heard the
figure, the $7 billion figure, nentioned a
fewtines at this hearing. | just want to

confirmthat that was an anpunt that was
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prom sed over four years. And if you could
just confirmhow much of that 7 billion has
been spent since it was prom sed, and how
much is left to go.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
You want me to do math, Senator?

SENATOR BRI SPORT: Yes, please.

(Laughter.)

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE:  So
we can give you the exact anmount, but | know
there was over a billion | ast year,

1.9 billion this year. And then the rest.

But we'll get back to you with the
speci fic breakout in the financial plan.

SENATOR BRI SPORT: Thank you.

|'"d also like to ask a foll ow up
guestion about the differential paynent
rates. Your testinony nentioned an enhanced
paynent rate for providers that are
accredited by nationally recognized childcare
organi zations. | know earlier you nentioned
a specific price tag fromthe Executive
around decoupling, around 140 mllion.

|s there a price tag for the




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

145

differential paynent rates? And is it nore
than 140 or less or --

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE:  So
not yet. | know we're still working up the
details of that differential rate. But we
are | ooking towards quality progranm ng, so
trying to incentivize providers to increase
quality in some way. So that is our effort
to do so. But those specific details have
not been negoti ated yet.

SENATCOR BRI SPORT:  Ckay.

And | also want to talk a little bit
about the workforce retention grants from
| ast year. |It's my understanding that one of
the bi g reasons why the funding wasn't spent
is we were hearing that the governnent
support for workforce retention was difficult
to access. And another reason was because
there was an overestimate fromthe CGovernor's
of fi ce about how many peopl e woul d
participate in the retention grants.

The wor kforce suppl enents were
decreased because of this overestimte. So |

just have a two-part question. Wiy was the
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estinmate so far off the mark as it was? And
when the Covernor's office | earned the
estimates were off the mark, why didn't we

i ncrease the anount we were giving to workers
| ast year?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE:  So
t hank you, Senator. |I'mnot sure | would
characterize last year's programin that way.
| would say that we allocated 500 mllion for
wor kf orce stabilization grants, but it is up
to that provider to apply for these grants.

We built new systens to push this
pandem ¢ funding out. So | don't know if
it's because of the pace. | have not heard
that. But |'m happy to get sone specific
f eedback fromyou on sone of those reasons
t hat you' ve heard.

We are using the remai ni ng pandem c
funding in this year's budget to then
facilitate additional workforce grants. So
the 280, that's the remaining pool of
pandem ¢ funds.

SENATOR BRI SPORT: But given that we

are rolling over, was there any consi deration
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of an additional paynment |ast year to
wor kf orce?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
|"mnot sure if | understand your question.

SENATOR BRI SPORT: Just as opposed to
rolling it over to this year, having stuff
| eft over.

"1l followup with you another tinmne.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
We' Il get back, yes.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI : Assenbl ynenber
Grace Lee.

ASSEMBLYWOVMAN LEE: Good nor ni ng.

| have sonme questions for
Commi ssi oner Gui nn.

| want to thank the Governor for
hel ping to secure $391 million in the budget
| ast year for the Emergency Rental Assistance
Program As of Novenber we had di sbursed --
the state had di sbursed about $94.8 million
hel pi ng 14, 863 househol ds.

| wanted to know if you have any
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updat es on di sbursenments as of this January.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN:  And you
are referring to the Enmergency Rental
Assi st ance Program proper?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LEE: Yes, ERAP

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN:  Ckay. In
terms of total paynments out the door for the
entire program we have di sbursed about
$3.4 billion to support paynents to --

293, 000 paynents to property owners on behal f
of | owincone tenants.

W are very pleased with the
addi tional funds that were included in |ast
year's budget that did enable us to al so
start processing |last year the paynents to
househol ds whose rents are subsi di zed.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN LEE: Do you have any
updat es on that particular pot of noney and
how much of that has been di sbursed?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN:  Right. So
with all the noney that's available for this
program including those funds, we have about
$180 million left to be distributed.

Wth respect to subsidi zed househol ds,
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of the total distributed to date, about
188 m |l lion has been distributed to
subsi di zed househol ds, and nost of the
applications that we have in-house that
remain to be paid are associated with
subsi di zed househol ds.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LEE: G eat.

Have you had any chal | enges pushi ng
t he noney, getting the noney out to -- or
processi ng applications?

ACTI NG COWM SSI ONER GUI NN: No. |
woul d say that our application process at
this point is pretty snmooth. It is -- you
know, does require a bit of docunentation and
review, but we have been successful in
reaching out to property owners where we do
need additional information, and case
processing is going quite well.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LEE: Al right. W
only have a little bit of time left, but I
wanted to ask about the $2.4 billion that the
Governor has proposed for mgrant assistance.

Can you just give us kind of a general

overvi ew of how you're | ooki ng at
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di stributing that between upstate and
downstate, particularly in New York City, and
t hen kind of the services that you're -- how
that that distribution will |ook?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN:  So the
$2.4 billion that is in the budget to serve
and address the migrant crisis will by and
| arge be spent in New York City, to help
New York City address the crisis.

The vast majority of funds are
associated with tenporary housing so that we
can keep people off the streets, and then
there are al so services for case managenent,
| egal assistance and health itens.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN LEE: Thank you.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

For her three-mnute chair follow up,
Roxanne Per saud.

SENATOR PERSAUD: Thank you.

So for OCFS |'mjust going to ask
general questions, and if you can send us
back the nunbers.

Wth the consolidation for

after-school prograns, can you tell us how
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many students woul d be served by this
consolidation, and could you give us a
br eakdown by counties?

Al so, how many students were
previously served in those prograns, and by
counti es al so.

And will there be an expanded capacity
with the new -- with the consolidation of the
after-school prograns? |f you could just
send us those nunbers.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
kay.

SENATOR PERSAUD: For OTDA, we tal ked
about the increase in SNAP benefits. And
could you tell us when was the last tine
there was an increase?

And as you know, | have | egislation
that was introduced |ast year that would
benefit famlies nore because we woul d of fer
an increase in SNAP benefits of cash
assistance, utility paynents, and index it to
inflation. So could you tell me, you know,
what's your thinking on that?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN: Sur e.
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The SNAP program which derives from
federal statute, is indexed every year. So
it does receive a slight increase intended to
keep up with the cost of food.

The Public Assistance benefits are not
i ndexed and have not been increased in many
years.

SENATOR PERSAUD: Ckay. So, again,
the legislation | ooks to increase that. And
| woul d hope that, you know, both houses and
t he Governor would take that into
consi deration because the people who benefit
greatly fromit, they will benefit because of
t he nunber of increases that they' Il be

receiving. So if we can continue to work on

t hat .

| want to again push on the COLA for
human services. W know -- you know, you
hear ne say it over and over -- we would |ove

to have the COLA across the board, not the
sel ect popul ations that have been receiving
it. And we give the breakdown of every

popul ati on that should, and so we're hoping

that the Governor will include that in the
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final budget this year, and so that the human
service workers will be paid accordingly.

So thank you very nuch

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN:  Thank you,
Senat or .

CHAl R\MOVAN KRUEGER:  Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI : Assenbl ynmenber
Bur di ck.

ASSEMBLYMAN BURDI CK:  Yes, thank you.

This is a question for the acting
conmi ssioner of OTDA. And this relates to
ESH . And as | understand, there's
210 million that's proposed to naintain
operational support for current and new
supportive housing, an unchanged anount from
| ast year.

| have a question with respect to
supportive housing for -- transitional
housi ng for those rel eased from our
correctional facilities. This is sonething
that 1've been grappling with since getting
into the Assenbly. It seens to be an area
that falls between the cracks. HCR handl es

per manent housi ng, they don't handl e
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transi tional housing. DOCCS doesn't have
line itenms for this. And also I'mtroubled
that it's operational support.

|'"d be interested in understandi ng
what OTDA's plans are with respect to this,
and al so whether it m ght consider funding
some conmuni ty-based organi zations |ike
Fortune or others that have been very
successful in this area. Because that can
hel p gui de how we mi ght respond to the
Executive Budget with respect to ESHI

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN: Ri ght,
thank you. And certainly ESH and our HHAP
program that supports the capital devel opnent
of supportive housing provides opportunities
for people who are formerly incarcerated who
are otherwise -- are honeless or are facing
honel essness.

Wth respect to -- | know that the
Depart ment of Corrections and Community
Supervi sion has recently inplenmented sone
transitional prograns --

ASSEMBLYMAN BURDI CK:  Sure, |'m aware
of that. But if you can tell ne what is OIDA
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doing. Are you building new supportive
housi ng?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN: Yes.  Yes.
And we do al so have supportive housing
progranms that are adm ni stered by
organi zati ons such as the Fortune Society,
Gsborne and others who clearly do a really
good job --

ASSEMBLYMAN BURDI CK:  If | rmay
interrupt --

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN:  -- in
supporting this popul ation.

ASSEMBLYMAN BURDI CK: -- because of
[imted time. So is some of that 210 million
actual ly goi ng towards new supportive
housi ng?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN: Yes.  Yes,
the ESHI programis avail able to support new
provi ders every year. And certainly part of
our portfolio --

ASSEMBLYMAN BURDI CK: And as you're
nmentioni ng, with comunity-based
organi zati ons that m ght be providers and

m ght be the devel opers?
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ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN:  Ri ght.
Typically there's a devel oper and then there
is a provider. Oten they're separate and
the providers are often the nonprofit

organi zati ons that have expertise with

serving the specific popul ation being served.

ASSEMBLYMAN BURDI CK:  Great. Thank
you so rmuch

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN: You're
wel cone.

CHAl R\MOVAN KRUEGER:  Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: All right, here
we go. Assenbl ynmenber Lunsford

ASSEMBLYWOMAN LUNSFORD: Thank you so
much.

My question is for Comm ssioner
M| es-Gustave. |'mgoing to ask you sone
guestions about our foster care agencies in

light of the Child Victins Act clains.

As you know, many of our counties' CPS

services are provided by voluntary
not-for-profit service providers. These
foster care agencies serve over

90, 000 children statewi de. And according to
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a recent survey, there's over 800 clains
under the Child Victinms Act against these
services, 40 percent of which have no

i nsurance.

G ven, of course, we care very much
about the victinms of these heinous acts and
t hey deserve every dine of reconpense they
can receive, the reality is that the paynent
of these clainms is going to have a drastic
financial inmpact on these foster care
agencies that are providing a legally
mandat ed gover nnment servi ce.

Is there a plan for what to do in the
case of financial failure for sone of these
or gani zati ons?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
Thank you, Assenbl ywonman Lunsf ord.

So at OCFS we conpletely are aligned
with the intent of the Crine Victinms Act, and
we know that victinms deserve the justice they
seek. At the sane tine we do recognize, in
partnership with our provider comunity, that
there are sone uni nt ended consequences of

this legislation. And nuch of the burden is
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falling on the current conponent of those
provi ders, and their insurance policies, many
of them no | onger have them

So we do recognize this is an issue,
and we're talking with our partners
constantly about potential solutions. So we
agree that the foster care voluntary agency
ecosystemis critical to the service delivery
provi sion of those services for our
popul ation. So we know they are very
inmportant. But we are trying to work with
themto create a sol ution.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUNSFORD: | think this
is one of those circunmstances where not just
for the children who in these foster care
agenci es have di sproportionately experienced
ACEs already -- and being displaced again
woul d be very traumatic -- but also for our
counties who would be left having to pick up
t his energency.

An ounce of prevention is worth a
pound of cure, and | just encourage you to
try to find solutions -- sonme | nmay have

ideas for -- for howto deal with this in a
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way that is proactive and not reactive.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE:

Yes.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUNSFORD:  Thank you
very rmuch

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

Assenbl ynmenber C ark.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN CLARK: Thank you. See,
we're so -- we all work well together.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYWOVAN CLARK: This is to our
OCFS conm ssioner. So good to see you agai n.
| am goi ng back to childcare. Many, nany
guestions; | could be here all day, but |
will abide by nmy tine limt.

First, on presunptive eligibility, we
have heard fromthe feds that their
dollars -- that this is a conpletely useable
formthat we can use their dollars for. Last
year we were -- you know, one of the biggest
i ssues we're seeing both upstate and in

New York City is some |onger and | onger
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waiting times to get approved for childcare
subsi di es.

And given the fact that this can be
the difference between being able to start a
j ob, being able to, you know, put your child
somewher e safe when you do start the job
getting approval for your childcare subsidies
as quickly as possible is really inportant.
We know presunptive eligibility works; it
shoul d actually be increased in terns of the
metrics used.

But if we could get assurances that
the federal dollars -- you know, |ast year we
were able to allow counties to opt in, which
they sort of already can -- and coul d before.
But if we could get assurances that the
federal dollars could be used in that way,
would it be something -- would it be OCFS
| ooking at making it nore of a required way
to approve subsidies so that we could get
t hem out qui cker?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE:  So
t hank you for your question,

Assenbl ywoman d ar k.
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So | know we're | ooking at presunptive
eligibility. And as you nentioned, we nmade
it optional for the districts. And they
woul d be, you know, required to put their
district dollars in if they went through a
process and that famly was in fact not
eligible. So | know we're open to having
conversations about how we continue to nove
down this path to getting better access to
famlies, and | know presunptive eligibility
is away to get famlies nore quickly into
t hat provider --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN CLARK: We have heard it
out of the vice president's nmouth, so | think
we can figure out sonme ways to get there to
make it work for us here in the state.

My last two questions, the cost of
care -- | know Senator Brisport has tal ked a
bit about it. You know, would OCFS support
us noving to that systen? W can nove to it
if we pass it, if we change from narket rates
to cost of care. Wuld OCFS -- you know,
this bill had passed nany years ago, a

previ ous Governor did veto it. But we know
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we have a much nore supportive Governor.

Could we get OCFS's -- you know, would
OCFS be on board to sort of get to the point
where we were able to pass it and actually
make it the rule that we use to set subsidy
rates?

And ny |ast question is on
differential pay. W allow counties a 5 to
15 percent. Wiy not just, at this point, ask
all counties to go to 15 percent? W know
nost do 5 percent. One of the biggest issues
we hear is nights and weekends and
nontraditional hours is the biggest need and
it's why childcare dollars aren't being used.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
Okay. | forgot your first question, but ['1l]
nove to the second one. W'I| get back to
you on all of that.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: That's a great
answer .

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI : Assenbl ynenber
Mankt el ow.
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ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOWN  Here we go.
Thank you.

Comm ssi oner Gui nn, just a couple of
guestions back to the theft of the SNAP
benefits. So you said | think earlier that
an individual could be reinbursed up to two
times, is that correct?

ACTI NG COW SSIONER GUINN: Up to two
times per year, with each instance covering
up to two nonths of benefits.

ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  So in that
situation, if two tinmes doesn't cover it or
it happens again, what happens to the
i ndi vi dual then?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN: W woul d
have no authority to reinburse themfor
addi tional dollars that were stolen
Certainly there are enmergency benefits that
could be issued if they are in fact w thout
food. But we woul d expect the retroactive
benefit -- the replacenent benefits that were
able to provide for their inmediate food
needs.

ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  Ckay. So --
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and you said -- | believe that you said that
you' ve used up to about $20 mllion of
rei mbursenent so far. |Is that correct?

ACTI NG COMW SSI ONER GUI NN: Yes.
We' ve been able to distribute $20 mllion to
repl ace stolen benefits at this point.

ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  So we have the

original 20 mllion plus the other
20 mllion, so now we're at 40 mllion
O that 20 mllion, the rei nbursenent,

where did that cone fronf

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN:  So it
cones fromboth -- if it's SNAP, it cones
fromthe federal governnent, from federa
funds that are authorized to replace stolen
benefits in the manner that we're doing in
New York State.

And if it's Public Assistance dollars,
it comes fromstate, |local or federa
dol | ars, depending on how that Public
Assi stance case is funded.

ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW So it's
possi bl e sone of our |ocal counties would

have to be part of that reinbursenment, is
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t hat correct?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN: Yes. If
it's a safety-net case, the localities do
have a cost associated with those issuances.

ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  And of the
i ndividual s that are actually out there
stealing the benefits, how nany of them have
been caught at this point?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN:  That' s
definitely not sonmething | can speak to.
It's being handl ed by | aw enforcenent.

We have heard cases of individuals

bei ng caught, and certainly hope that they're

al | caught, because it's unconscionabl e.

ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW Is there a
followup fromlaw enforcenent to | et you
know where they are with all that?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUINN: | do not
believe there's any obligation for |aw
enforcenment to keep us informed about their
i nvestigations.

There are tinmes we are providing
information to support investigations.

ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  Ckay, |
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appreciate your time, and thank you for
answering ny questions.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER GUI NN: Ckay.
Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  Absol utely.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: kay, thank you.

| believe, unless |I'mm staken, | wll
be the last to ask questions. And hopefully
this will be an easy one.

But | want to go back to the topic, if
| can, of Raise the Age. So first, | really
appreci ated your answer, Conm ssioner. From
my estimation, Raise the Age is one of the
best prograns, a stunning victory for us in
2017-2018. And it was right on the science,
as you said. It's right for kids. It is
absolutely a great program

And we're taking political hits onit,
and | think there's a reason for that. So
two things | want to address.

So first, one problemthat | want to
identify right off the bat is when that
program was created in 2017-2018, we had a

prior Governor who had a history of being
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angry and nean to the Gty of New York
because he didn't |ike the former mayor.

To date, New York City has still not
recei ved any Rai se the Age noney. So is that
somet hing we can address in the future?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE:  So
t hank you for that, Assenbl yman Hevesi

"' mnot aware that New York City has
submtted a waiver application. Because the
| aw does allow for cities that are beyond the
cap to submt a waiver application if there
i s undue hardship. |1'mnot aware of an
application submtted by New York City, but
happy to review one if they should submt.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Ckay. |
appreciate it.

And now here's the second piece, and |
think this is why this issue, which should
be, again, all of us taking credit for a win
here, has becone a political liability and
we're getting hit on, is because the
mechani sm for Rai se the Age funds goi ng out
t he door renmmins a reinbursenent.

So fromny understanding, if Raise the
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Age had been fully funded every year since

2017-2018, we're close to $800 mllion or a

billion dollars that would have gone out the
door .

We have -- one of ny coll eagues, M ch
Sol ages, has a bill that we will be | ooking

to put into this budget that separates the
capital portion of Raise the Age -- because
you know that's a conponent -- but the other
piece of it, it stops it frombeing a

rei nmbursenent grant and all ows the providers
to get the noney up front. And I think the
reason why we're getting into this trouble is
we' re asking providers to |ay out noney they
just don't have.

So the question for you is, is the
Executive open to changing the dynam c of the
Rai se the Age programnot to be a
rei nmbursenent grant, to be an upfront grant?
And in that way we can get the noney to those
kids, get the noney to those famlies, and
make Raise the Age the programthat it should
be.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER M LES- GUSTAVE
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Thank you, Assenblyman. | would defer to ny
principals on that specific question.

However, | do know that we do need
nore outreach to our counties to make sure
that they're taking full advantage of those
funds of the counties that have Rai se the Age
pl ans. W have approved -- about 39 approved
Rai se the Age plans. So that neans every
county does not have an approved Rai se the
Age pl an.

So | do think that, right, there's
nore noney to be spent. W fully, right,
fund that appropriation every year,

100 percent reinbursenment for Raise the Age
incremental costs for those counties. So |
do believe we all can be doing nore.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Okay. | agree,
we need to do nore for the entire state and
New York City.

Thank you both for your testinony here
today. W very much appreciate it. Thank
you.

PANELI STS: Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
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(O f the record.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you,
Comm ssioners, we really appreciate it.

Panel B. 1'd like to call up New York
State OFfice for the Aging, Acting D rector
Greg A sen; and the New York State Departnent
of Veterans' Services, Reverend Viviana
DeCohen i s the conmm ssioner.

Pl ease cone on up.

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUEGER: And i f people
need to grab the | eaving conmm ssioners,
pl ease take your conversations out in the
hall so that we are not interfering with the
next panel .

(Pause; off the record.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI :  Conmi ssi oners,
t hank you. Wl cone.

Assenbly first?

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  Yes, the whol e
day. |It's your day. Assenbly, then Senate.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Let's tal k about
taxes. |I'mloving this job.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI : Just kidding. To
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the chair at hone.

Assenbl ynenber Jones. We're going to
| ead off with you, sir -- in a second.
Sorry, we were going to questions.
apol ogi ze.

Comm ssioner, you're up first.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  Yes, let's do the
testifiers first.

Ten m nutes each, pl ease.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: We can go. W
can go right to questions if you want.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: No, no, | want
you to go first.

Thank you, Comm ssioner. Go ahead.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  You got it.
How you guys doi ng t oday?

CHAIl R\MOVAN KRUECER: Al l right.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  It's great to
be here, Chairperson Krueger, Chair Hevesi,
of course Chairs Kimand Cl eare, a pleasure
knowi ng and working with you guys. | got to
shout out to Assenbl yman Jones and | thought
Senat or May was here, the previous chair, and

really all the distinguished nenbers of the
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Legi slature. Al ways happy to be here to
testify.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: Move the mic
cl oser.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yeah, it's
never a problem|'ve usually had, but I
appreci ate that.

My name is Geg Osen. |1'mthe
director of the New York State O fice for
Aging. Honored to testify, as always, on
Governor Hochul's Executive Budget that seeks
to make New York nore affordable, nore
livable, and a safer New York, while opening
doors to the comunities and peopl e who have
hi storically been bl ocked from equal chances
at success.

The proposed Executive Budget includes
many proposals that support ol der adults and
their famlies across agencies, even amd
efforts to close a $4 billion budget gap
t hrough responsi bl e steps that safeguard
opportunities and supports for mllions of
New Yorkers and their famlies.

| am pl eased to testify on the
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provi si ons of Governor Hochul's proposed
budget that directly affect the New York
State Ofice for Aging, along with additional
budget proposals that will positively inpact
ol der New Yorkers and their famlies and nove
towards a broader goal of creating a nore
af fordabl e and |ivabl e New York

The CGovernor's State of the State
nmessage and subsequent Executive Budget
proposal builds upon acconplishnents passed
in |last year's budget and sets New York on a
path for a better future regardl ess of age.

Utilizing the state's 2019-2024
Preventi on Agenda as the unbrella, and
instituting a Health Across All Policies
approach, New York State agencies are
i ncorporating health considerations into our
pl anni ng, prograns, and initiatives. As
agencies, we're conmtted to working together
and considering how our policies fulfil
New York's pledge as the first age-friendly
state in the nation.

We are further strengthening and

coordinating this vital work through the
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Governor's priority of developing a State
Master Plan for Aging. This master plan is
consistent with the goals and work that

New Yor k has been engaged in to inprove
communities for people of all ages and create
heal t hy environnments through which we can al
grow up and grow ol d successfully.

In 2018, as you know, New York becane
the first "age-friendly" state in the nation,
receiving that designation from AARP and the
Wrld Health Organization. New York was
first because we ranked high at the time in
t he ei ght donmmi ns of "age-friendly," and
because of our plan to nove forward in a
conprehensive way to systematically build
age-friendly and smart-grow h principles into
how gover nment operates and functions.

Through nuch-needed i nvestnents, the
Governor's FY '25 Executive Budget expands
and strengthens that foundation with
initiatives that will help individuals access
needed services and | ead healthy |ives by:

| ncreasing funding for vital services

such as the CSE, Community Services for the
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El derly program elder abuse and nutrition
f undi ng;

Conti nuing the funding for the Master
Pl an for Aging;

Continuing the $23 mllion in historic
i nvestrments for ol der New Yorkers across the
state for those who are awaiting services,
bri ngi ng that amount of investnment up to
$122 mllion since 2018;

Continuing the $2.9 mllion to expand
efforts to conbat isolation, bridge the
digital divide, inprove overall health and
wel | ness, reduci ng depression, addressing
el der abuse, and strengtheni ng NYSOFA' s
sti pend program for volunteer recruitnment and
retention.

You guys have al ways had my testinony
in the past; it's usually a few pages. This
one is a lot thicker because all of these
i nnovati ons we have been testing, and | put a
sanple of themin there so you can see the
incredible return on investnment for either
things we are already fully subsidizing that

doesn't cost an ol der adult anything, or
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things that we're piloting in terms of
reduci ng | oneliness, isolation, and inproving

overall health and well ness. So | encourage

you to check those out. It's really
exci ting.
We're continuing our bill-payer

programwi th Ann Marie Cook and Lifespan --
who will be testifying after us -- in
10 counties to prevent and mtigate financial
exploitation of older adults;

Providing an additional $1 mllion for
our state's E-MDT, an Enhanced
Mul ti di sciplinary Team approach to conbati ng
el der abuse in all its fornms;

Mai nt ai ni ng funding for the Long Term
Care Qrbudsman Program which serves as an
advocate, as you know, for residents and
their famlies in nursing hones and ot her
facilities;

| nvesting an additional $3.4 mllion
in cost-of-living adjustnment funds for
provi ders;

And for the first time establishing an

i nt eragency El der Justice Coordinating
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Council to better plan for and connect the
vari ous agenci es and systens that prevent and
address el der abuse.

The Governor's budget provides the
support necessary to continue our
trailblazing initiatives. Again, |
referenced those a second ago. Exanples
i ncl ude:

Qur awar d-wi nni ng ani matroni c pet
project, which to date has provided nore than
27,000 pets to ol der New Yorkers. This node
is now being replicated in 35 states across
t he country;

Qur partnership with Get Set Up, which
hel ps provide 4,500 |ifelong | earning, health
and wel | ness cl asses to individuals over the
age of 50 that is conpletely free for anybody
over 50;

Bringing the Virtual Senior Center, a
"self-help in the city" nodel to 19 counties
in upstate New York;

Being the first in the nation to
actually use Al positively through the use of

EIliQ W have over 900 units out throughout
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New York State. That's also being replicated
across the country;

Qur partnership with GoGoG andparent,
which is a specialized ride share project to
i ncrease additional transportation options
st at ew de;

And t hen many, nany caregiver
initiatives to support caregivers and
i ndi vi dual s thensel ves through Trualta, Arch
Angel s, Menory Lane TV, Relish-Life, and |
could go on

We' ve inpl enented nore than 20 public
and private partnerships to conbat isolation
and | oneliness, inmprove overall health and
wel | ness, increase physical activity, support
i nformal caregivers and care receivers,
pronot e technol ogy, pronote the devel opnment
of new relationships and friendships with
others. W have neasured for efficacy all of
these -- and again, | encourage you at
another tine to reference what |'ve provided.
That's just a sanpl e.

|"mproud to say that NYSCFA is a

national |eader in the inplenmentation of Al
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and ot her technology in serving older adults
and their famlies. NYSCOFA is also the
nation's first state in the country to
partner with the National Association of Home
Bui l ders to make Certified Aging in Place
Speci alist certifications available to our
case nmanagers. W're also the only state in
the country that nandates certification of
our case managers and our health insurance
counsel i ng and assi stance prograrns.

The budget, though, is about nore than
just NYSOFA. As you know, in all of our
daily lives we don't just touch one system
and ol der adults do not just touch the State
O fice for Aging.

One of the great conmm ssioners is the
one sitting next to nme, and we work so
cl osely together because we have 440, 000
veterans who are over the age of 60.

And so those are just sone of the
partnershi ps that we have to have and
maintain in order to |l everage the skill that
ot her agenci es have so that we can serve

peopl e holistically.
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The foll owi ng other key investnents in
this budget 1'd Iike to just mention:
obvi ously, increasing affordable housing
stock; elimnating the copaynment for Insulin;
investnments in clean water and a greener
econony; energy affordability; strengthening
nmedi cal |eave for those with disabilities and
heal t h needs; expanding access to oral health
and dental care; strengthening
anti-discrimnation | aws for Section 8
voucher recipients; strengthening storm
resiliency and energency response;
i nvestments in victimassistance; investnments
to make New York a | eader in Al; and
reinvigorating the Most Integrated Setting
Coordi nating Council, which is really charged
since 2005 with devel opi ng and i npl enenti ng
the state's A nstead Plan -- and pleased to
see that.

Al'l of those things are inportant to
i ndi viduals over 60 and their famlies. W
will continue to engage anyone, anywhere,
anyhow who can help us inprove the lives of

older adults and their famlies.
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| "' mespecially proud of our work to
significantly increase access for our
hard-t o-serve individuals and communities.
NYSCOFA has worked tirelessly with our county
partners to reach diverse comunities, and
these data efforts are paying off. | want to
have a special shout out to Colleen Scott, on
my staff, who works every single day
internally and externally to increase our
ability to serve hard-to-serve comunities,
as well as ny staff for many of the
acconpl i shnents that we have.

According to our assessnent data, al
of our core services saw an increase in
serving mnority older adults, and I'mreally
proud of that. W wll continue to focus on
diversity, equity, and inclusion and work
Wi th experts to provide training on cultural
conpet ence, traunma-informed training, support
for the unique needs of the LGBTQ+ ol der
adults, and nore.

As you guys know, | always appreciate
comng to talk to you about the great work

that we do. And as always, |'m happy to
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answer any questions after Conmm ssioner
DeCohen.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

Comm ssi oner, pl ease.

DVS COWM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you.

Good afternoon, Chairs Krueger and
Hevesi and esteened nenbers of the Senate and
Assenbly. |'m Viviana DeCohen, comm ssioner
of the New York State Departnent of
Vet erans' Services and proud veteran of the
United States Marine Corps. And |I'm honored
to provide testinmony on Governor Hochul's
2024- 2025 Executive Budget.

Under Governor Hochul's | eadershi p,
and with the support of the Assenbly and the
Senate, DVS has continued to deliver on
behal f of New York's veterans and their
famlies. Throughout Governor Hochul's
adm nistration, DVS has nmade it a priority to
expand our agency's reach and visibility
within the community, and to bring nore
veterans into contact with the state and
federal benefits that they have earned

through their mlitary service.
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Thi s has included significant success
i mprovi ng our connections with veterans as
they conplete their termof service and
transition back to civilian life. It has
al so included the establishnent of a network
of digital kiosks around the state to provide
veterans with informati on about inportant
services available to themthrough DVS. W
are also continuing to work toward | aunching
a network of Mbile Veterans Centers, which
wi || boost these efforts even nore.

In addition to all this, DVS has
cultivated relationships with public and
private partners at every level, giving rise
to successful initiatives to connect veterans
and their famlies with everything from
essential needs to events and opportunities
for community menbers to show their
appreciation to our veterans.

This record of progress continued in
2023, and our acconplishments over the past
year are a testament to our conmtnment to
holistic care for the enpowernent of

New York's veterans and their famlies.
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Over the past year, DVS began
operating New York's first State Veterans
Cenetery, launched a new Veterans Menori al
Regi stry website, awarded mllions of dollars
in capital grants to nonprofit veterans
organi zati ons around the state, and
established and built on partnerships with
nongover nnental partners |i ke the Bonbas sock
conpany and Carnegi e Hall.

In 2023, DVS al so continued to provide
nouri shing neals to veterans and
servi cenenbers facing food insecurity, in
col l aboration with Hello Fresh and
comuni ty-based partners. W have now hel ped
deliver nearly 1.5 mllion fresh nmeals since
t he program began. Over the past year our
vet erans benefits advisors al so hel ped
di stribute $200, 000 in FreshConnect Checks
around New York State, hel ping put nore fresh
food on the table in veteran househol ds.

On top of all this, our Veterans
Benefits Advising Program secured a
remar kabl e $68.47 million in nonthly --

that's over $800 mllion -- recurring VA
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benefits paynments through 35,000 filed clains
in 2023. This substantial tax-free federal
financial support directly inpacts and

i nproves the lives of veterans and mlitary
famlies, ensuring they receive the benefits
they rightfully deserve for their mlitary
servi ce.

Governor Hochul's Executive Budget
proposal includes $1.25 mllion in
appropriations that will help DVS hire even
nore veterans service benefits advisors,
allowing us to assist nore veterans with nore
claims and ultimately put even nore tax-free
dol lars, federal dollars, in the pockets of
New York's veterans and their famlies.

DVS renmmi ns steadfast in devel opi ng
responsi ve strategies am d changi ng
denogr aphi cs and societal shifts. W are
delivering on our mssion to "find and serve"
vet erans where they work and live, as
denonstrated by the nore than 500 outreach
events in which DVS staff participated across
New York State in 2023.

DVS, in collaboration with the
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New York State O fice of Mental Health --
OWH -- the State University of New York --
SUNY -- and the New York State Dwyer
Coalition, has also continued its efforts
with a working group dedi cated to enhanci ng
the effectiveness of the Joseph P. Dwer
Program This coll aborative effort has
resulted in the devel opnment and rel ease of a
conprehensi ve set of tools to support both
new and exi sting Dwyer Program chapters in
fulfilling their m ssion.

Over the past year, we al so provided
training and accreditation to veterans
service officers in every county of New York
State and hosted the |argest National
Associ ation of State Directors of Veterans
Affairs, known as NASDVA, conference in
recent history, with over 48 states and three
territories in attendance. This underscores
our commtnent not only across the state, but
al so across our nation, to ensure the
hi ghest-quality services for those we serve.

Qur col |l aborations with external

partners have al so furthered our comm tnment
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t o addressi ng fundanental needs. For
exanpl e, through a collaborative effort with
Bonbas, we distributed 15,000 pairs of

socks -- we call it Sock It To Me -- across
the state to our veterans facing housing
insecurity. Bonbas has al ready pl edged

anot her 5,000 pairs of socks, allowing us to
rei nforce our dedication to ongoi ng support
whi | e enphasi zi ng the inportance of holistic
care for our New York veterans.

In response to the unique chall enges
faced by veterans, we al so continued our work
with vital nmental health resources such as
"Worried About a Veteran," a first-in-the-
nation program ai med at preventing suicide
anongst our servicenmenbers and veterans by
enpowering famly nmenbers with tools and
resources to intervene early. This
initiative reflects our conmtnent to
addressing nmental health as a critical
conmponent of overall well-being.

CGovernor Hochul's 2024 State of the
State initiatives and fiscal year 2024-2025

Executi ve Budget actions reinforce her
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adm ni stration's dedication to advanci ng
veterans' well-being. One proposal involves
col | aboration with various partners on the
devel opnent of a conprehensive nedi cal
"pocket card" for healthcare providers. This
is crucial, given findings fromthe New York
Heal t h Foundation revealing that fewer than
3 percent of New York's nedical providers had
adequate veteran or mlitary cultural
conpetency. The card ains to equip them our
nmedi cal professionals, with essential
information, enriching the quality of care
for our New York veterans.

Addi tionally, we acknow edge the
i nportance of representing the vast diversity
of those who serve. This inpetus behind the
CGovernor's initiative to establish New York’s
Wnen's Veterans History Trail, spearheaded
by DVS, honors the exceptional |egacy of over
62, 000 wonen veterans in the state, ainmng to
docurent and cel ebrate their extraordi nary
contributions to mlitary service throughout
New York's rich history, and ensuring that

their barrier-shattering service continues to
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inspire future generations of New Yorkers.
Lastly, we remain conmmtted to
ensuring that the uni que needs of the
veterans we serve are net. To this end,
under the CGovernor's initiative, DVSis
col |l aborating with partner agencies and
organi zations to devel op specialized nental
heal th support tailored explicitly for wonen
vet erans, focusing on conbating al arm ng
suicide rates. This pioneering toolkit and
training programrepresent a crucial lifeline
for wonen veterans across New York
hi ghlighting our commtnment to their nental
heal th and overall welfare.
As conmi ssioner of the New York State
Depart ment of Veterans' Services, | am proud
to share the transfornative journey we have
undert aken under Governor Hochul's
| eadershi p. The actions taken by the
Governor and DVS -- and all of you -- signify
a resolute commtnment to prioritizing
vet erans' needs, and our 2023 acconplishnents
hi ghl i ght the tangible inpacts of this

dedi cation. Wth nourishing neals, benefits
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advi sing, nental health resources, strategic
partnershi ps and nore, we have truly laid a
foundati on of conprehensive care across the
entire state.

CGovernor Hochul's 2024 State of the
State and Executive Budget proposals wll
allow us to continue our inportant m ssion.
As we navi gate chal |l enges and pursue
i nnovation, we remain dedicated to "finding
and serving" veterans wherever they are,
ensuring that New York's veterans and their
famlies receive the highest-quality
benefits, prograns, services, and resources.

Your continued support is inval uable,
i neffable. Together we will continue to
chanpi on the wel | -bei ng of our esteened
veteran comunity.

| ook forward to answering any
guestions that you may have. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Great. Thank
you, Comm ssioners. W very nmuch appreciate

it.

W're going to go to Chair Kimfor his

guestions first.
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ASSEMBLYMAN KI M Thank you, Chairman

Thank you both for your testinonies
t oday.

Director Asen, | have four rapid
guestions, quick answers, followed by sone
deep-di ve questi ons.

Does the New York State O fice for
Agi ng nanage or oversee Medicaid-rel ated
paynents or reinbursenments?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  No.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIM Is it accurate to
say that investing in the State Ofice for
Agi ng hel ps save the state billions in
Medi caid costs in the next five years?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: | don't know
about billions, but certainly saving because
the clients who are Medicaid-eligible we're
able to keep them of f of Medi cai d.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIM  Ckay. Well, our
cal cul ation sees that we can save up to
billions of dollars in the next five years if
we invest in NYSCFA.

Does NYSOFA rei mburse MLTCs or utilize

managed- care organi zations for paynent to
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provi ders?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  No.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIM  So to sunmmari ze,
NYSCOFA pays directly to providers, counties,
muni ci palities, for non-Medicaid-rel ated
services for older adults who, if you don't
serve, will try to spend down or inpoverish
t hensel ves to qualify for Medicaid services
managed by M.TCs or nmnaged-care
organi zations. Correct?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: If we can't
provi de the service and that's the only
option, then that's something we assist wth,
yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIM  So changi ng
subj ects, unfortunately, you know, our
| ong-term care and end-of-1ife care has
beconme a system in ny opinion, of extracting
maxi mum noney from our state rather than
provi di ng patient- and worker-driven
solutions by investing in the right places.
| had hoped by now the New York State
Master Pl an on Agi ng could have started these

honest and bol d conversati ons so we can
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finally start building solutions.

Do you feel optimstic that the
Master Plan on Agi ng woul d accurately address
the lack of investnment and funding for aging
services?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: | do,

Assenbl yman. And | know that there has been
you know, within the 400 neetings and several
dozen town halls, the investnents in terns of
the front-end prevention not only in NYSCFA
but other areas, is at the forefront. Wich
is why we're tal ki ng about soci al

determ nants of health and val ue- based
paynents to actually pay for the things that
are val uabl e.

So yeah, | believe that the Governor
wants to create a nmechanismto | ook at not
si |l oed approaches but a whol e-systens
appr oach.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIM  The Executive
Budget, Greg, proposes Article VII
| egi sl ation that woul d establish an El der
Justice Coordinating Council with SOFA to

protect ol der adults from abuse and
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m streatnment, in enhanced col | aboration
bet ween the state agencies involved in
el der justice.

What are the Governor's el der justice
priorities, and why is this council needed?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yeah, this
council, Assenblyman, is huge. So you know
we are the only state in the country to have
an E-MDT. Certainly Ann Marie can speak to
that if you have a round of questions next
time.

But what this will do is really help
us create at the state level a simlar
structure at the local level. There are a
ot of different state agencies and partners

of theirs that are also dealing with el der

abuse, financial exploitation, et cetera. So

that's OCFS, DFS, Victim Services,

State Police, et cetera. So it will allow us

to come together to set those priorities and
t hen devel op a standardi zed response

| everagi ng the assets of each system so that
we're | ooking at people holistically and

hel ping to neet their needs.
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ASSEMBLYMAN KIM  You know, you
brought up the Long Term Care Onrbudsnman
program and we've been focused on this, ny
col | eagues and |, for the |last several years,
and I"'msure many will follow up on that
topic as well.

We had a slight increase |last year in
our budget, and with that increase we saw a
slight inprovenent in performance of weekly
visits. | think we went fromlike 9 percent
to 12 percent, which still isn't great, but
it's a step in the right direction. But why
is the Executive cutting the program i nstead
of going to invest nore, since you are
actually performng and going in the right
direction?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yeah, and |
think the agreenent that you guys had with
t he Governor |last year to add that 2.5 was
huge, because as you know, as the nunber of
vol unteers goes down, it's really sonething
where you need FTEs. And that's what the
noney went to.

You know, | think others have
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testified to this. It doesn't -- not having
| egi sl ati ve adds picked up doesn't nean that
there's |l ess or no value in those services.
That's just kind of the way that this process
runs, as you know. And I'mreally hopeful
because we' ve only now been a coupl e of weeks
since the budget's cone out, and the State of
the State, that we have now until, you know,
April 1st to have the dial ogue about what the
priorities are statewide. And |I'm hopeful
that this as well as EISEP will be part of

t hat m x.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIM  Yeah, | nean it's
one of the -- | think it's one of the
successful stories of us not getting
everyt hing that we wanted because we've had,
| think, capacity issues to scale this
program But we've done it; we were scaling
increnentally, and we're conmtted to working
with the Executive in investing in the right
anount so we can build that capacity and
build the public side to oversee the nursing
home and long-termcare facilities.

So | hope we can find the solution
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here to continue to build --

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yeah, thank
you for your support.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIM  Soci al adult
daycares, it's been sonething that our
conmi ttee has been focused on for the [|ast
one year. There's been ranpant unchecked
grow h of these adult daycares. They're
poppi ng up everywhere down in New York City,
unl i censed sonetinmes -- nost of the tine.
And they are -- some of themare just ghost
centers. They are liquidating benefits and
gi vi ng ki ckback noney for ol der adults
wi t hout providing any breakfasts, |unches or
any services.

And |'m hoping this year we can figure
out a solution howto streanline the
certification and oversi ght process and
NYSCOFA can play an active role in rooting out
t he bad operators. Because in the mdst of
all that, ny constituents and our
constituents desperately need places where
they can tackle their social |oneliness and

i solation. And the successful ones provide
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i nval uabl e service where people are
constantly socializing and feeling better
about their nental health.

But it only takes one bad apple, and
we have a | ot of bad apples that's draggi ng
down this market. So |I'm hoping we can do
somet hing together to fix this.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yeah, | nean
we're always interested in that. And
Assenbl yman, you know, there's two nodels for
social adult day: There's a nedical nodel
under MLTC. That's really what you're
referring to, and that's a Heal th Departnent,
O fice of Medicaid Inspector General. And
then there's our social adult day prograns
whi ch, again, we do nonitor and oversight as
wel | .

But all of the SADs prograns are
required to use our standards at NYSOFA as a
m ni mum base. So | think that there's a
collectively larger issue with SADs, but |
think what you're referring to in terns of
the city is the reason we created this

process at the state, because of those
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probl ems that you identified.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIM  1'd like to close by
focusi ng on sonething that you and | both
enj oy tal king about and tackling, which is
soci al |oneliness and isolation.
understand the adm ni stration | aunched
sonmet hing that we tal ked about for a while,
creating an Anbassador to Loneliness in
Dr. Ruth. There was mmj or news around this
| ast year.

What specific actions is Dr. Ruth,
Anbassador for Loneliness, taking right now
to hel p New Yorkers cope with | oneliness?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:. Wl I, first
you have to thank Senator Krueger, who is
really the brains behind that. And
appreciate all your support, Senator.

Look, you and | have tal ked a | ot
about this, and the same with Senator C eare
and others. Loneliness and isolation is not
just a huge public health problemfor ol der
adults. It certainly is for kids as well.
So, you know, there are two other countries,

Japan and the UK, that have identified an
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Anbassador to Loneliness because it is a
public health epidemc

Having the ability to have sonebody
like a Dr. Ruth in New York State who can
work with the Governor and can work with our
agency, Ofice of Mental Health, and others
to really raise awareness on what the problem
is and that there actually are solutions that
comunities can engage in that are either
no-cost or | ow cost.

But if we don't have this out in the
forefront all the time, we get bonbarded by
other things. So having a spokesperson that
can really talk about this issue is what the
whol e goal was. So we collectively worked up
a plan that we are -- you know, have just
finalized to kind of work with Dr. Ruth over
the next year to be able to highlight sonme of
t hese things and put sonething -- you know,
put a process in place that nmakes sense.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIM  So | only hope that
we can recruit nore anbassadors and create a
robust program around the state, and hope

that they can al so play sonme sort of |iaison
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role between all the agencies in ternms of the
services available to older adults. That's
something that | think is critically needed,
because al nost every agency touches the ol der
popul ati on, and having an active
anbassador-1li ke programto | et our
constituents -- especially down in New York
City, who may not actually know many of the
SOFA-rel ated services -- be aware, that would
be great.

Thank you for your tine today.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: Thank you,
Assenbl yman. Thanks for your partnership and
support.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Senator Cleare, chair of the
Agi ng Comm ttee.

SENATOR CLEARE: Hi, good afternoon.
Thank you. Thank you for your testinony and
t hank you for com ng here today and all the
work that you are doing around soci al
isolation -- | know we had sone great
progranms in ny district -- and ol der

New Yorkers really appreciate it. But socia
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isolation is a big problem

| want to talk a little bit about the
budget that we have $44 million -- 44 million
nore dollars than | ast year. And | just
wonder ed how cone we're not using this noney
to increase LTCOP. |Is this -- is the
$44 mllion figure attributable to federal
funds? O how does NYSOFA plan on investing
t hat noney?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yeah, there's
not an increase of 44 mllion in our budget.

SENATCOR CLEARE: It looks like it.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  So we got a --
you know, we're around 178 mllion in state,
which is alittle bit nore than where we were
| ast year. W got an additional 7.3 mllion
fromthe federal governnment this year. And
the counties still have al nmost $50 million of
unobl i gated ARPA funds that are available to
t hem t hrough Septenber 31 {sic} of 2024.

SENATOR CLEARE: The only mention we
have of the Master Plan on Aging in the
Governor's proposed budget is that you need

another mllion dollars to continue to fund
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it. But can we expect the proposal s under
di scussion to enmerge in time for policy and
fiscal consideration?

NYSCOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: So, you know,
we had -- a first interimreport cane out.
W' re expecting the second report to cone out
fairly soon.

| can tell you, Senator, just by sone
of the people who are behind nme or may not be
here today, they're on many, nany, many of
the subcommittees. And |I'msure that, you
know, between now and the end of the budget
cycle or the end of session, they'll be
comuni cating with you about what's been
di scussed and what sone of the
recommendati ons are.

But in ternms of the formal report,
that should be out -- you know, it's
forthcom ng fairly soon

SENATOR CLEARE: (kay. HWH Part F
makes changes to the Special Needs Assisted
Li ving voucher programs. So why are those
changes needed? | think you have to be -- in

order to be eligible you have to be a
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resident. And would this make it harder for
people to qualify for the progran? And are
we excl udi ng peopl e by meki ng that change?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  |' m not
famliar with that change, so if it's the ALP
program Assisted Living Program under the
Heal t h Departnent, that would be the
Heal t h Depart nent.

SENATOR CLEARE: (kay, |'ll get back
to you with that one.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:. Sorry about
t hat .

SENATOR CLEARE: |'mgoing to go to
New York City for a mnute. Currently
New York City's budget from NYSOFA for ol der
adult services is 35 percent of the state's
al I ocati on, when roughly 40 percent of al
New York State's older adults live in the
city. Wiy the 5 percent gap, and what can we
do to close it?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yeah, |'m not
sure where that figure cane from M
figure's about 43 to 44 percent of our

funding goes to New York City, because our
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funding is formul a-based, neaning it's a
per cent age of the 60-plus population in
New York, which we have 4.84 mllion people.
So the city has alnpbst 2 mllion
people, so they're in or around 43,
44 percent, not 35.
SENATOR CLEARE: So you're saying it's

the math. 1'Il conpare math with you.
NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: | woul d | ove
to. If I"'mwong on that, 1'Il be the first

one to admt it. But that's been
traditional

Again, it's -- it's not sonething that
we control. W have an interstate funding
formul a that has to be approved by the
federal government, and that's how our
federal and state noney gets distributed
across the state, is by the proportion of a
county's 60-plus popul ation as conpared to
t he whol e.

SENATOR CLEARE: (kay. This next
guestion is about home care and the recent
55-cent - an- hour increase, which -- well, it

effectively disregards the wage disparity
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for -- within the sector, excluding honme care
wor kers funded t hrough ElI SEP

Are we going to -- and this happened
before, I know, and the state made up for it.
But we just want to know are we going to do
that again to nmake sure that everybody is
getting parity across the board.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yes, that's a
great question. |I'mglad that you asked.

So EISEP is just one funding stream
for our hone care program [It's significant,
but it's 48 percent. So we use a variety of
funding streanms to provide personal care
Level 1 and 2.

W have covered the rate increase for
the counties, or at |east directed themthat
they could use the COLA dollars to make up
t hat gap, because the M.TCs received the rate
i ncrease, our network did not, and we used
t hose COLA dollars to do that.

Many of our counties are providing,
and they're able to negotiate their own
rates. W don't dictate that. So in sone

parts of the state you're going to have a | ot
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hi gher rates in order to secure an aide to
keep sonebody at honme and stay off of
Medi cai d.

SENATOR CLEARE: (kay. Currently
there's 16,000 individuals and their famlies
wai ting for non-Medicaid honme and
comuni ty-based care, but the Governor's
proposed budget cuts the $9.3 mllion
| egi sl ative add fromthe programt hat
del i vers those services.

W need an additional investnent of
$51 mllion to address the waiting lists. Do
you see us restoring that noney in any way to
hel p?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN.  Well, as |
nmenti oned before, |egislative adds are
traditionally not added. | hope that you al
see the value of those types of prograns and
services and that, you know, between now and
the end we will have a dialogue. And if
those are priorities, you know, for you guys
as well as they are for us, those types of
things will be restored.

There are long-term services that get
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really difficult to turn on when dollars go
away, like the stimulus funding. But there's
many things on a waitlist, |ike a hone

nodi fication or transportation, that counties
could absolutely be tapping that $50 nmillion
that they have until the end of Septenber.

But | think that's -- to your
guestion, that's going to be a dial ogue over
t he next couple of nonths.

SENATOR CLEARE: Ckay. O all the
adult care facilities, a whopping 88 percent
do not get a weekly visit, which is the state
goal of the LTCOP. Yet the Governor's
proposed budget cuts the $2.5 mllion from
LTCOP, so we need an additional $15 nmillion
to reach the LTCOP goal of one visit -- just
to get one visit once a week.

What are the plans for us to do that?
W can't cut the two and a half; we actually
need nmuch nore than that.

NYSCOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yup, so the
two and a half that you all agreed to two
years ago was baseline, and we are really

thankful for that. This two and a half that
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was a |l egislative add | ast year, as you know,
was not cover ed.

| think that the Governor, from what
she has said and what she has done since she
took office on how inportant getting to the
bottom of quality-of-care issues in nursing
homes, has nade that a priority. So again,

t hi nk between now and the end of the budget,
folks |ike yoursel ves and ot hers that
recogni ze the value of the LTCOP program the
reduction in the volunteers and the need for
FTEs, this will be a part of -- part of the
budget negoti ati ons.

SENATOR CLEARE: (kay. And -- thank
you for that.

We have an unfunded agi ng service
mandate that has | eft area agencies on aging
with a $10 mllion deficit, curtailing their
ability to provide service and keep up with
demand. An additional $10 million is needed
to cover the deficit. W can talk about it.

NYSCOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Senat or,
what's the unfunded nandate?

SENATOR CLEARE: Well, this is part of
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the visits. So we have to nake sure that we
get the noney to the agencies. Yeah, | think
that's a part of the last thing that we
tal ked about, the LTCOP program

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN.  Ckay.

SENATOR CLEARE: (kay? And the State
Ofice for the Aging for the last five years
has been required to submt an annual report.
We haven't gotten the annual report -- |I'm
going to shorten this question --

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN. Qur general --

SENATCOR CLEARE: -- to the State
Legi sl ature on how funds appropriated to
address the waiting |ists have been spent.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yeah, that --

we do -- we've published that report already,
and |'mdrafting the next one. So I'll nake
sure that you get that. That went -- that

was public | ast year.

SENATOR CLEARE: Ckay. kay. All
right. So that's all those questions that I
had. Thank you.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: Thank you,

Senat or. Appreciate you
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CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

Chair Jean-Pierre.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN JEAN- PI ERRE: Good
norni ng. There we go. Good norning. Thank
you both for your testinony.

Commi ssioner A sen, | would love to
hear nore about the Anbassador to Loneliness
program if you can share that with ny
office. And ny office will reach out.

But nost of nmy questions are going to
be directed to Comm ssioner DeCohen.

Thank you for being here. W m ssed
you at our hearing back in Decenber. But |
have a few questi ons.

The first one is the Executive Budget
proposes 1.1 mllion in reappropriation, an
addi ti onal 500,000 for emergency and
tenporary housing. Can you tell nme if that
1.1 mllion has been spent? And if not, why
not? And why the additional 500, 0007

DVS COWMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you

so nuch for the question, Assenbl ynenber and
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Chair, and for all that you do.

We are actually still dotting the I's
and crossing the T's for that $1.1 mllion,
and we are going to be having the
announcenent in the com ng weeks. W have to
i npl enent that programfrom scratch, as you
know, and we wanted to ensure that once it is
| aunched, that everything is going to be set
for that.

| don't have to tell you the
i nportance and the need of our veterans
across this state for not only housi ng needs
but housi ng energencies that this can speak
to. Wile we've been out there as well, you
know, this goes a little bit beyond the
housing. This goes also to those veterans
who are housed who have disabilities and
i ncur energencies within their hones.
Somet hi ng |i ke bei ng wi thout a washi ng
machine is so vital and so crucial. Those
who are behind in rental situations, those
who are behind in nortgage situations.

So we're | ooking forward to announci ng

this rollout in the com ng weeks.
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ASSEMBLYWOVAN JEAN- PI ERRE:  So how di d
we get to the additional 500, 0007

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCCOHEN:  That |'m
going to have to get back to you on, because
we were not on that part, we were on the part
with the $1.1 mllion grant for the housing.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN JEAN- PI ERRE:  Ckay. So
| ook forward to talking to you nore about
t hat .

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCCOHEN:  Yes.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN JEAN- PI ERRE: My next
guestion is Section 4 of the Veterans Service
Law requires that DVS prepare and subnmt a
report on honel ess veterans every three
years. The report was due in June 2023. Do
you know what the delay is?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN: Yes. W
had actual ly brought aboard a speci al
engagemnment coordi nator to be able to have
boots on the ground to be able to get that
data and those nunbers. And because the
person is still new, we're still new,
onboardi ng, we're getting ready to have those

nunbers for you anytime now. | have to --
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ASSEMBLYWOVAN JEAN- PI ERRE: Do we know
a date? Do we have a date?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  -- and have
it pulled.

It should be within the next 30 to
60 days. It won't be long. Wthin that
timeline.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN JEAN- PI ERRE:  Ckay. In
2022, the DVS annual report indicates that
t he Di scharge Upgrade Advi sory Board did not
receive any applications. Does DVS have an
esti mate of how nmany veterans have | ess than
honor abl e or bad paper discharges?

DVS COMW SSI ONER DeCOHEN: | do not
have those nunbers. Again, we will have to
get back to you on that.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN JEAN- PI ERRE:  Ckay.

What resources does the departnent use
currently to reach out to veterans who may be
seeki ng a di scharge upgrade, and are there
plans to inprove that outreach?

DVS COWMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN: Currently
we're still utilizing the restoration of

honors. To date we have restored 50
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restoration of honors and upgrades. CQur
"find and serve" nmethod to where we are boots
on the ground with our veterans benefits

advi sors -- you see our executive deputy
commi ssi oner and our general counsel, who are
sitting next to ne, our book bags and
bri ef cases and pocket books have becone our

of fi ces, because we are now interfacing with
our veterans across the state.

Part of our "find and serve" has al so
been extended to our houses or worship for
our faith-in-service, where we are finding
those within the houses of worship.

I nterestingly enough, we're finding that a

| ot of our pastors and our bishops and rabbis
are thensel ves peopl e who served who were in
need of upgrade discharges within their
houses of worship, and for thenselves. So
this has also allowed us to extend our

of ferings of upgrades and the restoration of
servi ces.

And again, we're no |longer putting the
restoration of services in the mail. W are

now parl aying, we're calling themover the
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phone to | et them know that they have been
upgraded and to congratulate them O we are
giving themin person. So glad to say that
|"ve met with a good dozen or nore of themin
their hones to deliver the restoration of
honors in person from New York City, Bronx,
all the way to Buffal o.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN JEAN- PI ERRE:  Ckay,
awesone. Just for the sake of time, |'mjust
going to keep going. How many applications
have been received for grants under the
Vet erans Nonprofit Capital Fund Progranf

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  We're so
glad to say that currently we've done the
first round: 39 veteran organi zations have
received the grantee award to allow for a
capital grant for inprovenents for their
or gani zat i on.

The second round is now in effect, and
the deadline is going to April 19th. And so
we' re hoping that those that were not in the
first round can get in the second round so
that we can distribute that second part of

the 2.6 mllion.
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ASSEMBLYWOVAN JEAN- PI ERRE:  Sorry,
just want to stop you. Wat outreach nethods
are you using in order to get it out for
April 19th?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Good.

Good. We've already utilized all of the
social nmedia platforms. W utilized our
distribution list, and we've reached out to
all of our county partners to get on their
l'istserv as well.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN JEAN- PI ERRE: Ckay. And
t he ki osks. Can you quantify how nmany
veterans actually have been served in --
under utilizing the kiosks.

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Good.

Good. We're still in the portion of

gat hering data because we have actually
upgraded our kiosks to becone digitalized.
And so now we -- instead of nine kiosks we
have now depl oyed 13 ki osks and counting. W
have nore noney that has been allocated for
addi ti onal kiosks, and we've had nmuch nore
requests.

| have to tell you we're excited now
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to have these not only roll out in places

i ke here in the Concourse where they can now
be utilized and digital by our state
partners, but we're now getting requests and
we' re hopeful to now see themin places |ike
the Jacob Javits Center in New York City,

G and Central Station, and some of the

ai rports.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN JEAN- PI ERRE: Ckay. And
my | ast question is in your testinony you
said that the "Veterans Benefits Advising
Program secured a renarkable $68.47 million
in nonthly" -- and that is an al nost 8, 000
i ncrease of clains reported from 2022.

How i s DVS naintaining quality and
responsi ve representation to fill these
al nrost 8,000 nore clainms fromlast year?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCCOHEN: Wl |, this
is what we've done with boots on the ground.
That "finding and serving" has been so
i nstrunmental, our Governor has given us an
additional 1.25 mllion for additional
veteran benefits advisors. | want you to

know now t hat our veteran benefits advi sors
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are sitting with our veteran in a holistic
approach, taking care of everything that they
need within their clains and beyond, for
t hei r househol ds.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN JEAN- PI ERRE:  Ckay.
Well, that's all | had. Thank you so mnuch

DVS COWM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you.
Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

Next up is our chair for Veterans,
Senat or Scarcel | a- Spanton. Ten m nutes.

SENATOR SCARCELLA- SPANTON:  Thank you,
Chai r.

And t hank you so nuch, Conmm ssi oner,
for all the work you do and for your service.

One of the first things | wanted to
ask about and bring to your attention is the
Conmptroller recently laid out a report of the
personal income tax checkoff. There is close
to three -- there's a little over
$3.4 million of that noney that has not been
di sbursed yet in the last six years. So it

goes for veterans renmenbrance and cenetery
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mai nt enance and operation, honel ess veterans
assi stance, Veterans Honme Assistance Fund,
and mlitary famly relief.

Specifically for the cenetery
mai nt enance, they actually saw t he bi ggest
i ncrease of any tax checkoffs of over
$950,000. And with interest, it has
$1.5 million sitting waiting to be disbursed.

So ny question would be, is why hasn't
this noney gotten out yet and what can we do
to help you get it out the door to the groups
who need it?

DVS COWMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you
for your question, Senator. Thank you for
all the work that you do as well

As you know, we recently took over the
cenetery, and we're still in the witing
phase and still dotting all the I's and
crossing all the T's to ensure those things
as well. Right now we wanted to ensure that
it continued to run at the sane high-quality
| evel that it was serving, and to ensure that
they have all the staffing and the needs to

be able to nmaintain it at that high standard.
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But these are things that we are
wor ki ng on diligently, and we're checking
t hem of f one by one.

SENATOR SCARCELLA- SPANTON:  Ckay. And
so what will the mechanismbe for -- let's
say for honel ess veterans assistance? That
has close to $1.4 mllion sitting waiting to
be drawn down. WII| you create sonething for
organi zations to request that funding? How
will you get that funding out?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN: We can get
back to you on that so that we can have a
solid answer for you.

SENATOR SCARCELLA- SPANTON:  Ckay,
perfect.

DVS COWMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you
so nuch.

SENATOR SCARCELLA- SPANTON:  That
brings ne to nmy next question. W had -- the
budget has 1.1 mllion for Honel ess Veterans
Housi ng Program And this year we have --

t he Governor's reconmrendi ng 600, 000 in
funding for this program Can you provide

nore of the details on this funding?
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DVS COW SSI ONER DeCCHEN:  Agai n,
we're going to be getting this out within the
com ng weeks. But just to let you know,
again, it will be for our veterans who have
energency needs, those who nay be behind in
their rent, in their nortgage. W're even
getting phone calls -- and again, we want to
ensure that the needs of all our veterans are
met. Things |ike emergency refrigeration and
things of that nature that we're |looking to
put in there.

Again, just dotting the last |I's and
crossing the last T's. So when | say the
com ng weeks you're going to hear this
announcenent, the com ng weeks you'll hear
t hi s announcenent and all the criteria for
our veterans to be able to utilize this.

SENATOR SCARCELLA- SPANTON:  Perfect.
| think it will be a great addition if we're
able to figure out in the next couple of
weeks how to draw down those additional funds
t hat have been sitting. | think that will go
a really | ong way.

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Absol utel y.
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SENATOR SCARCELLA- SPANTON:  And do you
know how nany veterans recei ved hones through
the use of last year's funds and how many
homes woul d be provided in this year's funds
with that $600, 000 allocation? O is it not
just for hones, it's for honel ess veterans,
so it's different serv -- it's like the
refrigeration --

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCCHEN:  That's
correct.

SENATOR SCARCELLA- SPANTON:  Ckay. How
many veterans does New York State Departnent
of Veterans' Services serve annually? And
essentially how nmany veterans reach out to
the office nmonthly? Are you keeping track of
t hat nunber?

DvVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN: As you
know, we serve over 688,000 veterans -- |et
me say this, because this is sonething that |
want us to have a cl ear understandi ng of.
When we say "veteran" -- and now that | am
going across this entire state, that is not a
good representation of those who have served.

And, you know, Senator Ashby, you
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know, thank you for your service.

We are now utilizing the termon our
flyers and advertisenents and working with
even our county veteran officers, who know
all of the veterans within their town. Now,
when we sit and we say for those who've
served, and we're setting up a table, a
totally different population is conmng forth
to say | served, | was in the Arny for four
years, but | was just a photographer, | did
this or that. That nunber is not a good
representati on.

But because we are doing the "find and
serve" and we are approaching this for those
who have served, in the smallest of towns
where they're saying there's maybe one or two
wonen veterans, 50-plus cane out in a snall
t own.

So, you know, we say 688, 000; we know
that there's much, nuch nore -- nany nore
t han we have served. Twenty-four percent
bei ng served in the national average, because
17 percent are for those with the

disabilities.
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Wat we're seeing now -- and agai n,
we're not waiting for anyone to cone inside
the building. People may not know that you
exist. W want themin front of us. The
di fference of having themin front of us --
and | can testify as a veteran who's done
this and gone on a website to get a resource,
| have ny VA Health card. For years | did
not know of any other resources. Now we have
the testanments and the letters of people that
are sitting in front of our veteran benefit
advisors -- not in the office, but when we're
at the supernmarket, when we're in the
| aundromat, when we're now i nvolved in the
houses of worship and their health and
wel | ness days, to be able to let themknow to
do a benefits check for those who served.

The nunbers have quadrupl ed.

And again, we are now bringing in over
$800 million in the past year. That's data
and that's a quantitative nunber that we can
say doing the qualitative work, the
phenonenol ogi cal of allow ng the veteran

their voice to tell us what it is that they




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

226

need, and to neet those service needs. And
this has been with your help as well in the
past year that has made the difference.

To ask the veteran not just about
their claimbut everything that's going on in
their life, in their home, has nmade the
di fference.

We just did a Fabul ous Friday where we
hi ghl i ghted one of our veteran benefits
advi sors because the gentlenan wote a letter
and said that if he did not sit with her and
if she did not ask himabout the ideation of
sui cide and do the Col unbia protocol, then
t hat woul d have been his last day. So he
wote a letter because she asked hi mthose
guestions and traded off to our partners, and
he was able to get the services that he's
still here.

The other letters talk about going in
to find one resource and leaving with five
nor e.

And to let you know, our partners
across the state, we no |onger have to send

them across the water or across the road to
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get these resources. Now they can go hone
and furniture is being delivered. Baby
itenms, through Operation Babies, is there.
Di apers, the diaper programthat we're
getting ready to roll out. A baby crib.
Book bags for their children. This has al
been because of your assistance across the
state, and we see the difference.

SENATOR SCARCELLA- SPANTON:  Yeah, and
bei ng m ndful of time, | know -- thank you.
| really appreciate the great work you guys
are doing, and | think those nobile service
vans have gone a | ong way.

How nmany nobil e service vans were you
able to obtain last year with the $300, 000
al | ocati on?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  We're
getting ready to roll out three. W actually
put the bid through twice; we didn't get any
takers. This time we put the bid through
again and we were specific with letting them
know t he accessibility and the technol ogi cal
services that we want on them W're | ooking

forward to having themout. Wen they rol
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out now, we can literally do the "Sock It to
Me" across the state with the socks on there.
Hopefully the diapers will be on there.

But also just to let you know, you
know, VBA reps are there also. They can get
t he FreshConnect tickets and services for
food. They can al so be told about the |egal
services, free legal services through our
partners |ike the New York State Bar
associ ation that's now hel pi ng our veterans
with everything with -- fromtheir life, from
adoption, which we're hel ping a coupl e right
now, to divorce, all the way down to wlls.

SENATOR SCARCELLA- SPANTON:  That's
great.

You know, one of the things we've
di scussed in detail -- and again, | really
t hank you for your partnership. W always
try to make sure we bounce ideas, and you've
been fantastic with that. You know, | think
it's really difficult for veterans returning
home to figure out what services they are
qualified for. Wat do you do to encourage

veterans or those who served -- | wll change
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nmy | anguage too -- to get enrolled with the
VA or let them know what New York State
of fers?

And we' ve spoken about a | ot of ideas,
but would love to see that, being m ndful of
tinme.

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Yeah, thank
you, Senat or.

As you know, again, Executive Deputy
Comm ssi oner Joel Evans and nysel f have now
signed I think 10, 000-plus "wel comre hone"
letters that have gone out. W' ve been able
to do this with the Departnent of Defense and
wor ki ng now with so many of our mlitary
installations to be able to capture those
fol ks when they're getting home. The
difference is nowit doesn't say call an 888
number. It now has the name of one of our
veteran benefits advisors on there. They can
now call Susie and Donna. And we're doing
t he handhold with themof all of their
benefits.

Again, we're no |longer just clains.

W' ve expanded beyond that. W can get your




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

230

clainms, do you have a famly, does your
spouse need enploynent. Everything fromA to
Z. And that's because of your help, so thank
you so rmuch

SENATOR SCARCELLA- SPANTON:  Thank you.
Thank you, comm ssioner.

DVS COWM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you.
Thank you.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Thank you, Chair.

Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

Assenbl ynmenber Jones. This tine
mean it.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN JONES: Thank you. Don't
start to clap yet.

Thank you for being here,
Director O sen.

Comm ssi oner DeCohen, thank you for
your service. | see we have a few of our
| ocal veterans up there. Thank you for your
service as well. M questions -- and thank
God for the Dwyer funding, getting that

statewide was an initiative that many of us
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here worked on a couple of years ago, and we
have it.
My questions will probably be to

Director Asen, but | think they're very

relevant with both of you here, since -- what
is it -- over 440,000 of our over-60 are
vet erans.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yes.
ASSEMBLYMAN JONES: Unbel i evabl e.

Many in mmy area as well.

So | have to drill down -- |I'm going
to ask you a couple of questions; | have to
drill down on the budget. GCkay, | see a

little discrepancy, it nmust have been an
oversight. | see we have |ess noney in our
Ofice for the Aging budget than we did | ast
year. And | say that because |I'm | ooking at
EISEP. We'll drill down on that. | know the
chair tal ked about it as well.

| see the 9.3 mllion add is gone. |
see other funds down. W're talking about
that non-Medicaid-eligible list. Al right?

| hate to tal k about return on

i nvest ment when we're tal ki ng about our
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veterans, our |oved ones, our neighbors, our

famly menbers. But unfortunately this is

one of the few areas we have to tal k about in

human services. W have to tal k about return

on investnment when we're tal ki ng about our
nei ghbors, our |oved ones, our veterans. W
have to tal k about it because we're so
severely underfunded every year.

Ckay, let's talk about return on
investment. Director Asen, is directing
noney towards ElI SEP and ot her prograns on
this list a good investnent? Do we get a
good return on investnent?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Well, | think
we do get a good return on investnent.

ASSEMBLYMAN JONES: Does it save
Medi cai d dol | ars?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: | believe it
does, because the average person is an
83-year-old |owincone fenale, lives al one,
four to 10 chronic conditions, three ADL
limtations, six |ADL Iimtations. They're
on our casel oad between five and seven years,

f or under 10, 000.




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

233

ASSEMBLYMAN JONES: When is New York
State going to wake up and realize that this
is a good RO in actually servicing our |oved
ones, our veterans, our nei ghbors? Wen are
we going to wake up? That's a rhetorica

guestion, when are we going to wake up.

Second -- | only have 30 seconds |eft,
time clock -- is the Master Plan on Aging
rel eased?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: There's a
first interimreport, there's a second report
that's going to be com ng out shortly, the
final in '25,

ASSEMBLYMAN JONES: And is there any
funding in the budget as it sits right nowto
i mpl enent anything in the Master Plan for
Agi ng?

NYSCOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: The noney in
t he budget for the Master Plan is to continue
the process that will end at the end of '24.

ASSEMBLYMAN JONES: Nothing to
i npl enent the pl ans.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Not at this

poi nt, because the recomrendati ons are j ust
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bei ng put in.

ASSEMBLYMAN JONES: Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Ranker Senator Ashby.

SENATOR ASHBY: Thank you, Chair.

Comm ssi oner DeCohen, thank you for
bei ng here.

In 2022 the division was upgraded,
el evated to a departnment. Right? And that
gives a higher status -- you're a
commi ssi oner now, right -- and also allows
for an increased budget, you would think, and
access to federal funding. Have you seen an
augnentation in your staff since then?

DVS COWMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you
for that question, Senator Ashby.

| don't have to tell you because you
see what's happening out there. As a result
of the Governor's 2022-2023, we know t hat
j ust even our veterans service organizations
had recei ved 150 percent increase fromthe
10, 000 to 25,000 --

SENATCR ASHBY: Conmi ssi oner DeCohen,

have you seen an -- have you augnented your
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staff?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Yes. Thank
you. The 1.25 million that the Governor has
just given us to increase our veteran
benefits advisors is allowi ng for an increase
across the state to be able to do that.

But | don't have to tell you that we
are standi ng on a beach with sand, and what
we have done with this sand is not to ask for
nore sand. But what we've done, showing in
the dollars that we brought in for the past
year, of over $800 m | lion, speaks for
itself.

W' ve done together incredible work
across this state with what the Governor has
gi ven us.

SENATOR ASHBY: Have you seen an
i ncrease in maybe federal partnership, being
now a departnent that allows you to garner
federal funding? Wat federal partnerships
have you had?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCCHEN:  Ri ght.
Well, | have to tell -- | have to tell you

t hat now what we've done is we've been call ed
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to Washington to be able to participate in
things like the Wnen Veterans Center of
Excel l ence and the neetings with the

Honor abl e --

SENATOR ASHBY: Has any of this
resulted in an increase in your budget as a
depart ment ?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  This --

SENATCOR ASHBY: Because what |'m
| ooking at nowis a $2.4 mllion cut. So
you're a departnent now, you're a
conmmi ssi oner, and you're seeing a cut.

DVS COMW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  No, what --
let me tell you what you don't see. Wat you
don't see are the initiatives that we were
al ready working on where we already had the
noney set aside in our budget. Things like
the Whnen Veterans Trail that's com ng on
t he heal th pocket card that we have, the
tool kit and all of the progranms that we have
for the suicide prevention. Those were
al ready allocated in the budget wth what
we' ve had.

Li sten, we have our veterans at the
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table, and they are all being fed. And
agai n, who dares to be on the beach and say
we don't have enough sand? W have beach.

And again, the 1.25 mllion that's
been given to us to add additional veterans
benefits advisors, the partnerships that we
now have -- because we are a departnent --
with our intrastate agencies, people |ike
Greg A sen that we're now havi ng caregi ver
programs -- we have expanded trenmendously.
Qur arns are stretched.

SENATOR ASHBY: Now that you're seeing
a cut, $2.4 mllion cut, what prograns do you
anticipate cutting?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN: W have not
seen -- see, it looks Iike a cut. Let nme --
l et me be clear --

SENATCOR ASHBY: It does, because

that's the arithnetic, that's the nath. [t's

a cut.

DVS COMW SSI ONER DeCOHEN: The math - -
the math -- the math is equated to our work
bringing in over $800 mllion in tax-free

federal benefits back into the pockets of our
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veterans and famlies. And that's what we
want, increase for our veterans, and that's
what we have. W have increased -- we have
sand on the beach.

SENATCR ASHBY: Conmi ssi oner DeCohen,
that's -- | nmean, that's just not true. |It's
acut. It'sa$2.4nmllioncut. And in --

DVS COMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Senator - -

SENATOR ASHBY: In the |last six years,
we' ve negl ected to disburse over $3 mllion
to veterans nursing homes, to burial
servi ces.

DVS COMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Senat or
Ashby - -

SENATOR ASHBY: This is a departnment
now, right?

DVS COWM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you,
Senat or Ashby. It's a --

SENATOR ASHBY: This is a department.
W' re supposed to be getting new resources.
What in your conmunications to the Governor
or even the federal government has led to an
augnentation of this departnent? Can you

tell me?
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DvS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Senat or
Ashby, as the boots on the ground going
across this entire state, we are seeing al
of the funds that this Governor and this
adm ni stration again has given to our
veterans service officers and our counti es.
We are going in, they have acquired, with the
noney given --

(Overtal k.)

SENATOR ASHBY: Conm ssi oner DeCohen,
| understand that. |'ve been to N agara
County and Nassau County as well on behal f of
our veterans, advocating for the
Dwyer Program advocating in fact for your
division to be elevated to a departnment. And
what are we seeing as a result of that?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN: W are
seeing an increase in services for our
veterans across the state, the veterans, the
very homes that | have been to and gone into,
we have seen increase there, especially with
our ammzi ng veterans --

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you,

Conmi ssi oner.
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DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN: -- service
of ficers.

CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: We're going to
cut off this line of questioning.

DVS COWM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you.
Thank you.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  But t hank you.
think you were clear with your answers.

DVS COWM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you,
Senat or .

CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Next up is
Senator My --

Oh, I'msorry, Assenbl ynenber
Assenbl ynenber .

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI :  Qutrageous.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI : Assenbl ynenber
Cl ark, please.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN CLARK:  Excel | ent .
Thank you. | amgoing to stick to Aging for
now, so you are on the hot seat. Thank you,
Di rector.

Qui ck questions, first on the Long

Term Care QOrbudsman Program  Cbviously we' ve
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heard it. You know, we see what the Covernor
did on el der abuse; we understand that she
kept the dollars in her budget proposal to
continue the expansion of the work Lifespan
is doing on elder abuse. You know, | think
what our col |l eagues here are confused by is
why she didn't do that on the Long Term Care
Onbudsman Program understanding that we are
trying to professionalize it.

Do we have a current understandi ng of
where we are with FTEs, how nmany were hired
| ast year? And do we sort of have the buy-in
fromthe Ofice for the Aging that getting to
t he point where we have the needed dollars to
make sure it was fully professionalized, to
ensure we are getting the visits that we need
into these facilities happen?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yeah, thanks,
Assenbl ywoman. We absol utely can provide
that data for you. The nunber of FTEs we
hired, the increase in those places visited.
You don't have to question on whether we have
buy-in in this programor not. | think that,

you know, in prior admnistrations it hasn't
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always risen to the top as the value that it
iS.

| think that this chanmber and this
Governor think differently, which is why we
see the increases. And again, you know, not
to m mc what everybody el se has been sayi ng,
we do have a $4 billion deficit, tough
choi ces need to be made, but this is the
start of the process and |I' m hopeful that
we'll end -- you know, this will be discussed
in the next couple of nonths.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN CLARK: Ckay. And on
the critical question, what is the budget
nunber to renove everybody fromwaiting
lists?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  It's not as
easy to say. So if you had a workforce that
was avail abl e, and includes PC ai des or what
have you, it would probably be between 40 and
$50 mllion.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CLARK: Ckay. | nmean,
just think these are -- as we see the
popul ation aging -- it's probably one of our

nost increasing;, we've seen the reports that
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it's also the nobst growing in poverty -- |
just think putting a concerted effort to get
people off waiting lists for literally basic
needs is sonething we really need to think
about .

My last thing -- and it's less of a
guestion but nore of a sort of plug to put in
your mnd as we |ook at the 1115 Medicaid
wai ver and understand the social determ nants
of health.

And understandi ng a program |l ike
Communi ty Care Connections and what we've
seen it do with Medicaid dollars to keep
peopl e out of our health systens and i nstead
care for our aging New Yorkers, | just want
to add -- or just throwit out there that |
really think as we | ook at what to fund
t hrough social determ nants of health, we
really | ook at that program we |ook at
expanding it across the state and
understanding its effectiveness to really
hel p our ol der New Yorkers.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Coul d not

agree with you nore. The CCC programis one
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of several initial BIP Innovation G ants that
have shown a great RO, and the 1115 wai ver
actually does have 1.75 mllion that we've
wor ked with Ann Marie to expand.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

We'll try Senator May now.

SENATOR MAY: Thank you,

Chair Krueger.

And hi, Director d sen.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: How are you,
Senat or ?

SENATOR MAY: [I'mgoing to follow up
on the Long Term Care Onbudsman questi on.
And just what percentage of the visits are
bei ng made by vol unteers right now, do you
know?

NYSCOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: Are you j ust
| ooki ng for volunteers or are you | ooking for
ever ybody?

SENATCOR MAY: Well, we want to nove
away fromthe volunteers. That was part of
the goal, was to professionalize it.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yeah, so we

can get a breakdown for you. | don't think
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we want to nove away from volunteers. |

t hi nk what we want to do is have a robust FTE
and vol unteer, because we've |ost 600 of them
over the | ast decade.

SENATOR MAY: Ckay. But you -- are
you confident that we're noving in the right
direction on this?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Well, | think
t he resources that, you know, the Governor
and the Legislature provided us, you know,
that's what that noney goes to.

So, yeah, we can absol utely show you a
pre and post, where we are because of those
resources. And, you know, we're not all the
way. We can always do better. But we have
significant inprovenent, and |I think that's
exci ting.

SENATOR MAY: Ckay. And then we
passed t he Rei magi ni ng Long- Term Care Task
Force bill a couple of years ago, and you're
one of the statutory cochairs. Has -- have
t here been any neetings? Are there plannings
for neetings? Do we need to do an extender

for --
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NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Not all the
appoi ntments have been nade yet. So we are
waiting for those appointnments to be nade. |
believe they're on the Legislature' s side.
And then we are eager to get going with our
partners at the Health Departnent.

SENATOR MAY: Ckay. Thank you.

And then nore of a comment, but
Comm ssioner, | hope that you' re aware of the
program we have in Syracuse for the Tiny Home
for Good, which is building tiny homes for
honel ess veterans. | would love it if you
woul d cone up and -- if you haven't seen that
and seen what's happening there, it's a
pretty exciting programtoo.

DVS COWMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you
so nuch. | would love to see it. | actually
know t he devel oper of that programprior to
com ng aboard.

SENATOR MAY: Ch, great. Well, we'll
| ook forward to seeing you in Syracuse.

DVS COWMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you
so nmuch. Thank you

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: Do you mind if
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| tag al ong on that one?
SENATOR MAY: Absol utely.
NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  I'ma big fan
of m cro hones.
ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.
Assenbl ynenber Mankt el ow.
ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  Thank you,

Chair.

Good afternoon, everyone.

And Director A sen, | heard you say
earlier that -- your partnership with our

veterans. And | know that as our veterans
are getting ol der, we have our Vietnam
veterans, we have our Korean \War veterans,
we have our -- we even have sone
Wrld War Il veterans. And | know
Senat or Ashby and nyself, we have | egislation
to | ook at senior -- or veterans nursing
hones across the board.
I s that sonething that your office
could help us get across the finish |ine?
NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  You know, |'m
not sure. 1'd be happy to talk with you nore

about that.
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We are identifying veterans in the
comunity, and that's why we have such a
great partnership, because we literally
screen for veteran status so that we can make
a soft referral to DVS and their partners to
access the 105 federal, state and | ocal
benefits.

But 1'd love to talk to you nore about
t hat .

ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  All right.

You know, as we tal ked about the budget, |
believe that $2.4 mllion cut, you know, that
woul d go a | ong way towards nursing homes for
our veterans long term And I'd | ove to work
with both of you on that, because | think
it's a very inportant initiative.

And t hank you for partnering with our
commi ssioner, and | appreciate that.

Comm ssi oner, good afternoon. Senper
fi, ny friend.

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Good
afternoon. Good afternoon. Senper fi.

ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  Thank you for

your service.
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Back to tal king about the budget.
had spoken with sone of our county veterans
officers out in the counties, and we actually
have one up here behind you. And one of
their issues is with fundi ng about getting
vehi cl es to have vehicles that they can drive
around within their county to help service
the veterans at the sane tine as well.

| s that sonet hing your office could
hel p push forward with the Governor's office
as far as helping to create funding for them
to have vehicles to acconplish that?

DVS COWMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you
for that question, first of all. And thank
you for your work as well and your service.

That's a question that | would refer
themto our county veterans officer in one of
the counties, because he actually utilized
that increase in budget to purchase a vehicle
to -- for his county to be able to service
their veterans better.

As you know, that anmpount had a
150 percent increase, went fromthe 10,000 to

25,000. And that was one of, again, our
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county veteran service officer in Tioga
County who was able to acquire and purchase a
vehicle. In fact what he did with that

anount of noney just within his organization
has been remarkabl e.

And so many -- let nme just say that so
many, all of our 60-plus counties have done
remar kabl e this past year in serving our
veterans. And because |I'mthere, I'"'mable to
see it firsthand, those who are outdoors
wi t hout services that now have a 100 percent
claim and their lives are better. And
again, the many letters that we have, | w sh
we could bring the letters. And | wi sh we
could bring those veterans thensel ves, who
can attest to the great work that's being
done t hroughout New York State.

ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  All right.
appreci ate the answer. And thank you for
t hat answer.

Anot her question. Years ago, back in
| believe 2019 was the | ast year that the
Boys State -- are you famliar with Boys

State, put on through the Legion? That was
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actually a line itemin the budget. It was
appropriated |I believe at $150,000 back in

2019. | believe that hasn't happened since
t hen.

And | was wondering what your comments
are about getting that funding back, getting
that funding back to the Boys State program
Do you have a coment on that?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCCOHEN:  COh, that's
sonmet hing that we can definitely tal k about.

ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  Because |
think it's a great programthat brings a | ot
of young people forward, and | think we need
to do that.

|"ve only got a little bit of tine.
Back to the Veterans Cenetery. It was great
to see you out there last Menorial Day. It
was good to see you there, New York State
Vet erans Cenetery out in Wst Sanpson State
Par k back then.

| know that there's $4 nmillion,
1 mllion for capital inprovenents and
another 3 mllion for a maintenance facility.

It's nmy understanding, speaking with the
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director out there and the head of the
grounds crew, that the equi pment that's being
used is actually |l eased through a private
contractor. Do we foresee the state taking
t hat over and providing that equi pnent for
that cenetery?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN: Wl |, we
were happy to actually keep the grounds --
t he groundskeeper on contract because he was
happy, he's been doing this for years. It
was his desire to stay on. And so when he
al l owed us to know that he already has his
own equi prment, he's famliar with that
equi pnent and t he usage, we were happy to
take himon as well as allow himto continue
on with the use of that. Everything' s been
going well on that.

And should we ever have to, then we
know that the noney is there to do that.

ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  Ckay, thank
you. So | just want to be sure that noney is
t here, because that's not going to | ast
forever.

And ny tinme is up. Thank you both.
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DVS COWM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Senat or Rol i son.

SENATOR ROLI SON:  Thank you, Chair.

For Director Asen, | aminterested in
knowing a little bit nore about the El der
Justice Coordinating Council, as a former
police officer involved in cases involving
el der abuse.

What is the tine frane for that
report? | just don't see it in ny notes. |Is
t here one?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: | think that
there is. | don't have that in front of ne.
| can get back to you

But both -- there's a couple of
existing conmmttees at the state |evel that
this is not going to elimnate. But we work
extensively -- and again, Ann Marie's a great
person to ask the sane question to -- State
Police, Sheriffs Association, DAs --

SENATOR ROLISON: WI I they be, you
know, brought into this --

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: State Police
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is actually naned in that.

And there's a coordinating council --
and | always nmess up the nane, it's really
long -- that | sit on with -- it's run by
DCJS and the State Police. And so all of
t hose, you know, fol ks that have al ready been
nmeeting on things like this for years can
hel p i nfluence this new council by bringing
inall the various players that deal with
this issue, fromlaw enforcement to service.

SENATOR ROLI SON: Do you -- and agai n,
because this part is newto you, do you see
any short-termgoals of this council that
woul d be able to advise and give the
Legi sl ature, you know, guidance on
potentially strengthening | ans agai nst
el der abuse and hol di ng peopl e account abl e
for it in a different way than we are right
now?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yeah, | think
that will be part of, frankly, the
del i berati ons.

| think the earliest short-termthing,

frankly, Senator, is connecting the dots.




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

255

And what | nean by that is too often a | ot of
agencies don't work that closely together
because they're -- you know, they're focused.

And we work with everybody that's been naned

in there -- Ofice of Court Adm nistration,
et cetera.
So this will be a really good

opportunity to understand what everybody
does, what our assets are, what we need to do
together. And | can't imagine things like
that aren't going to cone out of this, is
what can we do better, what statutory changes
may be needed, other types of enforcenent
actions.

SENATOR ROLI SON:  Good. And you had
said, director, that you, you know, currently
are sitting on sonme of these groups that are
neeting --

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yes.

SENATOR ROLI SON:  And what -- just in
nmy | ast 50 seconds, what do you see, as
director of Ofice for the Aging, how that
information fromthe professionals who are

doing the work every single day will be able
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to advise this interagency council to make
concrete recomrendations to the state, to the
Governor, and to the Legislature? Do you see
t hat happeni ng?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yeah, | do.

| think we specifically have to reach
out to existing coordinating councils and
then we -- you know, out of our 62 counties,
we currently have 60 with an E-MDT program
two nore comng. And that is everybody at
the community level, froma geriatric
psychiatrist to a forensic accountant to a
district attorney, |aw enforcenent,
et cetera.

You know, |'ve been doing this work a
long tine, and not at the macro level, at the
mcro level. |If we are not getting the
advi ce and gui dance from people at the
ground floor, then we're not doi ng our job.
So |l amfully in lock step with your
guesti oni ng.

SENATOR ROLI SON:  Thank you for that.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.
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ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

Assenbl ynenber Eachus.

ASSEMBLYMAN EACHUS: Thank you.

M. dsen, | |ove your exuberance when
you show up here.

|"mgoing to nake nore statenents than
guestions because there's so much and so
little tine.

Onbudsman program 1'd like to hear
in the future about what you're doing to
recruit volunteers and whether we still have
t hat requi renent where the volunteers can
have no relatives in the actual facility that
they' re checking. You know, that's not
hel pi ng you to get the volunteers in.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  We'l| get that
for you.

ASSEMBLYMAN EACHUS: Yeah. And then
the other thing that we discussed was the
reporting of the onmbudsman and how it ki nd of
just is choppy and doesn't cone back and all.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN.  Ckay.

ASSEMBLYMAN EACHUS: And then the

final thing is the EIliQ Al conpanion
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program Nine hundred units are nothing. |If
t hey' re being successful, you know, |et us
know what ki nd of nobney you need for the
future to hopefully bring nore of those

on board.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yeah, |
appreciate all those questions. W'IlIl get
the first two answers to you. | have fol ks
here hel ping to take notes.

You see sone of the outcomes data that
we have for ElI1iQ [It's only 900, but we're
the first state in the country, at |least from
a state agency perspective.

And then one final thing. 1|'m G eg.
My dad's watching; he's M. O sen.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN EACHUS: And | want to
t hank our chair, M. Kim because | think he
was the one that really kind of started with
the El'li Q program and brought us aware of it
and all, so --

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yeah. And the
Assenbl yman has anot her project that we're

wor ki ng on wi th another tech, out of
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South Korea. So we're excited about that.
ASSEMBLYMAN EACHUS: Thank you.
Comm ssi oner DeCohen, thank you for

your service. And again, just sone nore

statenents, probably.
First of all, Boys State/Grls State.
| am maki ng requests for noney from-- for

t hose of 150,000 each. The last tinme we did

the noney for Grls State they turned it

back. | don't know why.
The second thing is, you nentioned

di apers and hel ping veterans. There is such

a thing as a diaper bank. You m ght want to

check into that and see if you can work

together to do that.
The question | do have is the capital
grants. You said the second round is

April 19th, to apply for those capital

grants?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCCOHEN:  That's
correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN EACHUS: Were do they go
to apply for thenf

DVS COWMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Everyt hi ng
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they can -- to get the information -- well,
they can get the information on our website
now, and that will direct themto go through
t he grants gateway.

ASSEMBLYMAN EACHUS: kay, thank you.

And then the digital kiosks, | know
you nentioned those. | would hope that you
take and -- you consider counties, various
different counties, that have a | arge nunber
of veterans in it and maybe a county center,
you know, government centers and so on |ike
t hat .

And then al so once the nobile veterans
centers cone online, | hope you use us to
maybe ask if we can bring those nobile
centers into our districts. | know we woul d
all love to share them but we would love to
have them there too.

So -- and then the final thing that I
have is you nmentioned about 10, 000
wel come- honme letters. |'msurprised you're
able to get that information, because usually
t he Def ense Departnent doesn't |let that

information out. And sone of the county
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departments would | ove, if possible, to have
that information to nmake contact with those
vet er ans.

Thank you.

DVS COWM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you,

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Next is Senator WeiKk.

SENATOR WEI K:  Thank you.

Thank you, Comm ssioner, for your
service to our country, and thank you for
bei ng here today and for your testinony.

| represent Nassau County and part of
Suffol k County, hone to the nost veterans in
all of New York State. So a kiosk in Suffolk
County woul d be very wel cone.

But we al so represent so nmany
veterans, and we're always | ooking for nore.
And it looks |like we're getting significantly
|l ess. So when we | ook at the Dwyer Program
we've only got an increase of about a
mllion, which really doesn't do nuch for the
Dwyer Program

We're al so | ooking for nore capital
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i nprovenent noney. Because of COVID, so many
of our Anmerican Legions and our VFW were
shut down. They were unable to raise funds
to do things like repair their roof, update
their bathroonms and so on. And that's really
usual |y where the Dwyer prograns take place.
These centers are essential for our veterans.

And then of course the noney that was
collected fromthe incone tax not being
distributed and just sitting there, not
avai l abl e to our veterans, not being used for
our veterans.

You seemto be okay with the
status quo with the Governor cutting your
budget. |'mjust curious, are you planning
on asking for nore Dwer nobney, and are you
going to be asking for nore noney in the
budget this year?

DVS COWMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you
so nuch for your question. And thank you
Senator, for your service as well.

Agai n, what's not seen is that the
Governor has doubl ed her noney to Dwyer.

They' || be getting about $8 mllion in their




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

263

program W' ve been happy to continue to
work with Dwyer, which has been a magnificent
program fromthe incep, working with them
with, now, partners |ike OWH and SUNY, who
have devel oped the tool kit and the question
and answeri ng.

Again, the 24 mllion and the cuts
t hat everyone is tal ki ng about, those are
| egi sl ative adds that are not expressed in
t he Executive Budget. That |ooks |ike a cut,
but they will be put back in through your own
negoti ations for the final budget enactnent.

SENATOR VEI K:  So | appreciate your
rose-col ored gl asses approach to this, but
it's still acut. And we still need nore
noney. Qur veterans have been negl ected and
underfunded for a very long tine.

And | appreciate that you' ve forned
rel ati onships with our federal partners in
order to bring in nore of those federal
dollars for our veterans. But we need you to
be asking for an increase in Dwer. And we
need you to be asking for an increase to the

budget this year. And we're not going to
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accept no for an answer.

DVS COWMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you
so much for that.

And again, there has not been any cuts
for our veterans. This Governor is very well
aware of the dignity and what our veterans
have earned and deserve. W have gotten that
noney for Dwyer. Dwer has nore noney.
Agai n, the 150 percent increase for our
veteran service officers across the state;
the testinonies and the changed |ives of our
vet erans, whose homes |'m now going in from
New York City, Bronx, to Buffalo, is a
testament, as well as the noney that we're
bringing in, testanent to what this Governor
has done.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you very
much, Conm ssi oner.

Assenbl ynenber Al varez.

ASSEMBLYMAN ALVAREZ: Thank you al
for your testinony today.

| "' m honored to serve in the Assenbly
Commttee on Aging. | have a coupl e of

guestions for each one of you. I'mgoing to
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speak with the comm ssioner of Veterans
Services first.

What if any services are available for
our veterans, our heroes, at the New York
State Division of Veterans' Services office
in the Bronx, which is located in ny district
at the VA Medical Center in the Bronx.

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  |''m sorry,
coul d you repeat the question? | mssed a
portion of it.

ASSEMBLYMAN ALVAREZ: Yes. \What if
any services at the DVS offices in the
Bronx -- in the Bronx, located in ny
district. Wat if any services are avail able
in that division?

DVS COWMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you
for that question, Assenblynmenber Al varez.

And agai n, thank you for your service.

W' ve been happy to say we have been
working with the Bronx, the J.J. Peters and
the Bronx, period. W have veterans benefits
advi sors that are on-site there. W are part
of the food distribution program W are a

part of the Operation Baby, where baby
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clothes are comng out of that office. W
just did novies across the state, and the
Bronx was one of those sites where we had the
novies for our veterans for Veterans Month.
The FreshConnect checks are being given out

t hat our Governor increased from $20 to $50,
and a host of other services.

ASSEMBLYMAN ALVAREZ: How the cuts
that we are right now di scussing on the
Governor's budget is going to inpact the VA
office in the Bronx, if any?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  |''m sorry,
say it --

ASSEMBLYMAN ALVAREZ: So we're talking
about the cuts, right, the Governor is
proposi ng for the Aging Departnment {sic}. So
the question is, what of those cuts is going
to affect ny veteran office in the Bronx?

DVS COWM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you,
Assenbl ynenber Al varez.

Let ne say again, just so that you
know, there is no cut. What we're -- when
we're saying cuts, people are referring to

what's known as | egislative adds that are not
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in the Governor's Executive Budget. But
those are the things that would be formul ated
that are being discussed nowto be in the
final -- final budget. They look |ike a cut
to you; there are no cuts to our veterans.
Their services, especially inthe -- I"'ma
Bronx girl, the boogi e-down Bronx -- to
Buffalo is secure with all of the services
bei ng given to veterans.

W are working with folks |ike the
di aper banks. Just to let you know, sone of
our di aper banks where we were vol unteering
are running out of diapers thenselves, and
this is why it's inmportant that this clarion
call be given now, because we have
active-duty servicenmenbers who are coming to
us requesting diapers because the diaper
banks are running | ow.

ASSEMBLYMAN ALVAREZ: Thank you.

DVS COWM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you,
sir. Thank you, sir.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

| think it's ny turn. | think the

first question will be for both
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conmi ssi oners.

So yesterday we had the Workforce
Hearing and we had the various state
agencies, Cvil Service and Labor and ot hers,
and quite a few unions all saying we
desperately need people to apply for state
jobs. And I nust admit, | was thinking,
wel |, are we reaching out to ol der
New Yor kers and maki ng sure they know t hat
there are state jobs? Because |I'm an ol der
New Yorker, and | have a great job working
for the state, just for the record, and |
think there are a | ot of older New Yorkers
who woul d actually | ove the opportunity. |
hear fromthemall the tine. They were laid
off intheir fifties, they can't seemto get
back into the | abor nmarket, they need to.
They have great skills, great experience.
And the same story for veterans, whether or
not they are ol der veterans or younger
vet er ans.

So what are both of your agencies
doing to hel p support New Yorkers who happen

to be veterans or older or both to know about
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and be encouraged to apply for state jobs?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  You mind if |
go first?

DVS COWMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  No probl em

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Wel |, thanks,
Senator. |'man older worker in a state job
t 0o.

Senator Cleare's going to be thrilled
wi th your question and my answer. So
Senator Cleare's had a bill two years in a
row that has passed to create an ol der worker
wor kf orce devel opnent project. That bill is
now bei ng i npl emented adm ni stratively
between -- in the Labor Departnment, which is
the right place to do that, in consultation
with us.

So we have net twi ce, we're devel opi ng
our action plan. And I'Il tell you the three
general things and then a coupl e of other
things, and I'Il turn it over to the
conmi ssi oner .

You know, with the one-stop shops we
oversee the Title 5 program the federal

wor kf orce program for 55-plus. There's




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

270

obviously a recognition that ol der adults,
whet her you're 50 or over, experience
discrimnation. So part of this office is
goi ng to address workforce discrimnation.
W have a | ot of data on what the positives
are for hiring an older worker. But we |ive
in an agei st society, so we've got to dea
with that.

It would be the ability to skill
re-skill or up-skill older workers. That
absol utely can use technology. | know Beth
is following me from AARP, and one of the
things | |ove about themis their data. For
the first time in history, a report just cane
out fromthemthat ol der adults use
technol ogy at the sanme rate as everybody
el se. W shouldn't be surprised -- | see
everybody here who's over 50 using technol ogy
just like |I do, exactly. So we're excited
about that.

One of our partnerships is with the
CGet Set Up, and they have a nati onal
partnership with Easter Seals, who is one of

the national Title 5 providers. So what
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t hey' ve been able to develop is 83
different --

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: (M c of f;
i naudi bl e.)

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Sorry. Oh,
|"msorry. GetSetUp has a workforce training
pl atformwe want to expand. Sorry about
t hat, Senator.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: (I naudi bl e.)

DVS COWM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you,
Senat or Krueger.

W' ve been working also with our civil
service to get the information out about our
55-c program W actually just had a
Li nkedl n event for our 55 and over,

Staying Alive and Rocking Your Profile, in
whi ch they were able to | earn about the many
j obs and opportunities and the testing

requi renents for that.

In that wi se al so, our veteran benefit
advi sors, because DOL has been such a
wonder ful partner in giving us the avail abl e
list on an ongoi ng weekly basis of jobs that

are provided, we're able to work with them




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

272

Al so going back into our houses of
worship with our Faith in Service, where our
ol der population is, this is the information
that we've al so been getting out to themthat
many of them were not aware about with this
55-¢c program And they're now taking that
opportunity, because one of our veterans who
hadn't worked in 35 years i s now enpl oyed.

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Exactly. That's
great. Thank you.

So back to you, G eg.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Sorry.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: That' s okay.

So Assenbl yman Hevesi brought this up
before with social services. But with the
previ ous Governor, | forget his nane --

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Me t oo.

CHAIl R\MOVAN KRUECER: -- he didn't like
t he previous mayor, and so New York City kept
getting cut. So | don't feel that way about
the current Governor's attitude towards mny
home city.

But 40 percent of ol der New Yorkers

live in New York City, but we're only getting
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35 percent of SOFA funds in New York City.
Is that |ike just an accident we haven't
fixed yet?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Senator C eare
had rai sed that before, and that is not ny
understanding. And |'ve been around a | ong
time. It's usually 43, 44 percent. | wll
verify that and get back to you both.

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: W I I you, please?
kay, because that's -- I'mgetting different
nmessages even after Senator C eare asked the
guesti on.

Do we know t he nunbers of people on
county by county EISEP waitlists?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yes, we do.
But it's not EISEP. Again, we have an
i n-honme programthat EISEP is one funding
stream So the answer to that is yes.

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Ckay. Can we get
that, then, fromyou?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Sure.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

And sane question for case managenent

services for ol der New Yorkers by county.
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NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yup.
Absol utely.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you. Do we
al so have a hone neal waitlist?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yes.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECER: So |'d | ove al
those waitlists.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  You got it.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Ch, ny goodness, | finished ny
guestions early. | should have let you go on
about the --

(Laughter; overtal k.)

CHAl R\MOVAN KRUECGER: The Assenbly wil |
take my tinme. Thank you very nuch, both of
you.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  You' ve known
nme; you know you had to cut ne off.

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUEGER:  Yes. No, thank
you for your work.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you,
Senat or .

Assenbl ymenber Buttenschon.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN BUTTENSCHON:  Good
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af ternoon, Conmi ssioner and Director.

Comm ssi oner DeCohen, thank you for
your service and to all the veterans here,
and those |istening today.

Comm ssi oner, the denographics of ny
district in the Uica-Ronme area have many
veterans with children. So as you | ook at
the housing initiatives, | wondered if
children -- or famlies with children are
considered within the rubric as you are
| ooking at this noney and its being
al | ocat ed.

| also -- I'Il put in all ny questions
because | think you're probably going to have
to answer in witing, so thank you to both of
you.

Regardi ng the capital funding program
that was initiated | ast year, nmany of the
nonprofits that I work with struggle because
t here's working boards and possi bl e i ssues
with some of the information that they' ve had
t hrough transfers of those working boards.

So how nuch noney have you actually

al l ocated out or secured to those different
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i ndi vi dual s that have requested capital
funding? And do you have staff directly
working with these nonprofits to hel p support
their efforts, as this is newterritory for
many of them

And Director O sen, regarding
long-termcare, is there a clear discrepancy
across the State of New York in regards to
the rei mbursenent rates, or is that a
standard rate across the state?

And finally, as you |look at the budget
t hat has been presented to both of you, can
you identify what's m ssing and what you
think is needed to ensure that you can
provi de for those that you serve?

DVS COWMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you
for those very thought-provoki ng questi ons.

First of all, famly nmenbers of our
vet erans have al ways been a part. That's why
it's always been veterans and their famlies.
And agai n, because we have expanded into a
department, when our veteran is sitting in
front of us, our veteran and their famlies

are sitting in front of us.
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And so we've been able to extend the
guestions as far as the needs of the famly
menbers: Do you have school -age chil dren?

Do they need book bags? Could they utilize

cl ot hi ng?
ASSEMBLYWOVAN BUTTENSCHON: | ' m sorry,
| just want -- I'mreferring to housing with

our honel ess veterans. That in ny community,
they're conming to us with concerns that the
housi ng i s needed not only for thembut their
chil dren.

DVS COMW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Onh.  Yes.
Yes. In fact we've been supporting those
supportive housings that have already been
going up for our veterans and their famlies.
This includes our veterans who are dads with
children as well.

And then working to your other
guestion, 39 veteran organi zati ons have been
awarded. The 2.6 mllion -- we have the
other 2.6 mllion to be given out. And this
will be in increments from 25,000 to 75, 000.
And they're able to utilize the grants

gateway that has a revol ving video on there
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Wi th step-by-step questions to them

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you,

Comm ssioner. | appreciate it.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: Can | just |et
t he Assenbl ywoman know I'Il follow up in
witing on her question to nme?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN BUTTENSCHON:  Thank you
very much

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  You're
wel cone.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: And al |l questions
in foll owup should cone to Ways and Means
and Finance for distribution to everyone.
Because even if we didn't individually ask,
we all want to know.

Ckay, Senator Stec.

SENATCR STEC: Thanks, Madam Chair.

Good afternoon.

A question for Conm ssioner DeCohen.

There's about 700, 000 veterans living
in New York State, and your budget is | ooking
at a $2.4 mllion reduction at the sane tine
we're -- the sane budget proposes sendi ng

$2.4 billion to New York City for illega
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i mm grants.

How does that jibe for the veterans,

t he 700, 000 veterans? What ki nd of nessage
do you think that sends to our veterans?

DVS COWMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN: Once agai n,
you know -- pl ease forgive nme, but again, the
2.4 mllionis not a cut. W' re responding
and referring to legislative adds that again,
once you cone together and fornulate, will be
inthe final -- the final budget.

SENATCR STEC: If | could tal k about
those |l egislative adds. So the spreadsheet
that | have in front of ne, | count 18
| egi sl ati ve adds that have been zeroed out,
all over the state, sonme having to do with
Hel mets to Hardhats; one in particular
relevant to ny district, North Country
Vet erans Associ ation; Vietnam Veterans of
America; the Qutdoor Rx Program VFW You
know, these are all |egislative adds that
total $3.4 mllion.

Wiy were they all zeroed out?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCCHEN:  Ri ght.

Those are the ones that are initially zeroed
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out, again, because they don't go into the
Executive Budget. But those are the ones
that are always renegotiated -- | know you're
going to do a great job in doing that, to
bring theminto the final budget.

SENATOR STEC. Wiy do we have to fight
with the Executive to get this funding put
back in? What ganme is this that we're
pl ayi ng?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  There's no
fighting. And, you know, again, we know t hat
once the final budget comes out, you're going
to do a great job of, you know, getting those
back in. As you always do.

SENATOR STEC. All right, so honel ess
veterans' housing. |In the enacted 2024
budget there's $1.1 million for honel ess
veterans. Again, this is near and dear to ny
heart, because we're tal king about
$2.4 billion to New York City for illega
i mm grants' housing. One-point-one mllion
dollars in the enacted budget, and the
Executive's proposed cutting that nore than

half, to 500 mllion {sic}. D d we solve
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vet erans' honel essness in New York State?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCCHEN:  Agai n,
that's -- that's not being cut. W're
getting the --

SENATOR STEC. It's a cut. The 2024
enacted budget is 1.1 mllion, and the
Governor's proposed 2025 budget is 500, 000.
How s that not a cut?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Agai n,

these are -- again, these are the legislative
adds that are usually -- usually cut out of
there. The one -- the one --

SENATCR STEC:. Who cut it? Did the
Legislature cut that? This is the Governor's
budget. This is your departnent's budget
that a | ot of us fought to create this
departnment, and | think a lot of us are a
little disappointed in what we're seeing from
it.

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  You shoul d
not be di sappointed. You should be very
elated with the work that's been done across
this great state with what this Governor has

gi ven.
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And agai n, when we're talking about
qualitative, forget that. The quantitative

nunbers are proving thenmselves. Wat this

Governor has given under this adm nistration,

you have not seen these nunbers before.

SENATOR STEC. Thank you, Madam Chair.

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  We're on a
beach with sand, and we don't dare say the
beach doesn't have enough sand. W have
enough sand.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you very

much.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: | n case anybody's

m ssed it, | believe you' ve answered that
guestion four tines now.

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCCOHEN:  Yes.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  So no nore asks
of that question. Thank you.

Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI : Assenbl ynmenber
Gonzal ez- Roj as, pl ease.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJAS:  Thank

you so rmuch




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

283

Thank you both for your service and
for being here.

Director Asen, | just want to share
that 1'm personally navigating a system which
feel s di sconnected even as a nenber of the
Legislature, to try to get hone health
service for ny nother, whose cognitive
function is rapidly declining, but she does
want to stay in her hone. So | really want
to give a shout out to the wonderful fol ks at
t he Association on Aging in New York that
have been a lifeline to help ne navigate it.
It is very difficult to understand the
pat chwor k of support that exists.

Can you tal k about -- | understand
t hat ol der peopl e nmake up and spend about
$72 billion in this state, right, contribute
to our econony. And | just think about the
waiting lists and the chall enges and the
barriers that they often have to face in
getting care.

| al so understand that the Aging
budget is less than 8/ 10ths of 1 percent of
the entire New York State budget.
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| just want to nake sure that we're
doi ng our job to advocate for our ol der
New Yorkers. So can you tal k about how --
what kind of clients are served by NYSOFA and
what is the cost of that care versus Medicaid
or nursing home placenent? Because nost
peopl e want to age at hone.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yeah, no
guestion people want to age at home. And,
you know, none of this is our fault, but we
have to recognize we live in an agei st
society. And we keep tal king about "thent as
they're not going to be us with 10 years,
right?

So, you know, just getting that
through ny head, it's been difficult. W' ve
been -- you know, sone of the data you cited
is data that we've aggregated to really nake
that case, that 75 percent of older adults
consi der thenselves very healthy, they're
active, engaged, vol unteering, working.

It's that 25 percent. W don't really
have a system W have a crisis-driven --

you know, when sonebody needs sonething, it's
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usually in a crisis, because as famlies,

you' re tal king about your nother, you know,
you're going out of your way to do what you
can do until you can't do it anynore. Right?

So, you know, the cost of our services
are cheaper because we intervene earlier, and
that's the key. So | think what we want to
do, in addition to our private pay for
i ndi vidual s that can afford it, or people
like nme that can buy it on behalf of ny
parents -- which we're the only state in the
country that has to inplenent that -- to
devel op a front-end systemthat focuses on
prevention so that Medicaid,
hospitalizations, rehab, nursing hones are
the last resort. | think that's what we're
trying to get at with the Master Plan as the
mechani smto get there.

Growing older is not the problem How
we' ve organi zed our caring econony is the
problem And that's what needs to -- that's
what we need to fix.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- RQJIAS:  And

back to the Master Plan -- and ny col | eague
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asked about dedicated funding for it, and you
said it's about the inplenentation. At what

point do we imagi ne that we're going to have

to ensure allocation for not just the process
but the inplenentation?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yeah, so the
funding now, our 2.5 mllion if that mllion
goes through, and then the recomendati ons
are going to conme to everybody, and then
there's decisions that are going to have to
be nmade --

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: -- above ny
pay grade.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJAS:  Thank
you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

Senat e.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Senat e Ranker Tom O Mar a.

SENATCR O MARA: Good afternoon
Thank you for your tine today and your
testinmony. | want to thank Conm ssioner

DeCohen and Counsel or Fishbein for comng to
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New York State's first and only

Vet erans Cenetery, in Seneca County at
Sanpson, for the Weaths Across Anerica. |t
was a great event, and your recognition of
that and being there was very inportant. So
t hank you for that.

And in regards to -- | wasn't going to
have any asks for you, but since we've
confirmed that there is no cut to the budget,
we'll -- there is a need at the State
Cenmetery for grounds personnel and equi pnent.
Currently right now | believe they' re relying
on a private contractor for burials, which
shoul d that not be available, then burials
woul d have to stop

So if you could | ook at that and
prioritize there's sonme personnel and
equi pnent there, now that we're proud --

DVvS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  It's
al ready in the works.

SENATOR O MARA: -- the proud owners
of -- it's already what?

DVvS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  It's

al ready in the works, Senator.
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SENATCR O MARA: Excellent. Good to
hear .

Next on PTS and treatnent of PTS.
| " ve been a chanpion for years of the
Research and Recognition Project, which is a
RTM protocol. It's accepted nationw de. The
New York State and national Anerican Legion
is advocating for this. And the New York
State Legion put up $100,000 to train | think
30 counselors for that. And they're
di spersed around the state.

The Research and Recognition Project
needs help with referrals, getting veterans
to take that step to cone into treatnment. |
know there's been efforts underway to get
nore funding for that.

But what can you do with the current
progranms you have going on -- you nentioned
nobi | e services here -- to highlight that
program and those options? Because that
really is an effective treatnment and puts PTS
in remssion for many, many veterans and
ot her PTS sufferers.

So what do you have in the works to
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hel p foster funneling veterans that need that
toit?

DVS COWMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you
for that question, Senator O Mara.

W' ve known Dr. Bourke now -- | think
|"ve known him oh, gosh, for 10-plus years,
and his work is w dely known.

Since we've becone a departnent, you
know, we've been working nore heavily within
our partners or with OWH and SAMHSA and we' ve
had several virtual prograns that we've had
with our partners. W just recently had one
for the PTS with one of our women veterans
program organi zations. It was a "lunch,
| earn and | augh” program where information
was given with that.

And again, just working nore closely
with our state partners to ensure that those
things are built in. That's part of what's
on our form now when our veteran is sitting
in front of us, to ascertain the need and to
stemthe tide of |oneliness and things from
PTS.

SENATOR O MARA:  You know, |'ve worked
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with this for a long time. There's certainly
a reluctance of nany veterans to engage in
the treatment, and | think it needs to be
fostered a little nore to encourage that,
because we have trained these counselors
around the state, and | believe they're in
the major areas of |ike Buffal o, Rochester,
Syracuse -- 30 of themthat have been
trained, and they're providing services for
PTS patients. Not so nuch veterans at this
poi nt, but other causes of PTS, and it's
effective.

So please put that into your arsena
of referring people to these things.

DVS COWMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Absol utel y.
Yes, sir, we'll certainly look into it,
Senat or .

SENATOR O MARA: Thank you very rmuch

And just to follow up on federal aid,
foll owi ng up on Senator Ashby's -- you know,
what are -- what is the departnent doing to
try to |l everage federal aid for many of these
prograns for veterans, whether it's suicide,

whet her it's PTS?
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| mean, what's in the works to seek
out those funds to bol ster the budget of the
New York State Departnent of Veterans
Affairs?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  You know,
right now we're still in continued
conversations. W' ve had a couple of them
personally with the Honorabl e Denis
McDonough. We have a return visit back next
nmonth as well, to foster these things.

We know that there's also a backlog in
the clains being processed for our veterans.
And we know that also so many of our veterans
don't have access to their nedical records;
that's causing themeven nore stress and PTS.
So ascertaining those records and ensuring
that we have a high-quality claim as well,
you know, as continuing talks with
Washi ngt on.

SENATOR O MARA: Thank you very rmuch

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you,

Conmi ssi oner.
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Assenbl ynmenber Bur di ck.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER BURDI CK:  Thank you

And for the Comm ssioner of Veterans
Affairs, thank you for your work

There's sone interest in a veterans
cenmetery in Westchester County, and |I'd
appreci ate your letting me know the process
and | et me know who | can enmail on that.
That woul d be terrific.

Second thing, a situation was brought
up with a woman veteran who's on an advi sory
conmittee of mne, about the VA in Mntrose.
And it was brought to ny attention that
there's really no woman doctor, no
obstetrician, gynecol ogist there. And I
woul d just ask that you take a look at it.
It just to ne is not serving the needs of
wonen vet erans.

Last, honel ess veterans housing. And
while | recognize the additional 500, 000
that's nmentioned, I'mstill quite concerned
about the adequacy of the appropriation for
honel ess veterans. And to what extent are

you working with OTDA on this and feel that
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that need is being addressed there instead?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN: Wl |,
again, that's the programthat's being rolled
out .

| do want to also go back to let you
know that | just had a neeting with
Di rector Ryan Ashe and Deputy Director
Kevin King for Montrose, for the veterans
housing. And this was one of the topics that
we spoke of, and they are on that program

And we are going to be working nore
closely with themas well to have sem nars on
boards and |unch-and-learns for themas well,
to be able to ensure that our veterans across
the state -- but that was one of the topics,
just so you know. W just net a week ago,
and we're going to be hand in hand hel pi ng
themthe nore to increase our |everage for
the veterans and their famlies throughout
all of the state homes -- St. Al bans,
Montrose, all of them Batavi a.

(Overtal k.)

ASSEMBLYMEMBER BURDI CK:  And in

particular as well is addressing the needs of
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wormen veterans, correct?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCCHEN:  That's
correct.

And just to let you know,

Assenbl ynmenber, we were one of the people
that were on the original focus group --

bef ore Assenbl ynmenber Alvarez left -- for the
Bronx, where there were no wonen's services
prior to that. Now there's wonmen's services,
t here's a manmmogram rmachi ne, there's wonen's
health with GYN and all of those sane things.

That was why we were able to step up
and say that this is sonething that we can
certainly assist with, because we've done it
bef ore and the needs for wonen veterans
continue to be a concern.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER BURDI CK: | appreciate
that. And if | could, you know, offline,
send you sone additional questions on that,
|"d very nmuch appreciate that.

DVS COWMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you
so nuch.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER BURDI CK:  Thanks so

much.
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CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

We have a followup three mnutes from
Chair Cordell O eare.

SENATOR CLEARE: Thank you.

| want to go back to the Aging and
tal k about a very inportant topic. | see it
here in your testinony, and I'd like you to
expand a little bit on senior housing. They
are the fastest-growi ng popul ation. Rents,
particularly in New York City, are
unaf fordable to the young, the m ddl e-aged,
and definitely to the ol der New Yorkers.

What are we doing for seniors in
housi ng?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yeah, | nean,

housing in general is a huge issue. The

Governor has a $25 billion, five-year
Housing Plan. It's equally as inmportant to
our population. | nean, whether in the city
or upstate New York -- the housing stock

upstate is 60 years old. You could be
evi cted because of frailty or a shut-in
because of that. It wasn't designed for

ol der adults. It was designed for nmen in
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their twenties.

So we need the 800, 000 housing units.
A lot of those decisions, as you know, as a
home-rul e state are | ocal decisions. And
hopeful ly, you know, this body and the
Governor's office and others can cone to an
agreenent and start buil ding safe, affordable
enabl i ng housing stock. W need it.

SENATOR CLEARE: (kay. And al so you
nmenti on here expandi ng access to oral health
and dental care. | have a bill calling for
the state nmarketplace to offer a dental plan,
which it does not currently.

| also have a bill saying that seniors
shoul d have free dental.

What is -- how are we expanding --

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  So t hat
proposal's in the Medicaid budget. | can
follow up with you on that.

But you're absolutely right. In terns
of all older adults, it's dental, it's
hearing and it's vision.

SENATOR CLEARE: Yeah. Well,

particularly with the dental, because, you
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know, that affects themeating, getting
proper nourishnment. Oal health is rel ated
to so many ot her parts of senior health.

If I could just go back to, you know,
this math probl em we have between each ot her.
| think that -- you know, | got a question
fromDFTA: "Wy is the adm nistration
suppl anting state funding commtnents for
ol der adult services with federal dollars,
rat her than increasing state funding to neet
the growi ng ol der adult population in
New Yor k?"

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  So this is

a -- there's a question fromDFTA to nme?
SENATOR CLEARE: Well, it's a question
to me, to --

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: To ask ne.

SENATOR CLEARE:  Yes.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  And so the
guestion is why are we going after federal
f undi ng?

SENATOR CLEARE: Apparently we are
suppl anting state funding commtnents for

older adult services with federal dollars.




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

298

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  No, that --
nmean, that could not be so off.

So there are four funding streans for
our suite of services. The federal, which is
t he | east amount of noney we get, which is
why we literally -- our office, with the
associ ation, organized the nation to try to
get a $1.8 billion increase because we get so
little fromthe feds --

SENATOR CLEARE: W' ve got 10 seconds,
so | think that you are --

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: Then you' ve
got the state, then you' ve got the counties,
and then you' ve got the individuals
t hensel ves.

We do not supplant anything. A
hundred percent of our funding goes to the
counties by popul ation. Period.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you. Thank
you, Comm ssi oner.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI : Assenbl ynenber

Si non.
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ASSEMBLYWOVAN SI MON:  Yes, |'mover 50
and usi ng technol ogy.

(Laughter.)

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: | know, crazy,
right?

ASSEMBLYWOMAN SIMON: | would really
| ove that report, because | can't get ny

husband to text, and he's like way ol der than

nme, so.
Thank you.
NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  You're
wel cone.
ASSEMBLYWOVAN SI MON: Yeah, it would
be very helpful. | have to --
NYSCOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:. Sure, happy to
do that.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN SI MON:  -- shore it up a
bit. So -- thank you.

So, Commi ssioner, thank you for your
service as well. And let nme just ask a quick
guestion about World War Il veterans.

What are we doing to identify them to
recogni ze them to help their comrunities

know who they are, what they've done? You
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know, we've done a snall level in ny
district. W have the one Wrld War I
Veterans Menorial in the city in ny district,
and quite a nunber of World War Il vets stil
with us, although fewer and fewer. What is
your office doing in that regard?

DVS COWM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you,
Assenbl ynmenber Sinon, for that question.

| am al so wearing a bra that is ol der
than a | ot of people on this panel today.

(Laughter.)

DVS COMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  And so
t hi nk you know that mny background is also in
gerontology. And so this is one of the
reasons that our "find and serve" program
but also our Faith in Service, which goes
back to the houses of worship. Pew Research
shows that our houses of worship are occupied
by this generation. And so our Faith in
Servi ce has gone back to these houses of
worship to identify them

W' ve been ensuring a few things that
|"mvery proud of, ensuring that those who

are Purple Heart recipients have been
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i nducted into our Purple Heart Hall of Fane
in Wndsor. And we have taken the busl oad
back there to see it for the first tine. The
Assenbl ynmenbers with our chair and Senate
ri ght behind you have ensured that our
Korean War vets and our World War || veterans
were recogni zed right here at the Capitol
with prograns. W' ve been having --
attendi ng events and participating again
t hroughout the Bronx to Buffal o, where
they' re recogni zed. Getting themon the
Honor Flights has been our heart's desires.
Qur going back to recognize their birthday.
But going in with proclanmations from
our CGovernor to recognize themfor the
nmonument al services that they have given --
not just in Veterans Month, but all year |ong
we're there. |I'mso glad and sad to say |I'm
attending many of their funerals. But also
some of our ol der veterans who are getting
married are now calling upon us, and |'ve
performed now 21 marriages of our 70-and-over
vet erans.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SI MON: CGod | ove ' em
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What about wonmen? You know, wonen
veterans in that era weren't really mlitary
in sone ways -- but --

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCCOHEN: W' || get
back to you

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you. Thank
you bot h.

Senat e.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN SI MON:  -- you can tel
us about that.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

And Senat or Scarcel | a- Spanton for her
three-m nute followup as chair. Thank you

SENATOR SCARCELLA- SPANTON:  Thank you.

And t hank you for answering all the
guesti ons today.

My question is -- and we've di scussed
this before -- about a veterans resource
registry. It's unfortunate to say, but it's
true; I've learned nore sitting on this side
than on the other side when ny husband got
out of the mlitary and we transitioned back
tocivilian life.

Everything is not in one neat way as
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it should be. That neans jobs for veterans
and their spouses, housing opportunities,
housi ng incentives. That's not always cl ear,
even pointing to -- and | would encourage you
guys to nove this naybe front and center,
because a lot of tinmes ways that veterans get
hel p are through their famly nmenbers.

And | think the word about a veterans
program sounds wonderful. | would be nore
interested in how you connect that veteran or
the fam |y menber of that veteran to
services. And also | would encourage you to
maybe bring that nore front and center to the
website so people are aware of it.

But | think it's really inportant to
have that available for famly nenbers. And
| would just want to hear nore about that
program and what it does to connect those
veterans and their famly nenbers to services
t hey need.

DVS COWMM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you
so much, Senator.

You know, we | ook forward and we're

grateful for being able to work with you on
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this, and we can continue to have conti nui ng
di scussi ons.

We know that oftentimes it is the
spouse who i s encouragi ng those who have
served to go and get their benefits. | want
you to know when we hosted the NASDVA
conference -- again, the largest in
75 years -- right here in New York, one of
the things that we were able to do with the
best practices was | ook at one of the
progranms that one of our partners is doing
for our spousal program W just had a
neeting just a few days ago, and that's
sonmething that we're going to be
i ncorporating as well.

Again, to still stress, though, that
we still want to see those who served. The
website is great for resources but, you know,
we still want to see them But we're | ooking
forward to working on this with you.

SENATOR SCARCELLA- SPANTON:  And | just
have one nore qui ck question because we're
runni ng out of tinme.

Coul d you pl ease give ne what the cost
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woul d be to inplenent a veterans registry on
the New York State DVS website so everything
is in one spot? That's sonmething we really
want to advocate for and hel p you obtain.

DVS COMWM SSI ONER DeCOHEN: We're still
formul ati ng those nunbers from our | ast
neeting, so we'll have that to you very
shortly. Excited to work with you on that.

SENATOR SCARCELLA- SPANTON:  Thank you
so nuch.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

Assenbl ynmenber De Los Sant os.

ASSEMBLYMAN DE LOS SANTOS: Thank you
for your tinme here today. | have a few
guestions related to fundi ng support.

On the 2.4 billion allocated to
m grant funding, how nmuch of that funding has
been all ocated to the National Guard? And
can you tell us what that covers and what the
National Guard is exactly doing with the
f undi ng?

DVS COMW SSI ONER DeCOHEN: | have to
get back to you on that, sir --

Assenbl ynenber .
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ASSEMBLYMAN DE LOS SANTOS: Ckay.

And in ternms of funding for nonprofit
or gani zati ons, how nmuch of the funding wll
be provided to the nonprofit organi zation for
| egal services and transportation services?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN: Wi ch - -

ASSEMBLYMAN DE LOS SANTOS: Fromthe
2.4.

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN: Are you
tal ki ng about the |legislative adds and the
all ocation of those dollars?

ASSEMBLYMAN DE LOS SANTGS: Correct.

DVS COMW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Agai n, that
will be part of, you know, your determ nation
in the allocation for the final budget.

ASSEMBLYMAN DE LOS SANTOS: Al right,
t hank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you,
Conmmi ssi oner .

| have two nore, but |I'mgoing to ask
one qui ck question nyself. The |egislative
add process -- |'ve been here for 19 years.
Al nost every year Governors have zeroed out

the legislative adds. It's par for the
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course. Am/| correct?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCCHEN:  That's
correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: So there's no
reason to believe why the nunbers being at
zero in the Executive Budget is going to
translate into any kind of cut at the end of
the process. Is that correct?

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCCHEN:  That's
correct, Assenbl yman Hevesi

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Al right. Thank
you very much, Conmi ssioner.

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you,

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI : Assenbl ynenber
Chandl er - Wt er man.

ASSEMBL YWOVAN CHANDL ER- WATERMAN:
Thank you so much. | like the details and
the wit, and the outfit.

| have -- ny father-in-law, ny father
all served, and | have a | ot of young people
as well that's veterans in ny district. And
a lot of questions that come up -- and | know

it's been echoed here by ny coll eagues a
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| ot -- about the housing for senior veterans
and non-seniors, and then where the
Department of Aging and al so the Veterans
Departnment, they work together to support
them so they don't fall through the cracks.
And then also with the non-seniors,
maki ng sure they don't fall into the cracks.
Because they could be 20-sonet hi ngs com ng
home, and then sonetinmes they' re overl ooked.
And then of course we've got to talk
about the nmental health services, the
wr aparound services. W have ol der adults
centers where we could al so capture and nmaybe
work in partnership wth.
So like where's the coll aboration?
And then the housing situation is such a big
deal, as we tal ked about, and the nental
heal th services and supportive housing too,
right, where we have those built into those
housi ng for the senior veterans and
non-seni or veterans.
| know | said a lot, but it's al
ent angl ed and wor ks toget her.

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Good.
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Good. | do -- | do want you to know that we
have our veteran benefits advisors that are
i nside many of our supportive houses now, our
SSSV housi ng.

As you know, all of our veterans,

t hose who served don't always check the

box when they're coming in. And again, it's
educating on and going in and saying "for

t hose who served” so we are capturing them
right there so that they can get the HUD
voucher and they can get all of the

resour ces.

Al so now we're working with our
school s where we're goi ng back in, because
not only do wonen -- are the ones who
incentivize their husbands to go and get the
benefits, but also children, we have
children. So now we're working with our
boards of education to get back into the
schools to ensure that our children know
about resources that they're taking hone in
their book bags to their famly nenbers. And
t he response has been wonderful, wonderf ul

w th this.
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NYSCOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: Did you want
me to respond?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN CHANDLER- WATERVAN:  Yes,
the ol der adult centers, is there any
partnership --

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yeah, | think
you're spot on. That's exactly right, is al
of this stuff is connected. There's not one
system and it's an all-hands-on-deck, right,
to | everage the resources that we had.

Wth DVS we've done a | ot of
cross-training of our case nanagers wth
their fol ks, know ng what we do, what they
do. As | nentioned earlier, we screen for
veteran status, we could make that handoff.

| think the challenge we have, whether
we're in New York City or anywhere else, is,
you know, you have 59 triple As, area
agenci es on aging, New York City being the
bi ggest one, and then another 1,200
comuni ty- based organi zati ons that we work
with. And that doesn't include towns,
muni ci palities, 5500 faith organizations. So

there's a lot nore that we all could be doing
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to make sure that whether you're a veteran or
a child or a famly, there's a ton of
resources out there that are desperate, and
how we pull those things together to help.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you,
Conmi ssi oner .

W have two nore Assenbl ynmenbers. [|'d
like to return to Chair Jean-Pierre for her
second.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN JEAN- PI ERRE:  Ckay. |
just want to thank you again and just clarify
what | said earlier.

So fromthe veterans benefit advising
program | ast year the agency reported 7, 656
benefits being -- paynments. And this year,
35,034. So that's just a huge difference in
allocations. So | just want to know if you
can just jot it down, just to clarify, when
you get the answers back to ne -- back to al
of us.

And the next question | have is in how
many of DVS's 111 FTEs are veteran benefits
advi sors, and how nmany cl ai ns does each

advi sor actually work on? And how has DVS
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been able to ensure that the clains are being
handled in a tinmely and efficient manner,
given the increase in the nunber of

PAC-rel ated clainms? PCAP clains, sorry.

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Yeah, we
can get back to you on that as well.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN JEAN- PI ERRE:  Ckay,
perfect.

And with the increase of wonen
veterans -- we've seen an increase of wonen
veterans, and unfortunately wonmen of col or
have been di sproportionately receiving |ack
of -- connected to | ack of resources. How --
what mechani sns, what outreach, what boots on
the ground is DVS doing to reach out to wonen
vet erans?

DVS COWM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you.
Thank you so nmuch --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN JEAN- Pl ERRE
Particularly wonen of color, too.

DVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Yes, thank
you so rmuch for that question

The Governor's budget has all owed us

to hire a veterans -- wonen veterans
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engagenment coordinator. W currently have a
women veterans virtual systens across the
state with our wonmen veterans organi zations
and the foundations, where we're bringing
hol i sti c approaches.

We're getting ready to have our Bl ack
Hi story Program com ng up this nonth, and we
have our Governor's appoi ntee for our
faith-based, Pastor Cora Washi ngton, who is
going to be on that programalong with
M ni ster Conrad Washi ngton from D. C.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN JEAN- PI ERRE:  Perfect.
| saw that program

Just for the lack of time, what is the
current percentage of veterans across New
York State utilizing prograns within the
departnment? Because we went froma division
to a departnent.

DvVS COW SSI ONER DeCOHEN: Yes.  Yes.
Currently we can get back to you with that as
wel | .

ASSEMBLYWOVAN JEAN- PI ERRE:  Ckay,
pl ease. Those nunbers are critical to the

budget process. Thank you.
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ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

And Assenbl ynmenber Chair Kimto cl ose
for his second.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIM G eg, do you have
t he updated -- any updated data on the unnet
needs?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yes. W
started a formal process, so every Septenber
we're collecting electronically, and that's
public informtion.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIM Do you have like a
general | unp-sum nunber of people on the
waiting lists?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  It's not
peopl e, Assenblynman, it's services waiting
for. Because we have many people that get
mul ti pl e servi ces.

So we have services. | believe it's
about 18, 500.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIM  Ei ght een t housand
five hundred, okay.

Yeah, | just want to close by saying,
you know, when | was driving up here | was on

a call with a local constituent, her nane is
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Martha, a 75-year-old, lives in ny district.
And she qualifies for Medicare, but she's not
qualified for Medicaid. And she is |living by
herself and is actively | ooking for sone

sol uti ons around honme care.

And, you know, if she were to cal
NYSCFA or any of the affiliate providers and
progranms, what is the nost |ikely outcone for
a 75-year-old non-English-speaki ng i mm grant
wonman |iving by herself, Medicare but
non- Medi cai d, |ooking for some sort of
comunity and hone care solutions in the
State of New York?

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yeah, so what

we woul d recommend, Assenblynman -- ['l] get
this for you -- is our Queens, New York
Connects Coordinator. | have one in each

borough. What this individual will be able
to do, using the | anguage of the

i ndividual -- we require a | anguage |ine for
all the counties, including our agency as
well, so we can comruni cate with peopl e that
aren't English-speaking -- and start going

t hrough a screeni ng process, see what the
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i ndi vi dual needs.

| f she needs, you know, PC Level 1 or
a home-delivered neal and is eligible for
t hose types of things, then they can work
within the local resources in Queens to try
to identify that service.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIM  Okay. But at this
point, with the lack of the fully funded
program or of all the services and people on
the waiting list, the likely outcone of this
person -- she's not entitled. This isn't a
right that she has, right? So --

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Yes. Qur --

ASSEMBLYMAN KIM  Unl ess we, you know,
as advocates, as elected officials, do
what ever we can to |ift any layers and try to
connect them nost likely, as a consuner, if
she's making all these calls, taking al
t hese steps, as you said, she's going to be
put on a waiting list for services.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN:  Not
necessarily. So it depends on where we are
in the state. There's nore honme care aides

inthe city. GCbviously it's a nationw de
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crisis; I"'mnot debating that.

But the nuances of the people that we
serve -- we have people com ng on and off
prograns all of the tine. Because of their
age, their frailty maybe changes. So |
woul dn't necessarily say, you know, she's
automatically going to go on a waitlist,
because | can't say that that's true at all

But that's the process. And |I'll make
sure that | get you the right place to go,
Assenbl yman, to help this wonan. And if you
need help fromnme, let me know

ASSEMBLYMAN KIM  Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you. That
is it for this panel. 1'd like to thank both
commi ssioners and everybody in your agencies
for all the work you do on behal f of our
seniors and veterans. Thank you very mnuch.

NYSOFA DI RECTOR OLSEN: Thank you
guys, and thanks for your | ongstandi ng
support. | really appreciate it.

DVS COWM SSI ONER DeCOHEN:  Thank you.
Thank you so much

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Agai n, anyone who
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wants to ask questions of these comm ssioners
as they | eave, please take your conversations
outside so the next panel can be called down.
Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: And at this tine
I'd like to call Panel C. From AARP
New Yor k, Beth Finkel, the state director;
New Yor k StateWde Senior Action Council,
Gil Mers, the deputy director; Essential
Care Visitor, Mrcella Goheen; and Lifespan
of Greater Rochester, Ann Marie Cook,
presi dent and CEQ. Thank you all.

(Pause.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Ckay. [|'d like
to rem nd everyone, both menbers of our panel
and our elected officials here, that we all
get three mnutes. 1In a nonent, when we are
settled, we'll get started.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: |'ve got to
remenber that one. That's pretty good.

Ckay. Al right. W're ready to go with
this panel. | think we should go in order.

Ms. Finkel, if you are prepared to go.
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Yeah, you've got to hold it down.

M5. FINKEL: GCkay. Thank you so nuch.
Thank you, Senator Krueger, and thank you so
much, Assenbl ynenber Hevesi, and | want to
tell Senator Cleare -- who | see has stepped
out for a second -- but | want to thank her
and | want to thank Assenbl ynenber Kim the
Aging Commttee chairs. And they're just
real |y outstandi ng.

New York's agi ng popul ation is
exploding. W all know that. Between 2010
and 2020, 65-plus went up over 30 percent.
And we have to really be cognizant of those
nunbers and how t hey' re changi ng so rapidly.

Ri ght now, as everybody heard, there
is waiting lists. That nunber varies because
there are questions about how that gets --

t he nunbers conme in aggregate, and so you're

going to hear different nunbers. The nunbers
| have, we believe, is 16,000 individuals.

But | think it's back to that service nunber

that's inportant that Greg nentioned.

So there are -- those famlies are

wai ting for non-Medicaid home and
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comuni ty- based services, and those services
obvi ously include transportation, adult day
home, delivered neals and respite. And where
all these famlies are waiting on waiting
lists, we have -- we do not have the public
i nformation down to the county |evel of these
people that are waiting for ElISEP services.
So | really appreciated that question
about getting the county data in, because
that's what can hel p us determ ne where we
need to go. There are 2.2 mllion famly
caregivers in New York State statew de. And
you know that if they're not in place and
supported, then those people are going to end
up on Medicaid and end up in institutions
which we all pay so nuch noney for.

So AARP is asking for $51 million.

That is the 42 mllion that we need to get
rid of the current -- the waitlist, plus we
have to make up the 9 mllion that we got cut

fromlast year. So that's where we are at,
the 51 mllion.
| also just want to second -- on the

Long Term Care QOrbudsman, | know we've been
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talking a | ot about that. You all know about
it, so l'"'mnot going to go into detail. But
we know that's where our nost vul nerable

ol der adults are, in these institutions, and
we | earned the hard way during COVID that we
can't ignore their needs.

So the Governor's budget cut
2.5 mllion. W were saying we need
15 million for long-termcare onbudsmen to
get that one visit per nursing home every
singl e week, which is exactly what CMVS
recommends. We are so far fromthat, as the
data just cane out earlier, with only
12 percent getting a visit.

And the only way we can get that --
and so agree with the director that we need
to professionalize it. W val ue our
vol unteers. W always want our vol unteer
conmponent, but we can't be totally reliant
upon it. So the FTEs and the proper training
are absolutely crucial. And we can't be
st eppi ng backwards, which is what it seens is
happening. So again, 15 mllion for that.

| want to tal k about data matching.
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Last year we got data matching on utilities
and EAP, and we were thrilled about that.
Now we're going to the next increnent. W
want to see data matching on EPIC and

HEAP data so that people can get hel p paying
for their pharnmaceuticals.

And we know that --

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.
apol ogi ze.

M5. FINKEL: GCh, okay. One nore plug
for the food stanps increase on -- that
Representati ve Rojas nentioned, because AARP
is very much in favor of that $100 anount.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you very
much. | appreciate it.

M5. FINKEL: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: M. Mers.

M5. MYERS: Thank you for the
opportunity to testify today on behal f of
New Yor k StateWde Senior Action Council.

We have a nunber of requests, the
first of which is to restore the funding for
our Patients' Rights Helpline. That program
had a $200, 000 | egi sl ative add over the |ast
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several years. W ask you to do that once
agai n; otherwi se, we are facing a cut.

We al so are asking you for an
expansi on of funds for the Managed Care
Consuner Assi stance Programto reach nore
el i gi ble New Yorkers who have not yet applied
for the Medicare Savings Program when you so
wel | increased that.

Al'l that has been said about the need
to reduce waiting lists and to inprove the
capacity for the future. | also wanted to
poi nt out to you, however, that the State
Conptrol l er just issued a report on the
personal income tax, nonies fromthe
checkof fs that have not been allocated
t hroughout state agencies, and for NYSCFA the
Seni or Wellness and Nutrition Program has
accunul ated a fund bal ance of $341,886. So
let's please put that into neals for the
el derly.

On the EISEP program | inplore you to
consider the inpact of the cuts that are
goi ng to happen in Medicaid because of the

previ ous MRT's recomendati on that went into
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statute that changed the nunber of ADLs and
changed the conmunity Medicai d | ookback.

That will be going into effect shortly. And
we would like you to say, Get rid of that.

There will be an inpact if Medicaid
stops providing the services for future
el i gi ble people on the ElI SEP program which
is 100 percent state-funded. Wuldn't it be
better to have that funded under Medi caid
appropriately? Al so because that cut is
going to elimnate, in nany cases,
housekeepi ng servi ces which the EI SEP program
woul d ot herwi se provide. So please |ook into
t hat .

On the EPIC program we have a couple
of recommendations for you. One is our bill
that the chairs have introduced on inproving
benefits and transparency. But we al so
support the bill to increase -- to allow the
EPI C programto provide people with credible
coverage, not a Part D plan.

And then a new piece. The Governor
has done a good job in elimnating -- if you

agree -- the copaynent for diabetes. W
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woul d recommend that the EPIC program al so
guarantee a zero copay for people under EPIC
for that -- for insulin, excuse ne.

There are a nunber of cuts in the
Medi cai d budget that we are incredibly
di sturbed about -- not even having seen yet.
But we al so woul d encourage you to renove the
asset test for the non-MAG adult who's
applying for Medicaid. And we support the
Hone Care Savi ngs and Rei nvestnent Act.

On quality of care, we do not support
al I owi ng nursing hone aides to adm nister
medi cati ons and we do not believe in the
change in oversight for the assisted living
facilities.

Three qui ck things on economc
security. W support the SNAP benefit
increase to the m ni mum SNAP benefit. W
appl aud the nedi cal debt positions in the
Governor's budget; we'd ask for a few extra
changes to that.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

M5. MYERS: And we |ove the denta

care provision that Senator C eare has put
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out .

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you very
much. | appreciate it.

Ms. Goheen.

MS5. GOHEEN: Hi, |I'm Marcell a Goheen,

wi fe of Robert Victor Viteri, who's entering
his eighth year of aging in place in a
nursing home. It's good to see sone famliar
faces who were hel pful to us during COVID.
So thank you, Senator May and Ron Kim

W executed care for two years prior
to this at hone to nedicate his rare
neur odegenerati ve disorder. There was a
crisis point where | had to surrender himto
a long-termcare facility. During this tine
at home | spent $30,000 a year on private
caregivers just to keep himsafe, because we
didn't qualify for anything.

| founded essential carevisitor.com as
a platformin Robert's nane to help fanmlies
advocate during COVID to best advocate for
their |l oved ones that we were separated from
Today we triage enotional trauma, confusion

| oss and grieving that a caregiver m ght go
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t hrough when they have to make that decision
to institutionalize their |oved one.

W are a peer-to-peer nodel. W offer
two care jobs a week, and with service to
famly caregivers statewi de and nationally.

Robert -- what | really want to
testify about is Robert and the over 100, 000
vul nerabl e New Yorkers aging in long-term
care facilities are living under disastrous
limtations of the care systemright now In
his own words, before disease took his
speech -- he's nonverbal now -- he told nme "I
never want to be a burden.” | remnd himto
this day that his aging and illness is not
his fault and as his wife I will honor ny
oath to serve him | wi sh New York State
woul d feel the sane about the nmenbers of this
popul ati on.

Robert and | are not anecdot al
evi dence. W are two people of nearly al nost
10 mllion folks in New York, 5 mllion over
60, and 4.1 mllion caregivers to New Yorkers
who are aging and identify as a caregivVing

famly, whereby the five to seven hours a day




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

328

represents a portion of over $4.1 billion of
unconpensated care. This data is reflected
in the Aging Association of New York's
testinmony that cites also that nmy husband is
one of those contributing to the $72 billion
a year that this aging population contributes
to both city and state taxes. So where's the
noney?

|"mcurrently -- I'mfreaked out.

(Laughter.)

M5. GOHEEN: They may call it
caregiver stress, but 1I'm not understanding
t he budget proposals that reflect random
all ocated cuts to Medicaid that will inpact
the lifeline of my husband' s services and
supports.

| have 50 seconds. |'ve never
understood the litigation of how we can't
serve care when the dollars and the noney
keeps flowing. And the solution, | believe,
i s what has happened with my husband is we've
devel oped a person-centered care system
around himthat includes a holistic approach

wher eby, over the past eight years of him
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being in a long-termcare facility, he's been
to the hospital two times. And that's during
Covl D

So what does that tell you? That
New York State nust invest in the aging
popul ation that's only going to get nore and
nore dense, and that we need to provide
over haul ed programmati c i nnovative
transformation. | sit on three subcommttees
of the Master Plan on Aging. W need to
invest in that plan when it's finished, and
invest now -- not wait till 2026, not wait
till 2025. But there are 400 nenbers of
tal ented individuals who are anazing at this
wor k and who need to be heard.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you for the
testinmony, and perfect timng as well.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

Ms. Cook.
M5. COOK: Yeah, good afternoon. |'m
Ann Marie Cook. |'m president and CEO of

Li fespan of G eater Rochester.
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We serve a |lot of older adults each
year, but really what | am 1'mjust an aging
service provider. |'ve been at Lifespan over
28 years, and |'ve seen this new convergence
of issues unlike |I've ever seen before. And
"1l run through these briefly, but they're
all inportant: Dramatic increase in the
ol der adult popul ation; dramatic increase in
poverty of older adults. | heard you talk
about chil dhood poverty -- no one tal ks about
ol der adult poverty.

The wor kforce shortages that are going
on today. The dramatic increase in scars,
al nost al ways targeted toward ol der adults.
Wor kf orce shortages, and | would say the
stress on the famly caregivers. It is
incredible, as famlies have become snall er
and nore geographically dispersed, what it's
doing to those fam |y caregivers that remain
t oday.

So when | | ooked at the proposed
Executive Budget, | have to be honest with
you, what | said is this budget in no way

will meet the needs of older adults who need
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our help right now And | was very
di sappoi nt ed.

| just want to reiterate one thing
Director A sen said. Qur aging service
net work saves Medicaid dollars. On average,
we serve people 6.5 years, |ess than $10, 000
per person per year. If they were in a
nursing home it would be $140, 000 per person.

Most of our clients are over the age
of 80, and al nost all of them have multiple
needs for activities of daily living help.
And we're supporting themin the conmunity.

The other thing I have to say -- |
t al ked about scans, but el der abuse is alive
and well but still a very hidden problemin
this community.

They tal ked about -- I'"'mso thrilled
about the focus on enhanced mnultidisciplinary
teans, but in the process both the Senate and
t he Assenbly have al ways supported direct
intervention for older adults being abused.
That | egislative add was cut fromthe budget,
and | respectfully request that that get

added in too. That's how we get the cases to
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t he enhanced multidisciplinary teans so those
soci al workers are out there working.

And finally I also want to tal k about
the Long Term Care QOrbudsnman Program
think it's a travesty, quite frankly, that we
don't support the Long Term Care Onbudsman
Program and have those advocates in every
long-termcare facility here so that those
i ndi vidual s receive the quality of care and
gquality of life we have proni sed.

And finally, I will just have to say
one of my dear friends, Becky Preve, who
isn't here today -- but she said to ne, "At
what age do you think ol der New Yorkers
become irrel evant and we don't care?" And |
said, "We have to nake sure that answer is
never."

Thank you so rmuch for all of your
support and for allow ng us to speak today.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Any Assenbl y?

(Di scussion off the record.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI :  Senat or Muy.

CHAIl R\MOVAN KRUECGER: Rachel May.
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SENATOR MAY: Sorry. H . Hi,
everybody. Wbnderful to see you all, and
t hank you for your persistent and creative
attention to these issues, and Marcella, for
your just -- everything you do.

| guess | wanted to foll ow up about
the LTCOP programw th you, and we heard from
Greg A sen that there's progress happening.
| s that your sense? And it sounds |ike you
don't feel like it's happening fast enough,
if --

M5. COCK: | don't know if it's
happeni ng fast enough, Senator. But the
$2.5 million fromlast year nade a huge
difference in our ability to not only recruit
addi tional volunteers but also hire
additional staff, and that's what we need to
prof essionalize this. It was a great first
step -- | would say a first step of severa
steps we need to take.

But it was very disheartening, quite
frankly, to see that 2.5 mllion elimnated.

SENATCR MAY:  Thanks.

And then tal ki ng about poverty, as
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many of you did, | do carry a bill to raise

t he m ni num SNAP benefit from $23 to $100.

My understanding is it's nostly ol der

New Yorkers who are at that mninmum Do you
have a sense of how nmany people that you work
with woul d benefit fromthe increase?

M5. COOK: |1'd have to get back to
you. But that bill would be huge for us.

And we can even see in our senior
centers the | ast week, |ast 10 days of the
nmont h, they have to cone in and take bags of
food with them because they've run out of
food for the nonth.

M5. FINKEL: | would just add, a |ot
of older adults don't bother to even apply
because it's not easy applying for SNAP. And
one of the reasons they don't apply is
because the benefit is so | ow

And | would say one nore thing is yes,
and it's particularly for older adults it
really hurts.

SENATOR MAY: Yeah. Okay. Thanks.

And then | guess ny |ast question was

about the Medicare Savings Programthat we --




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

335

AARP especially worked to put in place. Can
you tell us how that's going? Are people
partici pating?

MS. FINKEL: Yes. The nunbers are
significantly going up. But there's still a
| ot of roomfor inprovenent. W' ve been
working with DOH to get the word out nore
and also with New York City. And we'd like
to do nore of that. So yes.

SENATOR MAY: Do you need hel p? 1Is
t here anything we should be doing to help you
with that?

M5. FINKEL: Well, 1 think, you know,
absolutely nore publicity about it. And then
the basic thing is the data matching. Right?
And that's what we've been tal king about. W
got the data matching |last year on utilities.
This year we're looking for it on EPIC,
agai nst HEAP, because the benefit is simlar.

And | think you' re hearing that again
and again. So often we're hearing -- |ooking
at providing these services for wonen and
children, which is absolutely needed, but why

are older adults being asked to wait? And we
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keep aski ng ODTA, what can't you do what
you're doing for famly and children, do it
now for ol der adults?

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI : Thank you.

SENATOR MAY: Thank you.

M5. FINKEL: Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI :  Chai rman Kim

ASSEMBLYMAN KIM  Thank you.

| just want to say, Marcella, | just
find your journey and just being here just
very inspiring, and turning so rmuch of your
pain as a caregiver into finding a purpose in
your advocacy to be very inspiring.

Unfortunately, | think there are so
many ot her caregivers that are sandw ched
bet ween ol der adults and their own famlies
t hat have given up, that are conpletely
traumati zed and feeling unproductive, don't
want to participate in anything.

And I"mjust -- do you -- | just
wonder, do you al so see that in your own

comunities? Because there's sonething --
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there's a phenonenon that's happening, | feel
like, with productive nenbers of our
cormmunity all of a sudden just tapping out,
saying, I"'mnot -- | just don't want to work,
| can't do this, | feel paralyzed. And I
wonder what the inpact of that is to our --
not only our society but to our economny.

And | bring this up because we framed
the investnents of your services as a noral
duty, but | really think there's a huge
econoni ¢ i npact of underinvesting and
all owi ng working mddle-class famlies to
say: You're on your own taking care of your
ol der adult. Wat does that do to our
noral e? Wat does that do to our
productivity?

M5. GOHEEN: So | |ove the question.
And | didn't get to ny paragraph about the
PTSD and the trauma of caregiving and the
post - COVI D experience that we're seeing with
formal caregivers on the frontlines, in
col | aboration with the informal caregivers --
where there's a disassociation. There's four

responses to trauma: Disassociation, nunb,
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and perfectionismand then hypervigil ance.
Which is ne.

(Laughter.)

MS. GOHEEN:. But on the front |ines
right now there's a disassociation in nursing
homes whereby the caregivers formal are
actual ly not taking people out of bed. And
their rationale is, Wll, we can't take one
person and not the other, that's not fair, so
we're not going to take anybody out of bed.

So that's the conditions of the
nursi ng homes right now.

In terns of famly caregivers, we're
nortified. | keep advocating for themto
Zoom out and be there five -- as much as they
can in order to collaborate with the care.

But there's a big mssing gap that's not
being treated. | don't know where it m ght
be in the budget for Governor Hochul. But

t here needs to be addressed the PTSD of what
happened during COVID for both the forma
caregivers, the famlies, in order to
recalibrate. That's a scientific fact.

Like if you don't take that space --
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just like veterans com ng back fromwar --
then there's no place to start. And the way
it is manifesting is in terns of famly
advocates |i ke you nmentioned. If they've

| ost their | oved ones during COVID, they
don't want anything to do with it, but they
know there's still not a resolve. Because
there's people aging in New York that are
going to need these long-termcare services
i n nursing hones.

Aging in place in a nursing hone is
aging in place. That's what it is for ny
husband. That is his honme. And we need to
do the work to serve them where they are.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIM  Thank you.

(O f the record.)

CHAl R\MOVAN KRUEGER:  Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Geat. Thank
you.

"1l use ny three mnutes, and |
believe I"'mthe | ast of the Assenbl ynenbers
to speak.

So first, Ms. Goheen, thank you for

your testimony. | really do appreciate it.
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l"d like to share that my father
recently passed away. Over the |ast couple
of years of his |ife he had Lewy body
denenti a.

So the difficulty for caregivers, |
bel i eve, even as dramatic and poi gnant as
your testinmony was, is even understated. It
is brutal to see a fam |y nmenber slowy being
stripped away fromyou, and then you | ook at
the resources that are available to you --
al nost nonexistent. So | hear you, and |
appreciate it.

And thank you for all the prograns you
do for caregivers. That neans a ton to ne
and many of ny col |l eagues.

And | do want to touch on one ot her

point -- with the limted time |I have -- as
wel |, about the Long Term Care Orbudsnman
Program

So |I've been to a lot of facilities
over the last couple of years. That's just
part of the process. And while we have a
sign on the wall on every one saying "Cal

the Long Term Onbudsman,” the fact that we're
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not funding this program-- and it's at

12 percent, it's -- they're able to hit

12 percent of the nursing honmes in the state?
You're right, that is a disgrace.

And particularly when you're talking
about people who are in desperate need,
desperat e need of advocates on the ground. |
can't get this. | need that. You need the
Onbudsman Program

| am so grateful for all of your
testinmony and all of the work that you do.
It's just greatly appreciated. | don't have
a question, | just wanted to opine for a
mnute. So thank you for all your work and
your testinony here today. Thank you.

M5. GOHEEN: Thank you.

M5. MYERS: Can | just take 30 seconds
on that point? The Onbudsman Programi s
vital, and it is not in every facility.
Cenerally for our Patients' Rights Helpline,
we tell people what their rights are and then
we tell themto call the onbudsman to be
on-site and help themuplift their rights.

And they call us back and they say, they just
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are not available for -- and, you know, great
progranms, but they're not avail abl e.

Three weeks ago | had that happen in
Al bany County, and soneone was bei ng deni ed
coverage for an extended stay that was within
Medi care, and told to apply for Medicaid,
whi ch she's not eligible for, in order to get
services. And we had to spend hours to tel
them that they were using the wong standard
to tell her she was no longer eligible for
Medi care. Hours of tine doing that, saving
her tens of thousands of dollars, and she
finally, successfully, was able to transition
to hone.

So people are not being able to hold
up their rights because the onbudsnen --
because there's not enough of themthere to
be present. And al so because, you know,
we're all stretched as thin as we can be.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: | whol eheartedly
agree. Thank you very nuch.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Senat or Ashby.

SENATOR ASHBY: Thank you for being

here.
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In regards to previous comments for
staff and nental health and nursing hones,
are you aware of any peer-to-peer prograns
that are going on, whether they're internally
driven through the setting or froma |arger
stature?

M5. COCK: | nean, our onbudsnman
region's a nine-county region in the
Fi nger Lakes. And oftentines in several
homes there are, you know, resident councils
and those kind of things, those kind of
i nformal peer-to-peer helping, if that's what
you nean.

But on a statew de basis, no.

SENATCR ASHBY: How about from a
staffing | evel ?

M5. GOHEEN: Ch, can |?

M5. COOK: Yeah, go ahead.

M5. GOHEEN: So | just -- how do I do
t his?

So we actually, at our hone, we have a
150- nenber family council and we have a
famly essential programthat we'd love to

get funded, whereby we have a peer-to-peer
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nodel where we col |l aborate with the formal
caregivers. W have social workers giving

t hem our phone nunber, famly caregivers who
can't navigate the system And it's amazing
because it is a Me Too novenent where --
forgive that word -- that, you know, you
know, com ng from another famly nenber,
exactly where that particular consumer is,
whet her they're in the first three nonths of
admtting their loved one in a long-termcare
facility, or they're in their six-to-12
nmont h, or when they're a nonth and | eaving or
a year and | eaving, or whether they're going
to be a long-termstay |ike ny husband, who's
been there for eight years.

So we have an informal program going
on, and it works magically, especially during
this disastrous staffing crisis where nursing
homes aren't even answering their phones, but
yet they're still getting reinbursed
Medi care, Medicare dollars every day, which
we don't understand.

SENATOR ASHBY: And you' ve seen that

as effective?
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M5. GOHEEN: It's amazing. And we
have just started shopping the programto
vari ous people in New York State because we
want it to be funded.

It stands before the onbudsman
program W're not professionals. But it
actual ly deescalates a lot. And we have a
system where we're going to try to work with
t he social workers on howto formalize it and
docunent it so that famly caregivers within
|l ong-termcare institutions never have to be
al one.

You' re tal king about people being
dropped off fromthe hospital and you have a
stack of papers and you have nowhere to go.
And we do see those signs of the ombudsnman
program but we didn't -- | didn't know where
our onbudsman was during COVID, had no idea.
No di srespect.

But that's very real, and we need the
systens and support on the frontline.

SENATOR ASHBY: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI : Assenbl ynenber

Eachus.
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ASSEMBLYMAN EACHUS: Thank you, Chair.
| just wanted to conment al so about
t he onmbudsman program | think we need
education. W especially need education in
t hese nursing and caring facilities. This is
the |l east punitive way that we can
comuni cate with the fol ks that run that and
t hose prograns, and they don't understand
t hat .
| think they think that, you know,
everybody's there just to pick at them and
point things out. And yet, you know, what --
what cones after this? After this is the
Departnment of Health that cones and sl ans you
with penalties and fines and so on |ike that.
So on nmy conmittee, with Aging, | wll
talk with them about, you know, if there's
some programwe can't get out there,
i nform ng the nursing honmes -- because
there's a limted nunber of nursing homes out
there -- that they shoul d understand that
this program benefits them And it really
does.

M5. COOK: No, | agree. And | do
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think the nane, a | ot of people don't even
know what that word means, "onbudsman." So
we need to be there. That's when you really
begin to pick up the quality of care and
quality of life issues, is when you're there
all the tine. And that's why we need this
critical programto ensure we're in every
facility in New York State every single week.

(O f the record.)

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECER:  Senat or Cor del
Cl eare.

SENATCR CLEARE: Cone on now. Al
right. Thank you. Thank you all for your
t esti nony.

You heard nme ask the conmm ssi oner
guestions related to the 16,000 waitlist.

And you heard his response. And | want to

know what -- your thoughts are on that, as
well as -- I"'msorry, | just cane back from
getting sonething. | know you all spoke

about the Long Term Care Qrbudsman Program
| f there's anything you have to add to that,
l et nme know.

And al so he tal ked about the report
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that was due to the State Legislature and
that it has been filed already, so if you
could confirmor --

M5. FINKEL: |I'msorry, could you --
| "' m havi ng troubl e hearing you.

SENATCR CLEARE: The State O fice for
the Aging, there's a report that's due to the
Legi sl ature.

M5. FINKEL: Right.

SENATCR CLEARE: And | know sone of
you had asked about that report.

MS. FI NKEL: Yes.

SENATOR CLEARE: And | just -- you
heard his answer to that question, so | just
want to know.

MS. FINKEL: Thank you. Thank you for
giving me that opportunity to clarify that.

So he's giving you aggregate nunbers.
He's not giving you those nunbers by county.
What we need is to understand it by the
county. And so that would be very, very
hel pful. And -- yeah, so we can al
consi stently have the same nunbers that we

can all understand, and then we can all plan
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appropriately that way.

M5. COCK: Senator -- oh.

M5. MYERS: If | may. |'Ill be fast.

W al so need to know what are the
barriers. Are there capacity issues? Wy
can't -- if the noney isn't being spent on
one thing and it's noving to sonething el se
where there's a need, that's -- that's a good
thing. But it keeps hiding what the barrier
is towhy it isn't being spent.

So if it's EISEP hone services, what
is the barrier? That the noney m ght be
going to congregate nmeal s or transportation,
that just shows nore noney is needed there.
But what are the barriers?

So if you can add that into your
request for a report -- sorry, one mnute.

MS. FINKEL: So can | add one nore
t hi ng?

W' ve been actually -- AARP has been
starting to ask county execs individually,
what is your -- because we want to get the
information. And we did hear Nassau County

is now noving froma five-day-a-week hone
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delivery to a four-day-a-week hone delivery.
What does that nean? It means that they have
to deal with the budget that they have, and
that's their solution, which we all know is
probably the worst possible solution.

| know you all tal ked about isolation
quite a bit. And sonetinmes that's the only
person that those people see at their door,
and that's the only person who can check and
say, Ms. S. is not |ooking so good today,
we'd better get, you know, some help out here
for her.

So | think that's inportant. And
that's again why we have to get this
county-specific data, so there's tota
t ranspar ency.

M5. COOK: | will have to say | think
Director Osen was correct. There's about
18, 000 ol der New Yorkers waiting for
services, and we estinmate it woul d take about
$51 mllion to serve them

SENATCOR CLEARE: W said those
nunmbers, too.

Thank you.
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CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
think I"'mthe | ast questioner, and just one
guestion. And it's controversial, | get it.
| " m expl ori ng whet her we shoul d have the
Justice Center oversee nursing hones.

Sonme people love it, sonme people hate
it. See, | got a yes and a no just on this
panel. And so it's not going anywhere very
qui ckly. But when we originally proposed the
Justice Center years ago, there was a
di scussi on about including nursing homes. It
was to address people in vul nerable
institutional settings not being watched over
carefully enough -- or for us, the
government, to be doing something since we
were paying for it.

So I"'mgoing to enbrace it again at
the Mental Health Hearing where the Justice
Center cones. But -- | don't even know if
there's tine for any of you to junmp in and
answer, but | just wanted to throw that out
to you for now.

M5. GOHEEN: |'Il answer that. |'ve

worked with the Donestic Violence Justice
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Centers with Mchael Bloonberg. | wote sone
curriculunms for themway back. And in terns
of it being borrowed to a structure in a
long-termcare facility, | think it's
brilliant for a | ot of reasons.

Because on the frontlines, especially
now, post-COVID -- and | want to rem nd the
State Legislature that we're in a post-COVID
environnent, which is very different. These
caregivers are stressed, dissociated, nunb.
The adm nistrators are nunb. They' re not
here right now. So in order to put a
structure, any structures on the frontline
t hat woul d have justice systens and supports,
is what I'mgoing to say, for the vul nerable
New Yorkers that -- Bob has ne, nmy husband
Robert Viteri has ne to the day he takes his
| ast breath. But there are, you know,

684 ot her people in my husband' s nursing hone
that don't have a Marcell a.

So | think that those checks and
bal ances, the way Safe Horizons works, a
center would be brilliant. Because it would

be interdisciplinary, it would be
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mul ti generational. It would also open up
space for people to get into this kind of
wor kf or ce

Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

M5. COOK: Senator, | just wanted to
comment. | obviously shouldn't play poker,
because you read ny face i medi ately.

(Laughter.)

M5. COOK: But | would really have to
t hink about it. | have seen the
Justice Center as we work with older adults
wi th devel opnmental disabilities. And of
course those situations go there and,
honestly, get bogged down in a | ot of
bur eaucr acy.

So | do think we need to do sonething
wi th nursing hones and really investigate
qual ity-of-care issues better than we do
today. But let me think about your
suggestion --

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECER: Pl ease.

M5. COOK: -- and get back to you.

Thank you.
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CHAl RWOVAN KRUECGER: Pl ease.  Thank
you. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Okay. | believe
that's it. Thank you to this panel for your
testinmony. |It's greatly appreciated.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: | would like to
call up Panel D. From ECE On The Mve,

Shani ta Bowen, the chief operating officer.
From t he Chi nese- Aneri can Pl anni ng Council,
Jessica Hsieh -- | hope |I pronounced that
right -- respite coordinator. Fromthe

Early Care and Learni ng Council,

Meredi th Chinmento, the executive director.
And fromA | Qur Kin, Steve Mrales, New York
State policy director.

Pl ease conme on down.

Thank you. Thank you all for com ng.
Let's go in order, if we can

Ms. Bowen, the floor is yours.

M5. BOVNEN. Thank you to the Senate
and Assenbly chairs for the opportunity to

testify, and especially to Senator Brisport
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and Assenbl ynenber Hevesi for their
out standi ng | eadership in childcare.

Good afternoon. |'m Shanita Bowen,
16 years as a famly childcare provider and
chi ef operating officer of ECE On The Move,
representing the voice of the famly
chil dcare workforce in New York City.

Fam |y childcare is a childcare
business in residential settings, the second
| argest nodality of care, second to legally
exenpt, and anong smal |l businesses that are
systemcally set up to fail financially.

W are paid by a faulty nmarket rate
systemthat is so low, it paints the picture
of Bl ack and brown wonen working for pennies
on the dollar to take care of children in her
nei ghbor hood whil e m racul ously offering
quality service, and knowi ng full well that
she is juggling the usual snmall business
expenses |ike worker's conp, taxes, business
supplies -- the list goes on.

And now, effective this nmonth, the
m ni mum wage just went up, which neans that

her assistants' pay goes up.
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Fam |y childcare in New York City wll
continue to do what they've been doi ng, which
is go without or go with little.

d adys Jones, founder of ECE On The
Move, says that childcare should be as
effortl ess and accessible as breathing: W
have it for all who need it w thout
consideration. Wich is why famly childcare
provi ders and parents care about universal
chil dcare and being paid by the true cost of
care nodel

W want fair, equitable wages fit for
early care educators who are proud of their
work, their resources, their pay, al
resulting in children who go on to be
aut ononmous citizens who give back, such as
you all as Senators and Assenbl ynmenbers.

But once again, early care educators
in residential settings are not anong those
to be let into the m ddle-class door,
forgetting that childcare is the cornerstone
of econom c devel opnent. Accessible and
af f ordabl e chil dcare enabl es parents,

particularly nothers, to participate fully in
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t he workforce. This, in turn, boosts
productivity, increases tax revenues, and
reduces dependency on social assistance
progr ans.

Al so forgetting that a strong
chil dcare system reduces the reliance on
soci al assistance prograns as fam|lies becone
nore self-sufficient. Mreover, with parents
actively participating in the workforce,
there is an increase in tax revenues,
provi di ng additional resources for public
services and infrastructure.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

Ms. Hsi eh.

M5. HSIEH. Ckay. Thank you for the
opportunity to testify today. M nane is
Jessica Hsieh, and |I'm speaki ng about the
Chi nese- Aneri can Pl anni ng Council today --
CPC.

CPC provides vital resources to nore
t han 80, 000 peopl e per year in the five
bor oughs, from daycare to afterschoo

progranms to senior services and honme care. |
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used CPC service as a child with inmm grant
parents. | used CPC service as a teenager
for the Sunmer Youth Enpl oynment Program And
as an adult, | joined the Undo Poverty
Initiative, a coomunity-led plan to conbat
poverty and pronpote econom c nobility in

Fl ushi ng.

Through ny participation in this
group, | was able to secure a full-tinme job
at CPC as a respite coordinator, where | work
directly with community nmenbers with
devel opnental disabilities. And | allow them
to socialize and have, |ike, a social hour.

As you can see, CPC has been an
integral part of ny life, as being on the
side of providing the service to nme and ne
provi di ng back to the community nmenbers who |
serve.

Human servi ce workers nake 70 percent
of what governnent enpl oyees nake for the
exact sane role, which we do in nore
| anguages, in a culturally responsible way.
Fifty percent of my colleagues in the hone

care sector are eligible for SNAP and ot her
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public benefits.

Each year you hear from providers who
struggl e due to the underfundi ng of
gover nment al budgets bal anced on the backs of
| ow-i nconme nei ghbor hoods and BI POC
communities. Yet each year the state
per pet uat es poverty-|evel wages for hunman
service and honme care workers, who are
predom nantly inmm grant wonen of color |ike
nysel f.

As federal COVID 19 relief funding is
qui ckly running out, our conmunity menbers
needs have only continually grown. The food
lines are longer, not shorter. Half of the
Asi an househol ds in New York are
rent-burdened. One-third of AAPI seniors
live bel ow the poverty |level and cannot get
home care and ot her supports needed to stay
in their homes safely.

The state nust invest in our social
net by allocating a 3.2 percent COLA for al
human service workers and passi ng the wage
board bill; expanding the AAPI equity budget

to provide long-termhealing for our
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comunity; investing in the hone care
wor kf orce through Fair Pay for Hone Care and
t he Hone Care Savi ngs and Rei nvest nent Act;
uplifting our immgrant comunities through
t he Unenpl oynent Bridge Program addressing
t he housing crisis by passing good-cause
evi ction and the Housi ng Access Voucher
Program increasing SNAP benefits; and
tackling the climate crisis by maki ng our
public transportation accessible and
af f or dabl e.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Ms. Chi nento.
Good to see you

M5. CHIMENTO Nice to see you. Nice
to see all of you

There's the m crophone.

The Early Care & Learning Council is
t he nenbership organi zation for the 35
chil dcare resource and referral agencies
| ocat ed t hroughout New York State. You heard

a | ot about themtoday.
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|"mhere to thank you. For the first

time in close to 15 years, CCR&Rs wi ||

realize a 20 percent contract increase. |It's

incredible. W are grateful. | have sat
here for six years saying, please, have

this -- you know, make sure this takes pl ace,
and it did.

We are beyond thrilled about sone of
the investnments in childcare. There's stil
a need for nore, of course. W support the
addition of after-school funding, $5 mllion
for Staffed Fam|ly Child Care Networks to
expand t he busi ness supports for famly and
group famly childcare providers, and of
course the liquidation of the unspent
Wor kf orce Retention G ant funding.

W of course have an ask. W are
| ooking to increase -- we're |ooking for an
increase with our Infant Toddl er Mental
Health Services, $4.5 mllion annually.

| nfant Toddl er Mental Health
Consul tation was | aunched in 2019. W have
42 consultants around the state that provide

critical supports to childcare providers,
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| ooki ng at the social-enotional supports
necessary to run quality childcare. There's
not enough consultants.

We are asking with that additional
4.5 mllion to focus on New York City, an
addition of 12 Infant Toddl er Mental Health
Consul tants. Over 50 percent of children
under 5 are located in New York City, and
four Mental Health Consultants are not
enough. We're asking for 14 in the rest of
the state, so that would be Long I|Island and
t hroughout the rest of New York State.

Mental Health Consultants | ook at
reduci ng the expul si on and suspensi on of
Bl ack and brown boys in childcare, who are
suspended and expelled at a rate much hi gher
than their white counterparts.

Coupled with that increase in nenta
heal th fundi ng, we request $1.5 mllion
annually to start to add seven equity
positions, or equity officers, located in the
seven OCFS regions. This programw || create
anti-racist curricula, culturally responsive

early care in education, and work closely
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with the Ofice of Children and Famly
Services' DEIA commttees to eradicate
system c and institutionalized forns of
di scrim nati on.

Mental heal th consultation, coupled
with these DEIB positions, will ensure that
the early childhood field will provide
much- needed support progranms to ensure that
t he sizeabl e federal investnments nade
t hroughout the pandem c are not wast ed.

We nust continue to enhance the social
enoti onal supports that educators and
chil dren desperately need. To ne, |nfant
Toddl er Mental Health Consultation, coupled
wi th DEIB programm ng, will nove nountains in
increasing the quality of early care and
educati on.

As a nmenber of the Enpire State
Canpai gn for Child Care, Raising New York
and the Child Care Availability Task Force,
we ask you to prioritize continued investnent
in the childcare sector, raising wages for
our educators who struggle i mensely just

neeting their nost basic needs.
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Thank you.

MR. MORALES: Honorable Senators,
menbers of the Assenbly, ny name is Steven
Morales. |1'mthe New York policy director at
Al Qur Kin,

Al Qur Kinis a nonprofit
organi zation that trains, supports and
sust ai ns home-based fam |y childcare
educators in New York City, and we are al so
proud nmenbers of the Enpire State Canpaign
for Child Care.

| want to talk a little bit about what
famly childcare is, though ny coll eague
Shanita said it really well. Famly
childcare is paid care that takes place in
the home of a licensed childcare
professional, and it is one of the nost
comon chil dcare arrangenents in our state.

There are roughly 10,500 providers
across the state with the capacity to care
for over 140,000 children. Famly childcare
progranms offer not only famly stability, but
they offer children opportunity: the

opportunity to explore, the opportunity to
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build strong rel ationshi ps and devel op skills
that will remain with themfor the rest of
their lives.

| encourage each of you to think for a
nonment about your early chil dhood, about the
caregi ver who you knew you could trust. |
hope that we all have fond nenories of that
person or many people in our |ives who hel ped
us grow into the people we are today, and
that is what childcare offers. And that is
what this essential workforce neans to our
chil dren.

The reality is that educators are
t aki ng noney out of their own pockets to nake
up for our state's broken childcare system
According to a New School study, famly
chil dcare educators in New York City earn
only $10.61 per hour. And | worry that
because many educators have managed to hold
on by the skin of their teeth, that we are
taking their sacrifices for granted.

| f the pandem c taught us anything, it
taught us that childcare is essential for

working famlies, for our econony. And over
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the last few years, the Governor and the
Legi sl ature have stepped up and expanded
chil dcare access, and that's great. But
unfortunately, pandem c energency funds are
expiring and the Executive Budget offers no
new i nvestmments in the chil dcare workforce,
which is going to put all of the progress
we' ve made at ri sk.

That is why we are calling for an
investrment of $1.2 billion in a pernmanent
Chil dcare Workers Fund. This is the nost
crucial investment that we can nmake to ensure
that this essential workforce can continue to
serve our comunities. Wthout it, educators
will continue to be forced to |leave the field
for nore reliable jobs in retail and food
services, and that will nmean famlies |ose
access to the care that they need.

We also call on the state to fund the
bi parti san chil dcare decoupling |egislation
t hat passed overwhel mi ngly | ast year but was
vetoed. | think we can all agree that naking
sure fam lies can access care when they need

it is a commpnsense reform for our nodern
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econony.

And finally, we're encouraged by the
Governor's proposal to pilot famly childcare
net wor ks, which are the gold standard for
supporting famly childcare educators. W
want to see those funded and i npl enent ed
wel | .

I n concl usion, we all know the
i nportance of childcare. It's tinme to
permanently invest in the childcare workforce
so that they and famlies across our state
know that they can stay here to thrive.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Senator Brisport.

SENATOR BRI SPORT: Wel |, thank you,
Madam Chai r.

And t hank you to our panelists for
com ng here today, but also for the great
wor k you do.

My questions are for ECE On The Move
and AlIl O Qur Kin. They're about the
stabilization grants. You can answer all of
t hem or whi chever ones you want. But have
you observed any difficulties in accessing

t hose workforce grants? Wre they enough to
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stabilize the childcare sector? And would
you consider the childcare sector stable now?

M5. BONEN. W are very grateful for
the stabilization grants. They hel p keep
doors open. That is now over. So childcare
provi ders are facing decisions on whether to
take work in retail or work in fast food. So
peopl e are nmaki ng decisions right now as to
whet her -- stabilization is a band-aid. It's
just a tenporary fix on a very |ong-standi ng
problem And so we need a permanent
sol uti on.

And | neant to nmention -- | didn't
know about the buzzer -- but ECE On The Mve
supports Enpire State Canpaign for Child Care
in the ask for a permanent workforce fund to
stabilize the famly childcare sector and al
chil dcare sectors. W don't need to worry
about instability in receiving pay and taking
care of children

MR MORALES: | don't have much to add
to that. Absolutely. The stabilization
grants were good for what they were supposed

to be, and they're gone. And we need a
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per manent sol ution.

SENATOR BRI SPORT: Great. And with
the remaining time, we also heard a bit about
rei nbursenent rates. Do you think the
practice of reinbursing at 80 percent of the
market rate is sufficient? And if not, why
not ?

MR MORALES: | think it's pretty well
docunented. There have been a series of
studi es how the market rate does not
rei nburse nearly enough, up to ten to $15, 000
a year per child less than it actually costs
to an educator to provide that childcare.

So increases are always good, but if
we're not paying that full cost, educators
are taking that noney out of their pockets.

M5. BONEN. Family chil dcare providers
would Iike to be paid for what it costs to
of fer care. They nust be able to pay their
assi stants good rates for educating young
children and then have a salary for
t hensel ves. Right now they're not taking
home pay. Right now they' re paying their

assistants and they're doi ng above and beyond
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to assure quality in their progranms and they
are not pocketing any noney for thensel ves.

SENATOR BRI SPORT: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI : Thank you. No
nore Senators? Ckay.

Hi , everybody. Thank you for your
testimony today, all of you. One quick
guestion, | guess, or a question for all of
you.

s there any way in New York State
that our childcare system woul d be successf ul
wi t hout a pernmanent workforce fund?

MS. CH MENTO  No.

MR, MORALES: No.

M5. BONEN. Absol utely not.

M5. HSIEH. Definitely not.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Cool. Geat. |
appreciate that. And that's what we need to
remenber -- we'll get to -- that's what we
need to remenber going forward. And | think
you'll notice that some of the questions for
t he commi ssioners earlier -- we started with

the workforce, we're going to end with the
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wor kforce, this is all about the workforce.
So we totally agree.

| do want to say thank you to
Ms. Hsieh for her testinmony for CPC, which is
really powerful in that you were receiving
services and are now hel ping others to
receive services. And | whol eheartedly agree
about the COLA, the cost of living for the
human services workforce. Not only do we
need to increase the COLA, but first we need
to make sure that everybody's in the COLA.

| am-- 1'Il opine for two seconds.
|"mtired of having COLAs get done in the
New York State budget and then 50 people

comng to ne after and saying, But you forgot

about us. It is bad governnent.
And | guess ny questions are -- only
for Ms. Chimento, if | can -- the Governor

did put in some noney for the infant and

t oddl er nental health, which | thought was a
very good start. Am1l right that that's a
good start, or are they off-topic? How can
we do it? Please.

M5. CHI MENTG  Sure. Thank you, yes.
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Soit's $1.7 million for the seven
| nfant Toddl er Mental Health Resource
Centers, which have been flat-funded since
2019, since the inception. That 1.7 mllion
will allow for cost-of-living adjustnments for
the 42 nmental health consultants; travel;
pr of essi onal devel opnent; overhead for the
organi zati ons that operate them

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: But this is not
the addition of any new -- of these workers.

M5. CH MENTO No. What was
referenced in the State of the State -- which
was a doubling of Infant Toddl er Mental
Heal t h Consultants -- was not accurate. |It's
actually just the addition of 1.7 mllion.

Which is why we're asking for the
additional 4.5 mllion, to add nore Mental
Heal t h Consul tants.

New York State is a nodel state with
| nfant Toddl er Mental Health Consultation.
We should be very proud of this program W
need nore consultants. W need nore
consultants in New York City to serve

50 percent of the children, but we need them
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around the rest of the state. And that's
what the request is for.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: That's
exceptionally hel pful. Because | actually
briefed ny coll eagues and said that the
Governor had taken a first step towards the
asks fromthe CCR&Rs, and apparently | was
W ong. So this is very hel pful --

M5. CHIMENTO There is -- there is an
i ncrease, Yyes.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: No, no, no.
There is an increase, but not for what we're
| ooki ng for out of this budget.

M5. CHI MENTG  Absol utely.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: So we appreciate
the increase. So --

M5. CHI MENTO Exactly. W're on the
same page.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: We're on the sane
page.

M5. CHI MENTG  Absol utely.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: | think we're
talking a weird | anguage, but we get it.

M5. CHI MENTO  Yup.
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(Laughter.)

M5. CHI MENTO We're always in sync.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Okay. And then
guess with the two seconds | have left,

M. Mrales, if you could tell us, at sone
point in the future --

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: -- how t he
Governor's pilot for famly and group
childcare would -- is being rolled out. And
if you think it's a good use of that
$5 mllion.

Wth that -- is it 7 or is it 5?

M5. CH MENTO Five for staffed
net wor ks.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Five for
staffed -- that's correct.

Ckay, thank you all. W very nuch
appreci ate your testinony.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Oh, |'msorry.
W' re not done yet. M bad.

Ms. Mtaynes, Assenbl ynenber M taynes.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN M TAYNES: Thank you.
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We keep tal king about the need for
revenue to fund our very inportant prograns.
So the question is for all of you. Do you
support revenue-raising proposals to finance
publ i ¢ goods and services that inprove the
quality of life for New Yorkers? Do you
support taxing the rich?

M. MORALES: | will let you al
handl e the politics for how you raise the
funding. But | -- what our -- ny perspective
and our perspective is that we have to find
the funding. So that could take whatever
shape it takes.

But there is an essential need to fund
this childcare workforce and to make sure
that every child and famly in this state who
needs childcare can access it. And so that
t akes noney, and |'m happy to hel p, you know,
think of ways to find that noney.

M5. HSIEH. Yes. Because it's only a
portion out of their noney that's com ng back
into the cormunities that we serve, the
under -- the | owincome popul ation that we

serve.
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Wiy not? We're all people. At sone
point of life, tonmorrow you can go bankrupt
and need that service. So why not help
today? Thank you.

M5. BONEN. Family childcare believes
that childcare should be a public good. So
by any means necessary, however you can get a
great quality education for our young ones,
pursue it. It is a public good. It should
be available to all who need it.

M5. CHI MENTO  Yeah, | agree. | think
there's got to be creative ways to generate
revenue. We tal ked about it with the [aunch
of the $4.8 mllion Tri-Share program which
woul d be the public-private partnership to
invest in childcare.

| think there is a new project, it's a
m | lion-dollar Business Navigator project, to
speak to busi nesses about underwiting the
cost of childcare.

| ncreased taxes al ways work too.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: kay, thank you.
| think that is the end of the questions for

this panel. Thank you all. | very much
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appreci ate your testinony today.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

|'d like to call down Panel E. We'll
keep rolling right along. Fromthe Schuyl er
Center for Analysis and Advocacy, Dede Hill
policy director. Fromthe Cornell ILR
Buf fal o Co-Lab, Steve Peraza, who's a senior
research and policy associate. Fromthe
New Yor k Associ ation of Training and
Enpl oynment Prof essi onal s, we have
Therese Daly, the interimexecutive director.
And from COFCCA, the Council of Famly and
Child Caring Agencies, Mchelle Newran, the
associ ate executive director.

Thank you all.

Wi ch one of you is from Cornell?

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Sorry. |t was
just too easy. Sorry.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Sorry. M. Hill,
pl ease, get us started.

M5. HILL: (Mc issue.) It's not --
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Oh, there | go. Thank you.

Thank you for the opportunity to
testify today. | ampolicy director for the
Schuyl er Center for Analysis and Advocacy.

We are a nonprofit dedicated to inproving
public systenms that serve | owinconme and

di senfranchi sed New Yorkers, and we are

| aser-focused on ending child poverty and
establ i shing universal childcare in New York
We are al so proud nmenbers of the Enpire State
Canpai gn for Child Care.

Turning first to childcare, we wel cone
t he Executive Budget's increased investnents
in the state's childcare assi stance program
This is building on the historic investnents
New Yor k has nade over the past two years
t hat has made tens of thousands of New York
famlies newy eligible for assistance.

However, and |'m going to echo what ny
col | eague said in the | ast panel, those
expansions will nean nothing to famlies if
they cannot find a childcare programwith
capacity to care for their child. And

chil dcare prograns are shuttering classroons
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and closing their doors altogether because
they cannot recruit and retain staff due to

| ow wages. And I'll join the chorus: Wat
we need is a permanent line of funding for
chil dcare workforce wage supplenents. W

al so need a rate increase for famly, friend,
and nei ghbor providers.

And to be very clear, the Executive
Budget all ocates no new funds for the
chil dcare workforce, it just directs that
| eftover federal pandem c funds that were
all ocated in last year's budget that were
intended to be paid out in full to the
wor kforce last year. That is all that is in
t he budget.

Also missing in the Executive Budget
is funding to end the state's inequitable
practice of tying childcare assistance to the
exact hours a parent works, and the practice
of excluding children fromchildcare
assi stance due solely to their immgration
status. For any parent or caregiver who
needs to work, childcare should not be a

barri er.
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Turning to child poverty reduction, |
want to urge inclusion of the MLC pilot in
the final budget to create a cash transfer
programto parents of infants at a critica
period in their devel oprment.

Wth respect to the Executive Budget
proposal to address concentrated poverty in
three conmunities, it is inportant -- we're
excited to learn nore details. It is
inportant to note that the proposal is
supported by one-tine funding, yet we know
that to truly turn the tide on child, famly,
and comrunity poverty requires sustained
public investnment over many years.

Thank you for your fortitude. | |ook
forward to your questions.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

M. Peraza, please.

MR. PERAZA: M nane is Steve Peraza.
|"ma senior research and policy associate at
Cornell ILR Buffalo Co-Lab. W study the
worl d of work, and we provide partners,
practitioners, and |eaders -- like you

guys -- with actionable intel to help
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wor kers.

| want to thank you for the
opportunity to present testinony today on the
2024- 2025 New York State Executive Budget.
|"mhere to report findings froma new study
publ i shed by Cornell |LR Buffalo Co-Lab, and
it's called "The Status of Child Care in
New York State."

Nunber one, the policy changes in the
fiscal year 2021-2022 have had uneven results
across New York State. |In our report,

Buf fal o Co-Lab has shown that the initial

i nflux of New York State funding hel ped to
stabilize the childcare industry during the
pandem c, but since the pandem c there has
been little progress in the availability and
accessibility of childcare across the state.

Qur research shows an unevenly
changi ng chil dcare | andscape with m nor gains
i n aggregate capacity and nmeani ngful | osses
in many areas across the state, particularly
in upstate counties and | owi ncomne
comuni ti es where childcare deserts and near

deserts al ready exi st ed.
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Nunber two, childcare capacity is
ticking up, but the industry diversity is on
the decline. Data from New York State's
Ofice of Children and Fami |y Services show
t hat statew de both the nunber of |icensed
chil dcare providers and the nunber of slots
avai |l abl e through these providers increased
nodestly since 2021.

In the aggregate, New York State
experienced a net gain of 75 |icensed
providers from 18,731 slots. The increase
was driven al nost wholly by growth anong
group famly daycare providers, which
i ncreased by 501 providers and
7,829 childcare slots. These trends did not
spill over to fam |y daycare providers. This
cl ass of providers |ost 381 establishnments
and 2,938 childcare slots since 2021.

And nunber three, childcare's economc

return on investnent is really high. W

found that if you invest $1 billion into the
New York State childcare industry, you'll see
back $1.8 billion in econom c activity,

20, 300 new j obs.
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Finally, a childcare conpensation fund
woul d rai se wages for all childcare workers.
Per our analysis, if all childcare workers
ear ni ng bel ow $23. 55 per hour were el evated
to that level, and if those workers earning
at or above that |evel were given 20 percent
retention rai ses, then the nedi an annual
subsi dy per worker would be on the order of
$13, 000 per year.

| f the nodel called for a m ni nrum wage
of $23.55, then the total cost of raising
wages for childcare workers would be nearly
$800 mllion per year.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you, sir.

Ms. Daly, please.

M5. DALY: Testing. Hi.

Good afternoon, Chairpersons Krueger,
Fei nstein, Persaud, Davila, and
Assenbl ynenber Hevesi, as well as the
di stingui shed persons of the Senate and
Assenbly. Thank you for allow ng NYATEP this
opportunity to testify before you on this

i nportant topic.
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My nanme is Therese Daly, and |'mthe
interimexecutive director of NYATEP. W're
t he statew de workforce devel opnent
associ ation representing New York education
job training, adult education, postsecondary,
and enpl oynent providers.

NYATEP' s nmenbers serve over
1.2 mllion New Yorkers annually in education
and enpl oynent services, and support
t housands of businesses in the region as they
train and enploy talent. W greatly support
your -- we greatly appreciate your support
and efficacy of the fiscal year 2024 enacted
St at e Budget that included a one-tinme incone
di sregard for individuals conpleting an
approved enpl oynment program

We have some concerns, though, with
t he | anguage requiring individuals are only
eligible for those whose i ncone does not
exceed the 200 percent federal poverty |evel.
We believe that this language Iimts the
nunber of people who are able to participate
because of the cap. This excludes

i ndividuals in New York City and Long I sl and.
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We are asking the Legislature to
i nclude in their one-house budget proposals
Senator Persaud's Bill S8374, which woul d
remove the federal poverty |evel requirenent
for recipients where it concerns one-tine
di sregard of earned incone.

And as you know, Governor Hochu
| aunched the O fice of Strategic Wirrkforce in
2022. The office has since announced only
$35 mllion in funding rel eased to the
several projects of the $150 mllion set
aside for grant funding. Despite the hope,
this funding is highly inflexible and
i ncludes zero for the grant program W thout
a state-dedicated investnment, the only
wor kf orce funding that the state has is from
t he federal Workforce |Innovation and
Qpportunity Act -- which has been, honestly,
on the chopping bl ock as of |ate.

Qur success as a state will be
measured by how wel | we support these
New Yorkers as they recover fromthe
pandem c. So our ask: W urge the Governor

and the Legislature to spend down the
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$150 million in grants that will provide
much- needed flexible funding into the
wor kf orce system

We al so ask that you renpve the policy
barriers that nmake it difficult for poor
New Yorkers to access good jobs.

And NYATEP strongly recomrends both
t he one-house budget proposal s include S8374,
as above nentioned, and it would renove the
federal poverty |level requirenment for
reci pients where it concerns the one-tine
di sregard of earned incone.

Thank you very much

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

Ms. Newman.

M5. NEWWAN: Hi. M nane is Mchelle
Newran. |'mthe associ ate executive director
at COFCCA. W represent over 100 nonprofit
organi zations providing child welfare
services in New York

W were encouraged to see the
Governor's State of the State highlight the
significant nental health needs of youth.

Her Executive Budget, though, falls short of
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provi di ng the i medi ate supports needed in
child welfare, a critical conponent of the
behavi oral health systemin a few key ways.

First, | want to strongly enphasize
t he sectorwi de ask for additional investnents
in human services. The COLA, funding it at
3.2 percent instead of the proposed 1.5. W
al so strongly encourage inclusion of the
Hevesi - Persaud bill to apply the COLA
equi tably across the sector. For our
menber s, that neans including prevention
progranms and heal th homecare nanagers serving
chi | dren.

Second, the network of providers
of fering behavioral health services across
New York is at risk unless we take state
action this year to create a Child Victins
Act settlenent fund.

In 2019, the Legislature passed
nmonunent al | egi sl ati on establishing the
Child Victins Act, which provided a nechani sm
to give victinms an avenue to seek justice
agai nst their abusers. However, w thout

state intervention, sone individuals my
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never receive their due conpensation, and
t housands nore children will be negatively
i npacted due to the | oss of essential

servi ces.

A recent independent study from
SeaChange notes that child welfare providers
do not have the fiscal reserves to fund
awards to victinms where there is insufficient
i nsurance coverage. Unfortunately, we have
found that insurance coverage cannot be found
at all in alnost 40 percent of the cases in
this sector. The study concludes that child
wel fare providers are at risk of either
di sconti nuing essential services or failing
conpl etely.

In addition to their child welfare
programm ng, our mnenbers offer a broad array
of programs and services designed to prevent
adverse chil dhood experiences and to pronote
child safety and wel |l -being. Those are at
risk. Exanples include m grant services that
support over 7,000 famlies in New York City
al one; honel ess services, antiviolence

prograns that have had a denonstrated inpact
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in reducing gun violence in communities
statewi de; nental and behavioral health
services |ike HCBS, CFTSS, and Article 31
clinic services.

Unfortunately, the prospect of filing
for bankruptcy has now becone a reality for
one of our programs on Long |sland, where
cases are noving the fastest. W see this as
a sign of things to conme |later this year when
cases nove in the rest of the state. W need
a path forward in this budget cycle.

Finally, I want to flag a provision
we' ve | earned nore about in the health budget
i npacti ng our nenbers -- a proposed
$125 mllion cost savings in health hones
serving children. Over 35,000 children and
adol escents, primarily young people in need
of support with nental health treatment, wll
be inpacted if this goes through.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

Let's start with Senator Brisport.

SENATOR BRI SPORT: G eat.

And t hanks again for being here and
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for all the work you do. |I'mnot sure if

"1l get all those questions in in three
mnutes, but I'Il just start with -- one's to
call back to earlier, with the decoupling
bill, we heard testinony from OCFS this
norni ng i ndicating they expected it to cost
in the nei ghborhood of $140 million. W' ve
seen articles in the press calling that
nunber unrealistic.

Do you think that the estinates of
t hi s nunber | ook accurate?

M5. HILL: | can junp in.

So our understandi ng of the
assunptions underneath that estimate is they
are assumng that every child who is in
part-time care now receiving childcare
assistance will go to full-time care.

We think that that is an
overestimation, particularly given that many
children are in publicly funded pre-K and
they get childcare assistance for the before-
and after-care. And so clearly those
children will not go to full-time. And then

we al so know that fam lies nake different
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deci si ons.

| would also just -- one other note,
which is there is a real question as to
whet her it even needs to be lined out in the
budget. There is a proposal to increase --
to do a quality increase in rates, and that
is not lined out in the budget. It's just
going to conme out of the 1.8 billion for
chil dcare assi stance.

SENATOR BRI SPORT: Thank you.

And | have sone foll owup questions
for Schuyler Center and for Cornell.

| think I want to start by -- well,
for Schuyler Center, in your 2024 State of
New York's Children report, you note that
chil dcare educators are |l ess than 96 percent
of occupations in New York State. 1'd |ove
for you to el aborate on how those | ow wages
currently inpact efforts to restore the
chil dcare sector.

And for Cornell, | would Iove for you
to el aborate on how the childcare crisis is
currently inpacting different populations in

New York differently. | know in your report
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you said that slots are up less than

3 percent fromthe | owest year of the
pandem c, and that you noted that in

22 counties around New York the nunber of
sl ots have actually decli ned.

So I'lIl just have those two questions
to you in the time we have.

M5. HILL: | will just say really
qgui ckly that the state has expanded access to
chil dcare assistance to a really great degree
such that, you know, nore than 300, 000
children are newWy incone-eligible for
assi stance. But we are not keeping pace as
far as capacity, and that's because of the
wor kf orce cri si s.

MR. PERAZA: | n areas where there are
chil dcare deserts, there is an increasing
| oss of family daycare providers. W're just
expandi ng a problemthere.

Additionally, we did find a positive
note in places like St. Lawence County,
where there were increases in providers due
to chil dcare-desert grants.

SENATOR BRI SPORT: Thank you.
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ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you very
nmuch.

Ranker Assenbl ynman Ra.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA: Thank you. Thank you
all.

For COFCCA, regarding the CVA fund.

In addition to that, what issues are your
providers having in ternms of getting
reasonabl e i nsurance rates now as a result of
all these past clains?

M5. NEWWMAN: So yes, there is a very
significant issue in the sector with
obtaining liability insurance for our foster
care providers. The CVA inpact is undeniable
in our ability to achieve coverage in the
future.

Most if not all of our insurance
conpanies are really bailing on providing
foster care coverage, period. It is a
mandat ed requirenent of the counties and the
state that we have that insurance coverage,
and it is a real struggle. W have asked in
the past for the state to help us in

devel oping a risk pool to address that issue
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goi ng forward.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA: Ckay. And then there
is another issue, | know was in your witten
testinmony that | don't think you got to, so
if you want to talk a little bit about the
maxi mum state aid rate in ensuring (A that
t he COLA goes through the end of the provider
year, as well as the COLAs building on top of
one anot her.

M5. NEWVMAN:  Yes, thank you for
rai sing that.

We under stand | anguage in the
Executive Budget to extend the CCOLA through
the fiscal year for our providers. Qur
foster care providers funded through the
MBAR, that rate year goes through June 30th
However, in the past the state has dropped
out the previous year's COLA, so we received,
you know, 5.4 percent and then 4 percent,
whi ch inherently was a reduction after that
was dropped and then the four was added.

So in every other sector we understand
that that COLA is stacking and that it is

reinvested year over year. It is intended
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for staff, which is a year-over-year cost.
We think that that should be applicable to
our prograns as well.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA: Great. Thank you.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  Senat or Per saud.

SENATCR PERSAUD: CGood afternoon.
Thank you. | just wanted to thank all of you
for your support as we are trying to -- for
the incone disregards. You know, we've done
some of it already, and you're all so
supportive in getting us -- you know, getting
us to that point. | just encourage you to
keep fighting with us so that we can keep
removi ng t hose bl ockages and that famlies
can be lifted up.

| also want to ask you about
| egi slation that we've introduced, what's
your thoughts about it, where we're asking
for an increase in SNAP benefits, cash
paynents and utilities paynments, and al so
matching it to inflation. Wat is your
t hought on that?

And there's al so another bill that

anot her Senator -- a couple of others have




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

396

where they're asking for the increased SNAP
benefits just to extend to $100 m ni num
What are your thoughts?

Any and all of you.

M5. HILL: |'mhappy to start.

Absol utely support all of those
proposals. First of all, we know that cash
supports are one of the nost effective ways
to reduce child and famly poverty, and we
need nore of them and particularly in the
areas that -- you know, SNAP benefits and
home heati ng.

We al so know that food insecurity is
on the rise, and this is due largely to the
| apse of the federal -- you know, during the
pandem c there were different federa
supports that expanded SNAP assi stance, al so
dramatically increased the federal child tax
credit. And as a result, now that all of
t hese have been pull ed back, what -- you
know, famlies are having to nake choices
again. And we know that famlies typically
will pay their rent before they'Il fill the

refrigerator. And so we're seeing food
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insecurity through the roof.

W are also really supportive of the
School Meals for All, which al so addresses
t his issue.

SENATCR PERSAUD: Yeah. We al so know
t hat School Meals for Al and the Summer EBT
is not going to cover all of the children
because of the way the federal guidelines
are. And so we're asking for a way to fix
that. We'll see what the federal governnent
says.

And just to be clear, SNAP is already
adjusted for rate of inflation. It's the
others that are not.

M5. HILL: Thank you.

SENATOR PERSAUD: Thank you all very

much. And again, thank you for your support.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

Assenbl ynmenber Maher.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAHER: Hey, everybody.

So first I wanted to ask a question
for Ms. Newran. | just wanted to say thank
you for your testinony, all of you. And |

was curious what you thought about sone of
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our providers, our childcare providers, that
have cone to nme, to other offices of ny

col | eagues, to say | ook, there were issues

wi th our own expenses, with how hard it is to
provi de chil dcare.

They could really use waivers in terns
of increasing that ratio where it is
appropriate. |Is that a problemthat you've
run into? Wat have your experiences been
wor king with the agenci es necessary to try to
acconplish that?

M5. NEWVMAN: So while sonme of our
provi ders do, you know, engage in, you know,
and provide childcare services, | would
probably defer to, you know, ny other
col | eagues at the table to weigh in on the,
you know, specific issues facing providers.

| represent themon the child welfare
side of the world, so it's -- I"mjust not
t he expert there.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAHER: No probl em

Does anybody want to touch that one?

M5. HILL: | will just say that

childcare in New York State is highly
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regul ated for a very good reason. You know,
as a parent of children who are | ong past
their childcare days but spent their first
years there, | wanted it to be highly
regul at ed.

We al so know that quality is tied
really closely to close interactions with
your caregiver, particularly for young
children. And so high ratios nmeans nuch
better quality.

Qobviously we'd be interested to see
sonme of the details, but that's generally --
| just want to be clear.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAHER: Ckay. No worries.

Yup.

M5. DALY: And | was just going to add
to that -- that was so beautifully said --
that we found -- NYATEP issues a report on

t he workforce, and we just rel eased ours

t oday, actually, on the state of the 2023
wor kforce. And | can tell you childcare is
t he bi ggest concern. W have childcare and
transportation.

But the problembehind it is that one
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of the parents ends up -- cannot afford --
they can't afford childcare, so then one
parent nust give up a career and one parent
nmust stay hone. And if our goal is to have a
nore equitable workforce, it starts with
childcare, it starts with transportation for
those individuals to get to the jobs or to
drop the children off at the childcare.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAHER:  Thank you. |
agr ee.

And | just want to make sure that our
conference and ny col | eagues on both sides of
the aisle just also keep in mnd the
provi ders, because we need to do nore for
t hose fol ks that are doing the work. But we
al so have to be m ndful of that business
nodel of a provider so we can encourage nore
i ndi vidual s to own and run those busi nesses
in the future, because we need to do that as
wel | .

Thank you all for the work you do.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

Senat e?

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
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Senator Mirray.

SENATOR MURRAY: Thank you,
Chai r woman.

And thank you all for being here. |
appreci ate everything you do.

But | want to target this quickly to
Ms. Newman.

| met with a group -- representatives
fromyour group earlier in the week. You had
menti oned a couple of things that are
i mpacting you such as Child Victins Act,
trouble getting liability insurance, things
like this. But there's another one that's
| oom ng big as well: Labor Law 191,
regardi ng manual |abor and frequency of pay.

Many of the agencies are having suits
filed against them There are clains being
made. And this is happening to conpanies al
across New York. But they're being clained
agai nst them sayi ng that danmages -- and they
take it back as far as six years that they --
damages were inposed, but there were no
damages. As far as the frequency of pay,

they were getting every penny they were
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supposed to get, whether they were manual
| abor or not.

Qur problemis we have no cl ear
definition of manual |abor right now. So
they were going on the site that -- yes, they
wer e manual | abor, they should have been paid
weekly. They were paid biwekly. They got
every penny, didn't |ose anything. However,
t hey have these nmassive lawsuits. And | was
told that |awsuits facing sone of the
agenci es that you represent were in the
numbers of 30 mllion or so.

What woul d happen -- right now the
good news is the Governor put |anguage in --
our Article VII language in the ELFA section
that says they won't have a private right of
action, they can't file suit and get damages.
The courts agreed a coupl e days after that
| anguage cane out. Looks like that's good,
but appeal s have been fil ed.

| f those appeal s go through, what
could that do to the agencies that -- | nean,
what is the damage we're | ooking at?

MS. NEWWAN: So | woul d have to check
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back in with some of our providers to get you
details on, you know, the suits that they're
facing and the inpacts of those.

But I will tell you, you know, the
study that was done by SeaChange has | ooked
at the fiscal viability of the entire sector,
and the surpluses don't exist. There isn't
addi ti onal funding, you know, in our
progr ans.

But | woul d have to, again, check back
in with our providers on that particular
issue. And we are |ooking at those
provisions within the Article VII.

SENATCR MURRAY: Yeah, |'ve heard a
nunber sonewhere in the area of $30 mllion,
coul d be the nunber.

But if this |language stays, which I'm
strongly urging and hoping that the | anguage
stays, it would be okay, they wouldn't have
the private right of action, because there
were no damages. So -- but if that were to
happen, the inpact on small businesses -- but
| "' m concerned about your agencies and the

services that are provided -- they couldn't
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exist. So we --

M5. NEWWMAN: Thank you for your
support.

(Laughter.)

SENATOR MURRAY: Yeah, we're urging
everyone, keep the |anguage, please, because
we need that protection.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

Assenbl ynmenber Mt aynes.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN M TAYNES: Thank you.

The Cornell |ILR survey participants in
t he childcare sector have indicated that
provi ders only have half their classroomns
open. Could you say a bit nore about how the
chil dcare sector is having difficulty
staffing childcare slots and maeki ng t hem
actual Iy avail abl e?

MR. PERAZA: So we're finding that
there just aren't enough workers for these
providers to service all of the customers or
parents that are comng to them And this
has been a mgjor crisis. 1In a qualitative

study of providers in Erie County, a major
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crisis has been that there have been a | ot of
subsi di zed fam lies com ng. And because

t hose subsidies aren't neeting the true cost
of care, and because workers are | eaving,
chil dcare providers, to work in service

i ndustries and other |ocal conpetitors, they
have to |l eave -- our group fam |y providers,
fam |y daycare providers are | eaving spots
open in order to profit. In order to keep,
you know, their business bal anced.

It's been a -- this is one of the --
t he nunber-one criticismanong providers is
that they're unable to actually fill capacity
because they cannot pay for the workers that
are -- that they enpl oy.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN M TAYNES: Yeah, and |
see the rest of you noddi ng your head, too.
Thank you.

| yield the rest of ny tine.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you,
Assenbl ynenber .

Assenbl yman Mankt el ow.

ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  Thank you.

What we see up in upstate New York
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where I'mfrom we see a |ot of businesses
that are noving to providing childcare at
t heir busi nesses as one of the perks or
benefits of working there.

| was just wondering, what are your
t houghts on that?

MR. PERAZA: | think it's a
fasci nati ng approach, one that needs to be
studied carefully. Because we do see that
there are other alternatives. For exanple,

t he Governor's kind of approach to M cron

and -- so we really want to see -- we need to
have both, 1 think, nultiple ways of
addressing this problem Particularly the
wor kforce is the | argest one that providers
are tal ki ng about.

But it is particularly interesting to
see what this enterprise nodel wll vyield.
It's not necessarily one or the other,
though. | think that's an inportant
designation to make, that we're seeing
t hrough this research and then also fromthe
wor k that our coll eagues are doing at Enpire

State Canpaign for Child Care.
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ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  Yeah, yeah, |
agree. | don't think there's
one-si ze-fits-all here, | think it's got to
be from both sides, of course.

| f busi nesses choose to do this, what
it does is it allows the business owners, the
conpani es, to know they have a good solid
wor kforce. It allows the workers to know
that they have a place for their children to
go.

And ny ot her thought is businesses
that do this, would you support them having a
tax break for doing so?

MR. PERAZA: | think that -- you know,
| don't really knowif | would support -- I'm
not really thinking about it that way, as
much as |' mthinking about nultiple
approaches and econom c activity growing as a
result of investing in workers.

| think the business enterprise nodel
doesn't necessarily directly address the
wor kf orce conpensation issue. |t does
address providers, which I think is a very

i nportant constituency in this industry. But
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right now the nunber-one crisis is workforce.
And so ny only concern about that particul ar
policy is that it doesn't directly address
t he wor kf orce

ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  Wel I, | think
part of it does, because the workforce -- if
they don't have a place for their child,
you're not going to have the workforce.
That's what we're seeing across the board.

And just asking you really quick --
take your hat off as who you are now. But as
a taxpayer, would you support the tax credits
for the businesses?

MR. PERAZA: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  Perfect.

Thank you so rmuch for your testinony,
and thank you all for being here.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you. Thank
you very much

|"mgoing to close with ny last three
m nutes. Thank you to Senator Krueger.

Ckay, very quickly, because |I'm

m ndful of the time. Yes or no question: |Is
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there any way to have a successful childcare
systemin New York State without a pernanent
wor kf orce fund?

M5. HILL: It sounds |ike a double
negative or sonething. But no, there is no
way.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Say it the right
way.

M5. HLL: Can | be very clear --

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Did you say it
the right way?

M5. HILL: Yeah, I'mgoing to say it
inthe affirmative. W need a permanent
Wor kf or ce Conpensation Fund for the chil dcare
wor kf or ce

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Do you agree with
t hat ?

(Laughter.)

M5. DALY: Yes.

MR. PERAZA: Yes.

M5. NEWVAN:  \Who coul d not?

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Okay, great.

Ms. Daly and everybody, thank you for
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your testinony.

| don't have a followup for you. |
do have other follow ups, so please forgive
me. And I'lIl ask them quick. So you know
what, |I'mjust going to list themout and see
what we can get.

So, Ms. Hill, if you could at sone
point, either during this testinony or after,
explain the rate increase for famly nei ghbor

chil dcare, that would be very hel pful

M. Peraza, | would like to know nore
about the uneven benefits and what -- who are
we hitting? |Is this rural, is this mnority

communi ti es?

And then one other thing for Cornell,
if I could ask. 1'd like to know,
potentially long term how nmany chil dcare
wor kers are on public assistance? Because
there's a logic to just redirecting that
noney and payi ng the darn workforce. Sorry
for ny | anguage.

And then, Ms. Newran -- and |'m sorry
about the tine -- what would happen if your

agencies don't have liability insurance?
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Those are ny questions. So, Ms. Hill,
go. Lightning round, | guess. Thank you.

M5. HILL: Really fast. Wth respect
to famly, friend and nei ghbor chil dcare,
which we -- it's also referred to as legally
exenpt childcare -- they have typically not
been included -- well, they have not been
included in the stabilization grants.

And when we think about a workforce
fund, the permanent workforce fund, it wll
likely follow a simlar nodel. A very direct
way to raise rates for famly, friend, and
nei ghbor is through a rate increase.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

M. Peraza?

MR PERAZA: Uneven benefits of that
bundl e of policies, 2021 to 2022, we see
75 licensed providers that are new, 18,731
slots that are new. But we have seen
388 establishments gone anong fam |y daycare
provi ders.

And then, ook, in Erie County we've
| ost providers, we've lost slots. And our

provi ders are saying, W need nore noney to




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

412

hel p our workers.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

And Ms. Newman, with your 26 seconds.

M5. NEWWAN: Ch, it's nuch shorter
t han that.

Wthout liability insurance, we can't
provi de services.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI : Wi ch neans that
we're violating the law, hurting those kids,
and can't provide services.

Good. kay. Thank you all for your
testinmony. | greatly appreciate it.

CHAl R\MOVAN KRUECER: Wait, you didn't
|l et the | ast person answer.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Ch, Ms. Daly, |I'm
SO sorry.

M5. DALY: Ch, no, | was just going to
say thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Ch. Well, thank
you.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Okay. Thank you
to everybody on this panel.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECGER:  Panel F
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ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: [|s that me?

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Yes, it's you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: kay. Actually,
it's Panel -- yup, Panel F. |If | can cal
down Rai sing New York, Jenn O Connor, the
coalition lead; the New York State Alliance
of Boys & Grls Clubs, Justin Reuter, the
CEOQ. The Bridge Project, we have Stephanie
Si | kowski, director of policy and strategic
initiatives. And the Adirondack Birth to
Three Alliance, with Kate Ryan, the director.

Thank you for com ng down.

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: | just got very
good advice from anot her coll eague that we're
on F, but if people who are on G want to head
towards the front, you can get into place
nore qui ckly once Panel F is done.

Not that |'m pressuring you at all,
you're here. So thank you. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI :  Sure.

Ms. O Connor, please.

M5. O CONNOR: Hi. Thank you for
having ne. Jenn O Connor, director of

partnershi ps and early chil dhood policy for
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The Education Trust-New York

The Ed Trust-New York runs the
Rai sing NY Coalition, and that's a diverse
statewi de coalition of parents, early
chi | dhood educati on, business and health
or gani zati ons.

A nunber of our nenbers have al ready
testified here today, so I'mnot going to
reiterate what they said. But our focus is
on inmproving long-termoutcones for infants
and toddl ers who are | owincome, children of
col or, and from underserved popul ati ons.

|"mgoing to read you a nunber here:
New York State spends $23.9 billion on al
early chil dhood prograns, but of that
$23.9 billion, only $5.26 billion is spent on
childcare, famly support, and prevention
programs. So |'mgoing to focus ny remarks
to those issues.

We've got a couple of high points for
the Raising NY Coalition. One is to invest
in the childcare workforce -- you've heard
t hat over and over again today. New York

State has greatly increased capacity, but
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i ncreased capacity to what? Prograns are
closing. Providers don't want to be

provi ders, can't be providers anynore because
they' re not being paid enough.

So agai n, increasing capacity is
fantastic, but it doesn't matter if there are
no prograns for kids to be in. W need to
revisit and adopt the decoupling bill. Dede
already told you it's probably not going to
cost what the state thought it was going to
cost, and so we need to |look into that again.
And we need to support a nove toward
utilization of a cost-estimati on nodel away
fromthe market rate.

We have done a cost-estinmation node
with Prenatal to Five Fiscal Strategies,
which is a national group. W have spoken to
OCFS about using that cost nodel to influence
their cost nodel. They seemvery open to
that. And so we would just |ike your support
in again noving away fromthe market rate and
towards a cost-estimati on nodel

Qur other big issue is hone visiting.

The state spends about $46 mllion on the
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Heal thy Fam lies Program and that program
serves every county in the state at this

point. The state also spends a little over
$4 mllion on the Nurse-Fam |y Partnership

program-- that's at the Health table, so |

won't bore you with that -- but I will bore
you, they want a $1.5 mllion increase.
But 1'll focus ny remarks on the

Parent-Child Plus program which only gets a
coupl e hundred thousand dollars. They're
asking for an increase to $500,000 this year.
And t hat expansion is inportant because they
are primarily an early literacy program they
focus on reading. They hire graduates of the
program so fol ks who work -- who live in the
comunity go back to work in the community.
And they al so, over the | ast couple of years,
have used expansion dollars to connect with
home- based chi |l dcare prograns.

Really, really briefly, Raising NY --
also it doesn't sit at this table -- but
supports the Wrking Famlies tax credit,
evi dence- based investnents in early literacy.

We | aunched the New York State Canpaign for
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Early Literacy yesterday --

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you. Thank
you, Ms. O Connor

M5. O CONNOR: -- continuous Medicaid
coverage for children aged zero to six, and
then an 11 percent increase in Early
| nt erventi on.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you very
much.

Pl ease, yeah. You've just got to hold

M5. RIVENBURGH Sorry. First tine.

Good afternoon, Chairperson Krueger
and Children and Fam |y Chairpersons Brisport
and Hevesi and the rest of the commttee. M
name is Lori Rivenburgh, and I"'mwth the
Town of Wallkill Boys & Grls Cub, serving
Northern Orange and Sul livan counties in the
Hudson Val | ey.

|"mtestifying today on behalf of the
New York State Alliance for Boys & Grls
Cl ubs, to speak to you about the inportant
role after-school plays in conmunities across

the state, ensuring kids feel safe, val ued,
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and respected. Thank you for this trenendous
opportunity.

The New York State Alliance of Boys &
Grls Clubs represents 118 club sites across
New York State serving 92,000 children
annually. Wiile this is a substanti al
nunber, the fact is every day over
580, 000 kids in New York | eave school with
nowhere to go. They risk bei ng unsupervi sed,
ungui ded, and unsafe.

Ki ds today face many chal |l enges,
i ncl udi ng gang and gun vi ol ence, substance
use and abuse and ot her unheal t hy behavi ors.
Ensuring that they have a safe place to go
after school where they feel protected and
supported is critical to the future of our
young peopl e.

For nore than 160 years, Boys and
Grls Cubs have fostered hope and
opportunity by cultivating the potential in
every young person. C ubs offer homework
hel p, career readi ness, and prograns such as
arts, sports, and financial literacy -- all

in safe and nurturing environnents.
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Everything offered at the club has an
educat i onal conponent which hel ps children
and youth at school, build character and

| eadership skills, and engage in healthy
behavi ors.

Hi storically there have been two ngjor
funding streans in New York State for after
school: Advantage After School Program and
Enpire State After-School Program The
Executi ve Budget proposes to conbi ne these
two funding streans into a single programin
order to create efficiencies and streanline
di fferences between the two prograns.

We are encouraged by the news that the
Executive and OCFS are working on a new RFP
for this funding stream but strongly
encourage the tinely rel ease of the RFP. And
al so we hope to see that the RFP is fair,
flexible, and allows Boys and Grls C ubs
across the state an equal opportunity to
apply. In addition, | hope it takes into
consideration the differences in communities
and size of providers across the state, as a

smal ler, rural Boys and Grls Cub
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sonmetimes -- conpetitive processes have been
prohibitive in the past, and our rural
communities still see the same chal |l enges as
our bigger metro communiti es.

Lastly, we encourage the Legislature
to continue to chanpi on additional funding
for after-school. Typically the Legislature
adds funding for one or two of the previously
nmenti oned after-school prograns, and we
encourage you to do the same this year. As |
nmenti oned, there are many underserved
chil dren and youth across the state who could
benefit from additional funding.

Thank you for the opportunity to
testify today, and |I'm happy to answer any
guestions that you may have.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you so
much.

M5. SILKOWBKI: Ckay. Hello,
everyone. Thank you all so rmuch for being
here. It's nice to see so nany faces stil
here late in the day.

" m Stephani e Sil kowski, and |I'mthe

director of policy for The Bridge Project.
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We are a cash transfer programfor expecting
not hers. W have 1200 program parti ci pants
scattered throughout the five boroughs, and
have recently expanded to Rochester and
Buf f al o.

|"mreally thrilled to be here to talk
about the econom c hardshi ps that nany of the
nmons in our program face, and many of your
constituents. Poverty and in particular
child poverty, as you know well, is high and
will likely continue to worsen if econonic
trends conti nue.

Hal f of the top six cities in the
entire U S. with the highest child-poverty
rates are in New York State. |In Rochester,
Buf fal o, and Syracuse, one in two children
lives in poverty -- and New York City isn't
far behind, with one in four children living
in poverty. Additionally, a recent report
showed that al nost half of New York City
residents can't actually afford to live
there, can't afford basic needs, and you need
to be pulling in six figures to afford

chil dcare and housi ng and food.
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And we can't tal k about any of these
i ssues without really centering the
di sproportionate inpact on comunities of
color. This inequity is also reflected in
New York State's really significant
disparities in maternal health outcones
across racial lines.

We can't continue to turn a blind eye
to both child poverty and maternal health.
And whil e some progress has been nade with
phil ant hropically funded prograns |ike ours
at The Bridge Project, and the now expired
child tax credit, there is really little
progress to address the need statew de.

So I"'mreally proud to be here in
support of the MLC bill, the Mthers and
| nffants Lasting Change Al |l owance bill, which
woul d create a publicly adm ni stered and
adopt ed cash-transfer program particularly
for lowincone nons during the last three
nmont hs of their pregnancy and throughout the
first 18 months of a child' s life.

There is a ton of research and data

that | could point you to on the efficacy of
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cash transfers, particularly for such a
targeted population |like the one that the
MLC bill addresses. And the MLC bill, I
think, is particularly special in addressing
two issues all at once in a relatively
sinple, cost-effective way.

| f you care about solving child
poverty, if you care about addressing
mat ernal health, | would really urge you to
support this bill. This would be the | argest
cash-transfer programof its kind to exi st
across the country and would really be a bold
step for New York State to | ead here. So we
urge the Legislature and Governor Hochul to
include the MLC bill in the budget.

And happy to answer any questions
about cash-transfer policy, our program or
the bill.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Well, thank you.

M5. RYAN. Thank you for the
opportunity to testify. M nane is
Kate Ryan, and |I'mthe director of the
Adi rondack Birth to Three Al liance, a

coalition of childcare providers, enployers,
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comunity organi zations, and parents across
t he Adi rondacks and the North Country.

The alliance is focused on connecting
resources to those in need, assisting our
comunity, coll aborative opportunities, and
supporting policy and funding for young
children and their famlies.

The Adi rondack region is honme to
approximately 7,000 children three years of
age or younger. Qur population density is
| ess than 1/10th of the state average. CQur
| andscape presents uni que chal | enges.

Fam lies often need to travel over an hour to
access enpl oynment, resources, healthcare, and
very often childcare. W require an array of
options for care such as fam |y, group, and
center-based childcare. To do this, our
region requires varied strategies for
recruitnment and retention of providers while
al so ensuring quality, affordability, and
accessibility.

Careful consideration is needed for
policy and funding to positively inpact our

communities. Rural regions require childcare
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beyond our deserts. Although nearly
70 percent of our region census tracts remain
chil dcare deserts, this isn't the full story.

Fam lies often require childcare in
hi gher - popul ati on-density areas not deened to
be deserts, as this is where parents drive to
work. Unfortunately, these popul ation
centers are sonetinmes |left out of funding
opportunities. Increasing capacity in these
areas is critical to community and econonic
success.

We need investnents in the childcare
wor kforce. | would like to share our support
for the Enpire State Canpaign for
Child Care's agenda. As a nenber of the
canpai gn, we too support the need to invest
in the childcare workforce. There is sinply
not enough capacity until we recogni ze those
in the field must be conpensated for their
work. We will sinply never stabilize the
sect or decoupling childcare assistance from
di rect hours of parents' work.

The alliance al so supports fully

funding the policy adopted in 2022 to do
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this. This sinple policy recognizes that
famly life is dynamic, and if we want people
to stay in the Adirondacks, we need to help
them do the sinple things we all take for
granted: Going to the doctor, running
errands. \Wen going to an appoi nt nent may
t ake several hours of travel, know ng you can
access childcare is a blessing and a benefit
that will develop in healthier, happier,
| ess-stressed |ives.

We require continued support of
chil dcare resource and referral agencies.
Because we have and require a higher
per cent age of hone-based chil dcare, our
comunity relies on our CCR&Rs to skillfully
target resources to support new providers to
becone |icensed and offer technical
assi stance and professional assistance to
providers. It is critically inportant that
CCR&R s funding formula recogni zes the tine
and effort they need to build capacity in an
environnment relying on famly and group
famly childcare. Yes, the federal support

helped in a tine of crisis, but we need
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continued investnent in access, quality, and
affordability.

Recently the state increased the
chil dcare assistance eligibility threshol d,
and this has helped famlies who can find
heal thcare. But we need to do nore to
recruit and support childcare providers. W
can't forget that these are busi nesses, many
owned by single nothers. W need to invest
in their capacity to maintain and grow their
busi nesses.

W al so need to invest in
QUALI TYstarsNY to ensure it will provide
hi gh-quality childcare. M coments today
and the specific recomendations included in
my witten testinony only address a fraction
of the issues faced in the Adirondacks and
ot her rural regions of New York State.

| appreciate the opportunity to share
t hese thoughts and hope to work with you to
identify strategies to support the famlies
living and working in the Adirondacks.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.
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Ckay. Sorry, you guys -- oh, yes,
perfect.

Assenbl ynmenber Mt aynes.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN M TAYNES: Thank you.

This question is for Ms. O Connor
Can you tell us what sets Parent Chil d+ apart
from ot her hone visiting prograns?

M5. OCONNOR  So like | said, there
are three main home visiting prograns in the
State of New York, and then a nunber of |oca
home visiting prograns. They each serve
specific populations, so eligibility is
different for each of those prograns.

Like | said, ParentChild+ really |ikes
to hire graduates of the programto go back
and work as hone visitors in the community,
so that's nunber one. Nunber two is the
focus on early literacy and | anguage
devel opnent and reading. And nunber three is
their very uni que partnerships with childcare
progranms, with home-based chil dcare prograns.

So they have a curriculumthat they
use to go into those hone-based chil dcare

progranms and work with those providers like
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they would work with parents, which we just
think is a really great nodel and a great
cont i nuum

So we need all of the prograns, but
Par ent Chi | d+ has been historically
under f unded conpared to the other prograns,
and so that's why we're asking for that
i ncrease and that expansion.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN M TAYNES: Thank you.

M5. O CONNOR:  Thank you

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Senator C eare.

Ask and you shall receive.

(Laughter.)

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER:  Thank you, Chair.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI :  Sure.

SENATOR CLEARE: (kay. So first of
all, | have to -- | agree with -- you know,
you' ve got to pay people. It's -- that's it,
that's the bottomline. People have to get
pai d.

But | want to know nore about sone of
your services in particular. Are they across
the state? Were are the services you spoke

about? Jenn, |'msorry.
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M5. OCONNOR So | talked -- so
Raising NY is a coalition. So the services
that we are supporting are chil dcare
wor kf orce, hone visiting workforce, Early
| nterventi on workforce. Wen we tal k about
the workforce, we're really tal ki ng about the
caring community as a whol e.

SENATOR CLEARE: (Xkay.

M5. O CONNOR:  Statew de.

SENATOR CLEARE: All right, thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Great, thank you.

| think that's it except for nme, so
pl ease put two hours on the clock for ny next
round of questi oni ng.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Sorry.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: | ' m noti ci ng.
| " m wat chi ng.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI :  Yeah, | know.
"1l never be here again, so |'mgoing to
enjoy it.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: So, Ms. O Connor

let me start with you. Can you explain the
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i mportance of early childhood literacy,

particularly when you focus on the "serve and

return" -- that's correct, that's what |'m
asking -- and how that prevents adverse
chi | dhood experiences and trauma. |In |ess

t han 30 seconds, pl ease.

(Laughter.)

M5. O CONNOR:  So when you're tal king
about the zero to three or zero to five
popul ation, you're tal king about attachnent.
You' re tal king about | anguage devel opnent.
You're not tal king about reading, right, at
that point in tinme.

So "serve and return” is ne talking to
you, you talking to ne. M reading to you,
you hearing my voice. You're |earning words.
And t hat strengthens the nurturing and
strengthens the relationship. And we know
t hat adverse chil dhood experiences can be
mtigated by a relationship with a caring
adul t.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Great. Thank you
very rmuch

For the Boys and Grls Cubs, a quick
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guestion for you. Very interesting to hear
about the tinely -- inportance of the tinely
rel ease of the RFP. Please know that we are
a resource. |If that doesn't cone down or the
RFP is not where you'd want it, please let us
know and we can intervene.

One quick question; | think it's a yes
or a no. Do you support the After-School
Net work's ask for ALEP, for the 219 mllion
that is above and beyond what we've got --
100 mllion -- in this year's budget?

MS. Rl VENBURGH: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Geat. Thank
you. That was easy.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: M. Sil kowski,
just want to tell you we hear you about the
bill and -- the MLC bill. | don't know what
el se to say about that except Senator Persaud
is right again.

And then Ms. Ryan, could | ask you a
guestion? Because this has been bothering ne
for a while. Because | had the |uxury of

visiting the Adirondacks; we went to an
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outdoor childcare center. It was the cool est
thing |I've ever seen. But part of the
probl em for childcare in the Adirondacks is
transportation. Can you speak to that a bit
and how we address that, you know, perhaps in
t hi s budget ?

M5. RYAN. | think the general support
of building the workforce around chil dcare.
| nmean, the reality is that to break the
barriers of transportation, we need childcare
close to where the famlies are. And so that
needs to be -- that's often famly and group
famly childcare. And so we have to build
t he capacity, and we need the providers to do
it.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: It's not easy,

i ke, you know, buy a couple of buses to take

kids -- no, you've got to fix those deserts.
M5. RYAN. | don't think -- yup

Nope.
ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: CGot it. | very

much appreciate it.
Thank you all for your testinony here

today. Thank you.
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CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you al
very much

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Ckay, Panel G
From the Al bany Dam en Center, Perry
Junjul as, the executive director. From SACGE
Advocacy Services for LGBTQ+ Elders, Ml Okma,
seni or manager for advocacy and gover nnent
relations. And from Equality New York
Erin Brigid, conmunity organi zer.

Thank you all for being here tonight.
Feel free. Anybody who wants to junp in,
t hank you.

MR, JUNJULAS: |I'mPerry Junjulas, I'm
t he executive director at the Al bany Dam en
Center and al so a person who's been |iving
with AIDS since 1995.

| can definitively state today that
am al i ve today because of the investnents New
York State has made in H V and Al DS services
in New York State, for which | amextrenely
grat eful .

| speak to you today on behal f of
very-lowincone persons with HV who are

homel ess and unstably housed outsi de of
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New York City who do not have access to
rental assistance. Nunerous studies have
shown that housing is an evi dence-based H V
heal th intervention that enables persons with
H V to take their nedications, which extends
their lives and stops the spread of HV to
ot hers.

Now, since 2016 in New York City,
New York State and the city have ensured that
every single | owincone New Yorker with HV
has had access to housing with the rate cap
of 30 percent of their incone. This is not
the case for persons with H V outside of
New York City.

Now, for the past five years, the
New York State budget has contained the
intent to fix this issue. But the |anguage
has not housed one single person with HV
outside of New York City. This year's budget
contains the same | anguage that will not help
anyone. This |anguage all ows but does not
require |l ocal departnents of social services
to provide nmeani ngful H V housing assi stance

and provides no state funding to support the
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cost to local districts outside of New York
Cty.

To finally provide equitable statew de
access to HV housing supports, we need to
correct the relevant Aid to Localities
| anguage on public assistance benefits and
enact Article VII legislation to do three
things: Ensure that every | ocal departnent
of social services provides | owincone
persons with HV access to the New York State
H V Enmergency Rental Allowance Programto
support 100 percent of HUD fair-nmarket val ue,
as it isin New York Gty. Nunber two, nake
af f ordabl e housing protections avail abl e
statewide to cap the share of rent for a
| ow-i ncome person with H'V at 30 percent of
income. And nunber three, recognize the
fiscal reality of counties outside of
New York City and have the state pick up
100 percent of the cost of providing the
shel ter all owances.

Now, providing this assistance is
cost-neutral. An analysis by OTDA fisca

staff has determ ned the costs in the first
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year would be 3 mllion, offset by Mdicaid
savings of 4 mllion. |In the outyears,

Medi cai d savi ngs woul d exceed housi ng costs
by as much as 13 million annually.

Furt hernore, OIDA Acting Comm ssioner
@ui nn has expressed support for this change
in the budget | anguage.

| thank you for listening to the
testi nmony today.

MR OKMA: Hi. Good afternoon. Wy
name is M} Okma, the senior manager of
advocacy and governnent relations at SAGE

SAGE has been serving LGBTQ+ el ders
and ol der New Yorkers living with HV for
over four decades, providing conprehensive
soci al services and comunity-buil di ng
programm ng through a network of
LGBTQ+ wel com ng ol der adult centers across
New York City. W also engage in partners in
t he Hudson Val l ey, Long I|sland, Syracuse,
Rochester, and Buffal o.

New York State ranks anong the top
10 states in ternms of percentage of the

popul ation that identifies as LGTQ+, and
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one-third of LGABTQ+ New Yorkers are over the
age of 50. Additionally, the nunber of

New Yorkers aging with HV is al so grow ng
rapidly, with 73 percent of all New Yorkers
living with HV estinated to be over 50 by
2030.

LGBTQ+ el ders and ol der people l|iving
with HV rely nore heavily on comunity
service providers due to thin support
net wor ks, yet they're often distrustful of
providers after a long history of stignma and
di scrimnation. For nmany of those el ders,
New York State is their lifeline.

It is because of themI|'m here today
asking for your support in this year's
budget, including a renewal of 300,000 to
support LGBTQ+ residents and comunity
menbers in and around New York State's first
LEBTQ+ wel com ng af f ordabl e el der housi ng
devel opnents; a renewal of 150,000 to
i ncrease our multilingual services and
programm ng; a renewal of $2,000 for the SACE
Vet erans Progranm and a new fundi ng

desi gnation of 150,000 to help neet the
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growi ng demand for services anong New Yorkers
aging with H V.

Wth your support, SAGE has been able
to evol ve and expand to best address the
wi despread disparities facing these
popul ations. W've worked with prom nent
devel opers to directly address the housing
i nsecurity experienced by the comunities.

We grew the upstate footprint of the SAGEVets
program We | aunched food pantry initiatives
to help participants in and around our
centers -- that are open for all -- which
further integrated themin their community.
And we expanded our nultilingual progranm ng
i nt o Spani sh, Mandarin, and Cantonese.

Addi tional ly, our SAGEVets program
supports the uni que needs of LGBTQ+ veterans,
aiding in their overall health and well ness
and providing referrals to counsel regarding
di scharge status upgrades. W provide this
i fe-changing support while saving New York
significant amounts of funding by ensuring
veterans access all their federal benefits

i nstead of relying solely on state prograns
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to address their housing and heal t hcare
needs.

This year we're al so seeking a new
fundi ng designation to expand the
SAGEPosi tive programthat connects the
growi ng popul ati on of New Yorkers aging with
H'V to a wide range of services, including
sexual well ness workshops, social events,
H V and STl testing, case nanagenent,
caregi ver support, educational forumnms, and
nor e.

| also want to echo Perry's renmark
about the urgent call to action to end
homel essness anong New Yorkers living with
H 'V by ensuring all New Yorkers have access
to the meaningful rental assistance that has
been available in New York Gty since 2016
As currently witten, the budget |anguage has
not successfully housed a single person with
H V despite being in the past five budgets.
Thi s | anguage nmust be corrected.

SAGE al so supports the inclusion of
A6214 and S7663 in the active budget to

i ncrease the SNAP m ni num benefit to $100.
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Thank you so much

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

M5. BRIA@D: Thank you for this
opportunity. M nane is Erin Brigid.
serve as the community organi zer for
Equality New York, the only statew de
advocacy organi zati on dedi cated to advanci ng
equality and justice for LGBTQ + New Yorkers
and their famlies.

In 2023 we faced an al arm ng surge of
over 500 anti-LGBTQ + bills nationw de,
including in New York State. This wave poses
a serious threat to the progress and safety
of our comunity.

Equal ity New York has been at the
forefront working relentlessly to protect and
pronote the rights of LGBTQ + individuals and
their famlies. Qur organization represents
over 120 organi zations and 5500 nenbers
deeply invested in direct community
engagenment and enpowernent, and it is this
di verse and vi brant community that |
represent here today.

Recent data fromthe WIIlians
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Institute at UCLA indicates that 5.5 percent
of New York State's popul ation, equating to
approxi mat el y 853, 000 people, identify as
LEGBTQ +. Qur work has highlighted the need
for safer environnents in schools for trans
and nonbi nary youth, inproved access to

health and | egal services, and the

rectification of system c issues that lead to

t he m sgendering and di srespect of our
comunity nenbers.

Despite our progress, there renains
much to be done. Through initiatives |ike

the LGBTQ + Advocacy Institute we have

catal yzed over three dozen statew de projects

tackling critical issues ranging from
educational refornms to healthcare
i mprovenents. Notable achi evenents include
t he establishment of a transgender
peer - support programin Rochester hospitals
and the devel opment of a gay/straight
alliance in schools across upstate New York
A significant challenge we have
identified is the |ack of specialized skills

anong governnental service-based
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organi zations to adequately serve LGBTQ+
communities, particularly in the transgender,
nonconf orm ng, nonbi nary individual s.

Addi tionally, many LGBTQ+ individual s
are unaware of their rights when interacting
wi th human services. This is especially true
for TGNCNB i ndividuals who face significant
hurdl es in accessing these services,
particul arly anong BI POC communiti es.

The Gender EXxpression
Nondi scri m nati on Act passed in 2019 has been
a pivotal step in protecting these rights,
but there's still a |ong road ahead.
Therefore, we're requesting 100,000 in
funding. This amount will make a substanti al
i npact in addressing the physical, nental,
and econom c chal l enges facing the LGBTQ +
and TGNCNB communities -- 75,000 to conduct
12 cultural sensitivity training sessions and
25,000 to devel op and di ssen nate a
conpr ehensi ve Know Your Ri ghts canpai gn

Thank you so much for considering our
request and your commitnment to serving the

peopl e of New York
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ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you very
much.
Ckay, you guys are stuck with ne. So
here goes ny three m nutes.
So first, M. Junjulas, am| correct
i n understandi ng that OTDA has a study saying
that this is going to save noney, and still
we're not doing this? How is that possible?
MR. JUNJULAS: {Mc issue.} Sorry.
W worked with OTDA fiscal staff on an
anal ysis, and they agreed with our
assunptions that showed the Medicai d savings
and that we do have backup support fromthat.
So yeah, | do not understand exactly.
And also, too, it will prevent new HV
infections. And that's one of the big
t akeaways here, is that when we get people
housed, we're able to take our neds, we do
not pass the virus then on to others, and so
therefore we can actually end the epidem c.
So costwi se it nakes sense, but also
humanwi se it makes sense, because we're going
to be saving lives through this initiative.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: And that anal ysis
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was done in what year? Just curious.
don't need to know this, I'mjust curious.

MR JUNJULAS: What's -- |I'msorry?

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: The anal ysis was
done in what year?

MR. JUNJULAS:. The anal ysis was done
this past year.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Ch, this past
year.

MR. JUNJULAS:. Yeah, this past year we
actually --

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Ah, so one woul d
have hoped it woul d have been reflected in
this year's budget, but not so far.

Ckay. And the | anguage change that
you're talking about, it's just a "may" to a
"shall," right? That's what you're talking
about ?

MR. JUNJULAS: It's -- it's really
just the -- in the Aid for Localities, and
also in the Article VI, you know, just to --
ri ght now the | anguage cannot house anyone
because | ocal districts are not required,

they can opt in. And nobody's opting in,
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because of the noney.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Very nuch
appreciate it. We'Ill look to pursue that in
the budget, and I will -- there were a |ot of
smal | er asks for both of those who you gave
testinmony today. So we'll look to do those.

| do -- the one thing, M. Ckma, if |
can, that piqued ny attention was the rapid
i ncrease of people living with H V over 50.
Coul d you expound on that? |Is that going to
be a problemthat continues to get
exponentially nore difficult to handl e?

MR OKMA: Yes. It's definitely
somet hing that New York State has to take
action to invest in now, because it is a
rapidly grow ng population, and this is for a
nunmber of reasons.

One, just the population as a whole is
aging, and thanks to the activismthat was
born right here in New York State, there's
all these nedical advances that are all ow ng
people with HV to live longer |ives.

MR. JUNJULAS:. (Pointing to self.)

Alive. Alive.
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(Laughter.)

MR. OKMA: But on top of that,

17 percent of new di agnoses | ast year were
anong New Yorkers over the age of 50, because
of the conbi nation of ageismand -- agei sm
and H'V stigma neans that PrEP -- PrEP, HV
testing, all of these things are not really
targeted towards ol der adults. Wich is one
of the reasons why prograns |ike SACEPositive
are so inpactful

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: That's great.

And Ms. Brigid, | don't have a |lot of
time, but you did pique ny interest with the
fact that the BIPOC community is not famliar
with their rights. |Is there sonething that
we can do besides the asks in your testinony
to address that? O it's the asks we should
focus on?

M5. BRAD: (Mc off; inaudible) -- a
| ot of things that had to be abridged because
of tinme was the Know Your Rights canpaign
that we're planni ng enconpasses both virtual
pl atforns and social nmedia featuring public

servi ce announcenents, and the distribution
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of over 1,000 informational posters. And
these materials will focus on rights of

i ndi vidual s in schools, healthcare settings,
and ot her human service entities.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Great, thank you.
|'ve run out of tine.

No, | see Assenbl ynenber Sinon has a
guesti on.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SI MON:  Thank you.
Thank you all for your testinony.

So Erin, fromEquality New York. You
mentioned a programthat was -- if | got it
correctly, was a programthat hel ped peopl e
get gender-affirmng care in Rochester. O
is that -- and I'"mcurious, (A did | get
that right? (B) Are there prograns |ike that
at the other sort of bigger upstate cities?
Because New York being different than
New York City.

M5. BRRGD: Wll, it's a -- well,
it's not a gender-affirmng-care program
it's a -- the Rochester one is a transgender
peer - support program

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SI MON: Ckay.
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M5. BRRGD: So it's -- that would be
nore -- | don't have all the details on it,
but we could get you nore details on it.

But peer support is generally just --
nore along the lines of just |like a
counseling and being able to reach out to and
talk to one anot her.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SI MON:  Yeah. No, |
understand what it is. | just had m sheard
it, obviously, and | was curious about it.

Thank you. Appreciate it.

M5. BRIG D: You're welcone. Thank
you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you all for
testifying. W really appreciate it.

And -- I'msorry, that was outrageous
and silly. Senator Ceare, | apologize.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: That wasn't
out r ageous.

SENATOR CLEARE: (kay. Thank you al
for your testinmony and for hanging in there.

|"malarned by the rising rates of
H 'V, especially in the aging community. And

if there's something that we can do, if you
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could let us know what we can do to help

mtigate sone of that -- education-w se,
testing-wise. |Is there sonewhere where we
need to be looking to put funding? 1'd |ove

to hear it.

MR. JUNJULAS: (M c issue;
i naudi bl e) -- for the rest of state housing,
to hel p people outside of New York GCity, you
know, that certainly will help. Because we
absol utely do have persons who are over 50
living with HV who are honel ess. | see them
during the day all the tine at the Dam en
Center, and they go out to honel essness.

The second thing is is that we do have
an HV testing bill to nake HIV testing a
routine part of care. Too many persons are
visiting the ERs and sone of the health
clinics and they're not being tested for H V.

And so we are |looking to streaniine
the process to make HI V testing a routine
part of care. This way we can actually
identify new H 'V cases, but also if soneone
is negative, we can get themon PrEP, which

can prevent new H V infections, and al so test
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for STIs and hep C

MR OKMA:  Yeah, what | would add on
to that is that there's a great need of just
bui | di ng H V awar eness and conpetency at
ol der adult centers across the state. Just a
| ot of people in the sector -- and we've been
partnering with NYSCOFA for this, and they've
been -- Comm ssioner O sen has been a great
partner, but there is a | ack of understanding
of HV in the aging sector. And al so
soneti mes sexual health and wellness is seen
as a taboo, and that type of programmng is
not standardly offered in these settings.
And it shoul d be.

| think one other thing that woul d be
really inpactful is we hear all the tine that
our participants have not been offered PrEP
or PrEP where they're -- it's not considered,
it's not seen as an intervention for them
think a targeted H V preventi on canpai gn
specifically centering the i mages and
nmessages for ol der adults would be incredibly
i mpactful and sonething that hasn't happened.

And | would al so add that the Ending
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the Epidem c Legislative Commttee al so has a
budget request this year for $10 mllion to
support these types of prograns and servi ces.
They' ve instituted a pilot program about

$4 mllion for HV and agi ng servi ces over
five years. That was great. They're really
t hi nki ng about this. That's not adequate for
neeti ng the grow ng popul ati on.

SENATOR CLEARE: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Geat. Thank
you, Senator Cl eare, and ny apol ogi es agai n.

And t hank you to everyone in this
panel. Very much appreciate it.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SI MON:  Thank you.

PANELI STS: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: kay, Panel H:
Supportive Housi ng Network, Stephen Piasecki,
state policy manager; New Destiny Housi ng,
Gabri el a Sandoval Requena, director of policy
and comruni cations; Immgration Law & Justice
New Yor k, Reverend Paul Fleck; and Center for
New York City Affairs, The New School ,
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Lauren Mel odi a.

MR. PI ASECKI: Shall | get going?

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Yeah, you want to
start us off?

MR. PI ASECKI: Sure, why not.

Thanks to the chair. Chair Krueger,
Chair Hevesi, Chair Persaud, thank you guys
for hanging in there with us. And thanks,
everybody that's still here. This is an
amazi ng turnout for sonebody |ike ne.

(Laughter.)

MR. PI ASECKI: So appreciate that.

And |I'm here to change the subject to
sonmet hing conpletely different -- not for the
Supportive Housi ng Network of New York, but
at least for today's testinony. W're
focused |i ke a |laser on the NYSSHP program
New York State's Supportive Housi ng Program
This is a | egacy programthat dates back to
the 1980s. And we have in the |last couple of
years been conparing this programwth the
current state program known as ESSHI, Enpire
State Supportive Housing Initiative. | see

Assenbl ynenber Hevesi noddi ng his head,
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because you were a big chanpi on of that.

And the conparison is actually
shocki ng and revelatory. And so this year we
formul ated a proposal to nmake NYSSHP nore
like the ESSH program to get NYSSHP to work
like ESSH in a couple of different ways.

So I'lIl paint the picture for you
first. | amfromthe Supportive Housing
Net work of New York. W're a nenbership
organi zation with 200 nenbers that are
nonprofits around the state that do a variety
of different supportive housing.

There's about 58,000 units of
supportive housing in New York. Not enough
The state is doing a great job working on it
with this new program hal fway through
t owards 20,000 units of supportive housing.

NYSSHP al so touches 20,000 units of
supportive housing in a nuch different way.
NYSSHP i s funded as | ow as $2700 per person
per year, whereas ESSH starts at $25, 000, so
it's 10 times as large. A couple of other
differences to note are that NYSSHP primarily

focuses on services -- it's alnost totally a
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servi ces program -- whereas ESSH does both
services and operating. That's really kind
of a state-of-the-art new nodel that the
state created, and it gives a lot nore
resources to the ongoing operation and
supports of supportive housing buil di ngs.

So it's conplicated by the fact that
NYSSHP works in a lot of different ways al
around the state. So we dug deeply and we
| ooked at, you know, what is going on. And
of the 20,000 units, about half of themare
in New York City, alittle bit nore than
half. And it is a statew de program But
9,000 of the 20,000, NYSSHP is the only
services funding available. And, you know,
that really neans that that 2700 per person
is all that's going to services, which is
real ly chall engi ng.

Then we dug a little bit deeper as we
were doing the conparison with ESSH , and we
saw that 7,000 units -- wow, that was fast --
7,000 units are rental -- lacking rental
assi st ance.

So our ask, in a nutshell, is
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$32 mllion to start a programto nake this
conversion and start a five-year plan to do
so.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Great. Thank you
very rmuch

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

MS. SANDOVAL REQUENA: Good afternoon,
conmmttee chairs and nenbers of the State
Legi slature. Thank you for holding this
heari ng and for sticking around and for the
opportunity to testify on behal f of
New Desti ny Housi ng

My name is Gabriela Sandoval Requena,
and | amthe director of policy and
comuni cations at New Destiny. For those of
you who may not be famliar with New Desti ny,
our mssionis really to end the double
trauma of abuse and honel essness anong
donestic violence survivors. And we do this
by devel opi ng supportive housing for
survivors, and shelter, assisting those who
are fleeing abuse to obtain subsidies and
find housing, and advocating for nore

resources.
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We are also a co-convenor of the
Fam |y Honel essness Coalition and a nmenber of
t he Supportive Housi ng Network of New York

So why do we do this work? Because
one in three New Yorkers across the state
wi || experience abuse by an intinmate partner
intheir lifetime, and access to safe and
af f ordabl e housing will determ ne whet her
t hey | eave their abuser, survive, and rebuild
their |ives.

We submtted extended witten
testinmony, so I'd like to use this tine to
really focus on our nunber-one priority.
That's to protect survivors in the first
generation of supportive housing -- that's
the New York State Supportive Housing
Program al so known as NYSSHP

We are asking that you help us ensure
that once our famlies nove into housing that
t hey can access the supportive services they
need to heal and the security they need to
feel safe in their hones. Currently, NYSSHP
only covers 25 percent of what's needed to

provi de 24-hour security and deliver the
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services that the survivors and the children
deserve

New Destiny opened its first NYSSHP
building in 2008, and we're still operating
with service rates of |ess than $4, 000 per
famly per year. That's conpared to the
$25, 000 that the newer program ESSHI
provi des. Additionally, ESSH also includes
an automatic 2 percent escalator in each
contract. So really the disparity between
the two programs is truly indefensible.

Li ke the other 120 nonprofits
participating in NYSSHP across the state, we
are forced to constantly fundrai se from
private donors to try to bridge the shortfal
and pay our staff a |ivable wage and provide

benefits. But it's inpossible, really, to

make up the difference, and it's not really a

sustai nabl e solution. Qur staff and our
tenants really deserve better.

The supportive housing comunity
proposes a five-year, phased-in approach to
reach parity over -- between the two

progranms, and for this year we're requesting
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only 32 mllion. Additionally, we support
Senat or Persaud's proposed |legislation to

i ncrease cash assistance and the | egislation
to raise the shelter allowance.

We al so urge nenbers of the conmttee
to double the Governor's investnents in
flexi ble funding for survivors of donestic
violence to $10 nmillion. That's in the
Public Protection section of our proposal.

Thank you so rmuch for your tinme.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

REVEREND FLECK: Hello. M nane is
Reverend Paul Fleck, and | serve as the
executive director of Inmgration Law &
Justice New York. We're located in Manhattan
and on Long Island in Hicksville.

| want to start by asking, have any of
you ever been heckled at a press conference?
| see a few nods out there.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI : Today.

(Laughter.)

REVEREND FLECK: Yeah. Today, there
you go.

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: That was just ne
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abusi ng you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Onh, sorry.

(Laughter.)

REVEREND FLECK: No, when we were
unrolling, with the New York State Council of
Churches and the Interfaith Center of
New Yor k, the Covenant for Newest New Yorkers
we received a heckling by one individual out
in the cromd. And they said, "Wat about ny
comunity? \Wat about ne?"

And being a | oad of pastors, we had to
respond pastorally and say, "This isn't a
guestion of either/or. W agree that you
should be entitled to a right to shelter. W
agree that you should be entitled to
af f ordabl e housing. W agree that you should
be entitled to stable education. W agree
with all those things, as well as healthcare
for all."

And a conversation ensued, and we were
under the inpression we changed a heart and a
mnd at that tine.

But that's -- that's the core of the

covenant rolled out by the Interfaith Center
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of New York and the New York State Council of
Churches, is that we shouldn't have to nake a
choi ce between providing these things to
New Yor kers who have been here for years as
opposed to our newest New Yorkers who've just
shown up.

Anot her thing that the covenant
contains is a call for transparency and
accountability. W saw that here today in
t he hearing where Assenbl yman Ra and his
col | eague were just hearing for the first
time how the $1 billion had been all ocated
and spent, and 325 mllion, in fact, had been
spent in New York City.

And now we have 2.4 billion allocated
in the budget. And I'lIl have to confess |I'm
in the immgration |egal services business,
and | don't know how that noney is going to
be spent.

So | think there is a need for
transparency and accountability and how t hat
nmoney is going to be spent. W need to know.
|, for one -- again, being in the immgration

| egal services industry -- would hope that it
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woul d go towards the Access to Representation
Act, which would provide full representation
to individuals in deportation proceedi ngs.

Evi dence shows that people who have
representation are 10 tinmes nore likely to
win their case than sonmeone who does not.
That's real value. That's contributing to
famlies, it's contributing to the economc
wel | - bei ng of our newest New Yorkers.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

M5. MELODIA: Hi. Can you guys hear

me?

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI :  Yes.

M5. MELODIA: Okay. M nane's
Lauren Melodia. |'man econom st at the

Center for New York City Affairs at
The New School. Thank you for the
opportunity to testify.

|"mgoing to bring us back to
childcare. W've heard a | ot about the
m smat ch bet ween supply and demand in the

chil dcare sector resulting froma
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| ongstanding crisis of low earnings in the
sector. And | want to highlight the unique
features of the industry and policies
contributing to this.

So with the exception of high-incone
househol ds, nobst New Yorkers can't afford the
true cost of care. And as a result,
chil dcare prograns charge parents what they
can afford to pay, not what it costs to
provi de care.

This flawed market is then codified in
New York's Child Care Assistance Program
voucher rei nbursenent nethodol ogy, the
mar ket -rat e net hodol ogy. It constrains
provi ders fromoffering conpetitive wages to
their workers, and it exploits home-based
provi ders who |'ve found in 2021 earned a
medi an $10. 61 per hour in New York City,
while the city's m ni mum wage was $15.

W' ve heard many workers have | eft the
i ndustry for higher wages el sewhere, and |
want to give an exanple of what's going on
there. In 2021, the nedi an wage of people

with a high school diplom was $18.50 per
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hour in New York City, which was $5 nore per

hour than a center-based chil dcare worker was
earni ng, and 80 percent of those people have

a high school diplom or nore.

So I"'mhere to ask the State
Legislature to do two things this session.
First, pass legislation to devel op an
alternative cost-estimtion nmethodol ogy for
t he voucher program one that includes
conpetitive wages. This is going to require
a multiyear federal approval process and a
| ot of planning for howto actually fund it
for the long term

And so that's why we need you to do a
second thing, which many peopl e have
nmenti oned today, and that is to expand the
Wor kf or ce Conpensati on Fund included in |ast
year's budget and make it a permanent feature
of the State Budget until a new nethodol ogy
has been inplenented. The Workforce
Conmpensati on Fund nust be sufficient to solve
t he problem

Last year's fund distributed bonuses

that were appreciated, but were too small to
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actual |y address the underlying | abor narket
issues. |'ve estimated that a $12, 500 wage
subsi dy per worker would actually do the job
by incentivizing people to continue working
in the industry and stabilizing the supply of
chil dcare.

For exanple, it would increase the
medi an pay of hone-based providers to
$18. 79 per hour -- still |ower than what they
shoul d be paid, but at |east ending the
subm ni rum wage that they're earning today.

And, lastly, | want to say that the
state is capable of investing in this
adequat el y-si zed permanent Wor kf or ce
Conmpensation Fund this year. A report
publ i shed by my col |l eagues just this nonth
shows that the state has anpl e budget
reserves, including $13.3 billion for
econom ¢ uncertainties. | think this
warrants use of it.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Al right. Thank
you very much

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
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Senators? No, you don't?

kay, | do. My |?

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI : Pl ease.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

Thank you, all. | want to go back to
t he supportive housing two folks.

So sonme of the confusion that | think
happens frequently with | egislators and when
we're just discussing these issues at hone is
the fact that there are multiple categories
of supportive housing in lots of different
contracts, city and state, the old contracts,
the new contracts -- you two know exactly
what |'mtal kinng about -- whether we shoul d
be prioritizing nore for specific
subcat egori es of people who are in the
honel ess system or com ng out of the prison
systemor, or, or. Right?

Does sonebody actually have sort of --
or could you prepare a chart show ng these
categories and the paynent differences?
Because sone of the things that have al ways

shocked nme is if you were willing to go into
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supportive housing contracts earlier in our
lives, you're getting paid at one |level, and
it barely ever noves, and it does not adjust
at all. And then if you're -- if you cane in
as a building or an organi zation later, you
m ght start out at twi ce the reinbursenent
rate.

And | don't think we all understand
this well enough when we are negotiating for
better and nore supportive housing -- because
that's where | would be, in the better and
nore supportive housing. | think it's the
nost effective nodel we have cone up with to
address issues for large nunbers of adults
who are honel ess but al so have speci al needs.

So do you think sonebody coul d
actually provide a chart? You' re shaking
your heads |i ke you know exactly what |'m
sayi ng.

MR, PIASECKI: | do, if ny -- and I'm
not sure ny mc is working, but let ne --

t here we go.
CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: There you go.
REVEREND FLECK: So it turns out we're
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actually working on a big report, which we're
calling "The State of Supportive Housing,"
that is in process. But | think we can give
you t hose details.

But you're exactly right. It's al
different rates at different tines. Not nuch
if any of it is funded at the rate that is
real ly needed, given all the changes that
have occurred that a | ot of people have
tal ked about today.

Wor kforce is an issue, obviously,
across the map. Wirkforce is particularly an
issue with NYSSHP. And like |I said, you
know, there's all sorts of different |evels.

The great thing about NYSSHP is there
is a kind of -- it can touch any disability
group as long as you have the overlay of
proximty to homel essness. And then there
are all the other silos that require teasing
out .

So yeah, we could prepare sonething
for you, Senator.

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: | just feel I|ike

both the city and the state, even though we
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never are where we should be on the tine that
it takes to build nore, on the anount of
noney we're actually providing and keepi ng up
with the problem-- | think half of us don't
ever understand what the actual universe

| ooks |ike out there, because it is so
radically different for so nmany different

cat egori es.

And | know if | was running one of
your agencies, the nunber of contracts |
woul d have to try to bal ance and conbi ne
woul d send nme off a cliff somewhere

MR PIASECKI: W used to think we
were very smart by cobbling together al
t hese different resources, and now, you
know - -

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: It's not working
t hat way.

Anyway, ny tinme is up. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Do you have a
Senat e question?

CHAl RWOVMAN KRUEGER: |s there a Senate
guestion? Oh, Senator Mirray.

SENATOR MURRAY: Hi. Thank you.
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A qui ck question, so -- and |
apol ogize, | didn't -- didn't catch your nane
on the end.

MS. MELODI A:  Lauren. Lauren Mel odia.

SENATOR MURRAY: Lauren, yes, okay.

Lauren, | agree with you conpletely
that we need to nmake permanent -- we need to
i ncrease the wages of childcare workers and
everything to retain the workforce. W need
to do that.

W had a discussion -- and 1'd like to
get your opinion on this. W had a
roundt abl e di scussi on about that very
subject -- well, childcare in general and the
different crises we're facing: availability,
affordability, and of course the workforce.
And we had cone up with an idea, what if --
and |'ve heard the term"glorified
babysitters,” which | think is a terrible
term but it's how kind of the childcare
wor kers are | ooked at soneti nes.

Are there classes or could there be
cl asses at community coll eges or sonmething to

certify -- in other words, get themnore into
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nore training, where they're getting into
early chil dhood devel opnent and thi ngs of
this nature, so they're not so-called
glorified babysitters but they' re offering
much, nuch nore? Which in turn could demand
a higher salary by the childcare providers
maybe asking for a bit nore because of the
hi gher quality.

| nmean, do you see where |I'm going
with this? Wat are your thoughts on that?

M5. MELODIA: | do see where you're
going. And | guess I'll nake two points to
it.

One is that we already do have plenty
of training. Licensed and registered
progranms in the state are required to do
extensive training regularly. W have the
CDA program which is an accredited program
t hat people can get this special degree to
prove that they are specialized in early care
and educati on.

The problemis the wages never neet
t hose expectations. And so what | was trying

to say earlier is that you can have a high
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school diploma in New York City and get 18.50
an hour, and you can have nore than that
working in childcare and be maki ng $5, you
know, | ess per hour.

So | think that the only way we're
going to incentivize nore people getting
trained -- and plenty of people have CDAs and
bachel or' s degrees and nmaster's degrees in
this industry -- is to actually develop a
conprehensi ve wor kforce career |adder. You
know, really think this through on a regional
| evel -- occupations, you know. And it has
to go along with -- with wage increases in
the sane way that we see in the Departnent of
Educati on.

The last thing I'll say is that this
is a very unique industry, and that's why
using a market to determne price is
absolutely the wong way to go. And that is
because you can choose to see if your famly
can afford childcare that you pay for out of
t he hone.

But people often rely on rental and,

you know, unpaid care wi thin the househol d.
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So that -- the reality of that, which we want
people to continue to have that choice, puts
downward pressure on wages in this industry.
And that's why we need to nake sure that we
have sone -- a wage floor across the sector.

SENATOR MURRAY: Thank you very rmuch
Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Do you have any Assenbly?

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI :  No.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECGER:  Senator Cl eare.

SENATOR CLEARE: It's just a conment,
but -- and | appreciate your answer to that
| ast question.

But, you know, childcare really is
chil dren being safe, children being cared
for, fed, in a safe environnent. And there's
value to that as it is. You know, there's
val ue just based on it.

O course | agree there should be a
pathway to a greater career. But being a
not her and having to |look for childcare, |
wanted ny children to be safe and taken care

of. That was the nost inportant thing. |If
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you could teach them sonething else, that's
great too. But really the main thing is
that. And I think we have to value that, is
what I'mtrying to say.

There's a value to that that people
kind of mss and just disregard people who do
that kind of work, that they're putting their
heart and soul into this. Most childcare
providers | know, these are their children,
the way they do the job. | know the rea
peopl e who do it. And ny nother cared -- did
a different kind of honme -- she did hone
care. But there were children in that famly
who renmined in touch with nmy nother
t hroughout their adulthood. This is how
close -- it's just not a sinple thing.

So | think that we just as a society
don't value childcare the way we should. And
the sane thing with seniors. The sane thing
You know, the people who care for our
seniors, we say these are the inportant
things to us, but we don't val ue these people
like that. And they should be paid, because

it's sonething that you can't even put a
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price on.

M5. MELODI A:  Absol utely.

And just in terns of childcare, you
know, we need to boost wages in health and
human services across the board. But it's
really inportant to note that one of the nost
popul ar nodel s of childcare is a small
busi ness that |largely wonen of color run in
their hones, famly childcare. MW nomran
one for 20 years.

These peopl e don't have enpl oynent
contracts, so they don't have any protection
or guarantee that they're going to get a
wage. And that's why we really need the
state to intervene and establish a
cost-estimation nodel that is paying people
and guaranteeing that there's a wage fl oor.

SENATOR CLEARE: | agree.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: kay. Thank you,
Senat or .

| think I"'mgoing to close here. So
Ms. Melodia, | hear you -- this is just a
comment. But thank you for your testinony.

And | hear you about the pernmanent Workforce
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Conmpensation Fund, | hear you about the
$12,500. And there is a bill, | believe from
nmy col | eague Assenbl ynmenber C ark, to deal
with the market-rate issue, which | agree is
a really big problem

So we'll ook to push that. So thank
you for your testinony.

Reverend Fl eck, so thank you for your
testinmony, sir. M understanding is just
generally, the 2.4 billion for immgration
services -- the intent of the state is to try
to be as flexible as possible. However --
with that noney to the city. But however,
you raise a real point about the cost benefit
of putting that noney into |egal
representati on.

So we will take that back for
consideration in the one-house. Thank you.

And then to nmy two supportive housing
friends, let me start with this. Wat the
hel | happened to nmy New Yor k/ New Yor k
agreenment s?

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: And why do we
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stop fundi ng NYSSHP? When did -- I'mlike,
|"mokay with ESSH if that's the way to go,
but this is a -- you know, we've been doing
this -- supportive housing is a New York
invention. |It's one of the greatest things
we provide. It solves problens, it saves
nmoney, it hel ps people.

How did we get out of the business --
except for the Cuonp-de Blasio fight -- of
New Yor k/ New Yor k?

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: | don't think
this governor and this nayor hate each ot her,
so why are we not havi ng anot her
New Yor k/ New Yor k agreenent ?

MR. PIASECKI: It's a great point.

(Pause; laughter.)

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: | think they want
us to do that.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: So you want us
to -- oh, okay. O course. O course.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: So in the absence

of any nore New Yor k/ New York agreenents, you
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think this is the way to go. And it's --

MR, PI ASECKI: Well, you know, |
think, charitably, we're hal fway through the
ESSH program They've been on target at the
state level. The New York City response, or
the New York 1515 is also noving forward. W
have some recommendations to make that better
for New York City.

Long-run is there's not enough
supportive housing to neet the demand.
There's 100, 000 people that are honel ess in
New York State at any given point in tinme.

So, you know, the whole point of -- | think
enbedded in our nessage is we don't want to

| ose the existing resources when -- just to
build new And that's -- that's the trick of
t he trade.

A lot of the existing resources are in
a position where they need rehab, they can't
be rehabbed even though the state has funding
for it because they don't have -- they
can't -- they don't pencil-out on the
operating side on the NYSSHP program

So we want to preserve the existing,
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we want to build new, and then we want to
double it, which is your idea.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Ckay.

Under st ood.

And Ms. Requena, with the | ast couple
of seconds, is it ny understanding that nost
of the supportive housing for DV survivors is
NYSSHP as opposed to ESSHH? O is it a
conbi nati on?

M5. SANDOVAL REQUENA: No, it's a
conbi nation, | would say. Right?

MR PI ASECKI :  Yes.

MS. SANDOVAL REQUENA:  Yes.

But | would just second what Steve
just pointed out, that as we think of newer
programs, right, we should not forget about
the existing prograns that are really
under funded, and the buildings. | nean, they
al so need that capital inprovenent push as
wel | that cannot be addressed because the
social part is just not being invested on.

MR. PI ASECKI: They have -- prograns
that are NYSSHP, they don't have the safety

nmeasures that the new prograns can put in the
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building fromthe get-go, and that's a rea
concern. Safety is a big issue.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Very nuch
appr eci at ed.

We do have one nore Assenbl ynenber,
Assenbl ynmenber Si non, please. To close.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SI MON:  Thank you.

Your -- the nobst recent conversation
just made me want to ask a question about
supportive housing. One of the things we' ve
tal ked about a lot is we need nore housing --
how do we produce it, how rmuch of it is
af fordabl e, where is it, and the crying need
for supportive housing.

But who is building supportive
housi ng, and how do we fund that? Do you
have, you know, suggestions for that? It
seens to me not-for-profit housing devel opers
are better able to do that, but they don't
have enough access to capital. |'mjust
curious what your experience is and what your
thinking is along the lines of how do we
actually do it. Because we desperately need

todo it.
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MR PIASECKI: | think it's all hands
on deck. W prefer, for supportive housing,
that our nonprofit nenbers are doing the
devel opnment. We find that works better
across the board.

There is a huge need for affordable
housi ng, which supportive housing is a subset
of that, of course. And it's really
i nportant that when the Housing Conmmttee
neets, that the focus is on the | owest ELI
tenancy, zero to 30 percent of area nedi an

income. That's where the gap is. And if you

can fill that gap, that hel ps

Much -- many resources
i ncome bands, and it's not as
real |y addressing the poverty

af f or dabl e housi ng.

everyone.
go to higher
effective at

i ssues around

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SI MON:  Thank you.

MR PIASECKI: It doesn't trickle
down.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SI MON:  Real | y?

(Laughter.)

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Anyone el se?

SENATOR PERSAUD:  Just

one qui ck
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guesti on.

CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: One qui ck
guestion. Roxanne Persaud.

SENATOR PERSAUD: Thank you.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  You' re wel cone.

SENATCR PERSAUD: So this is for
Reverend Fl eck

W're trying to figure your catchnent
area, if you could tell us the catchnent
ar eas.

REVEREND FLECK: Sure. W' re unique
in that we do clinics in different boroughs.
So we're in Bed-Stuy, Brooklyn, we're in
Fl ushi ng, Queens, and we are in Chinat own,
Manhattan. W do clinics on Saturdays and
Monday ni ghts, and then we take those cases
back to the office.

And then of course we have an office
in Hcksville too, where two attorneys are
working as well, and do a clinic out there on
Long Island. So that's --

SENATOR PERSAUD: Can anyone request a
clinic, for you to cone to a community and

offer clinics?
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REVEREND FLECK: 1'd | ove that, as
Il ong as we had the attorneys and the |egal
staff. We're kind of nmaxed out as far as
that goes. And that's part of what the
Access to Representation Act is talking
about, is increasing the capacity of
providers like ours to hire and train | egal
staff. But that's the nmajor inpedinent right
now.

SENATOR PERSAUD: How many att orneys
do you have on staff?

REVEREND FLECK: Four.

SENATOR PERSAUD: | just wanted to
clarify that, because we did see it's four.

Ckay. Thank you very much

REVEREND FLECK: Sure.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: kay. Thank you,
everybody, for your testinony.

PANELI STS: Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much. Appreciate it.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: And Panel |
pl ease cone down. Fromthe New York State

Coal i ti on Agai nst Donestic Viol ence,
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Joan Gerhardt. From Bivona Child Advocacy
Center, Dr. Daniele Lynman-Torres. Hunger
Sol utions New York, Krista Hesdorfer. And
Hudson Val |l ey National Center for

Vet eran Reintegration, Gavin Walters.

Good afternoon -- good eveni ng.

(O f the record.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Ms. GCerhardt,
pl ease.

M5. CERHARDT: Hi.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: The floor is
yours. How are you?

M5. GERHARDT: Thank you.

| "' mJoan CGerhardt, director of public
policy and advocacy at the New York State
Coal i ti on Agai nst Donestic Violence. Thank
you for having ne.

NYSCADV i s recogni zed by the federal
government as the information clearinghouse
and resource center on donmestic violence for
New York State. The CGovernor proposed
several initiatives in the Executive Budget
ai med at addressing donmestic viol ence.

Most inportantly, the Governor is
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seeking to ensure the continuity of critical
victimservices in |ight of devastating VOCA
cuts. She's proposed 34.4 mllion to
mai ntai n existing state contracts with these
safety-net providers, and 100 mllion nore to
support the next round of contracts. |It's
critical for the Assenbly and Senate to
accept this funding.

As you know, VOCA, or the Victins of
Crinme Act funding enabl es thousands of
New Yorkers to access services including
shel ter, advocacy, |egal assistance,
counseling and nore. New York's federal VOCA
grant has declined 121.6 mllion in the past
five years, losing 61 percent of its val ue.
Prior state earnmarks covered only 23 percent
of the shortfall. The Governor's funding is
critical to ensure these providers remin
avai | abl e and accessi ble for New Yorkers
experiencing crine.

We al so urge the Legislature to accept
$5 mllion to provide direct cash assistance
to donmestic violence survivors; the

$21 mllion increase in the ATL budget for
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OCFS for adult protective and DV services;
and 24.5 mllion to fully inplenment |ast
year's Fair Access to Victim Conpensation
| egislation. Al great news for DV
survivors.

What is | acking, however, is inclusion
of DV advocates into the Governor's proposed
COLA. New York relies on experienced,
trai ned DV advocates to provide |ifesaving
and |ife-changi ng support to New Yorkers
experienci ng DV, nost of whom are wonen who
live in marginalized or underserved
conmunities. These services conme at a cost,
and it's incunbent on the state to val ue the
work and fully pay for it.

But once again, these essenti al
wor kers have been excluded fromreceiving the
Governor's proposed COLA. This has had a
di sastrous inpact on the ability of DV
progranms to retain and recruit enployees. DV
and sexual assault prograns have | ost 1200
enpl oyees between 2020 and 21.

Nuner ous positions still remain vacant

across this sector, which is why so nany
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victinms are unable to get the services they
need. In fact, on one day in 2022 nearly a
t housand peopl e sought services from DV
agencies and were told they couldn't get the
hel p they were requesting.

We urge the Legislature to incorporate
Senat or Persaud's and Assenbl ynmenber Hevesi's
bill, S7793 and A8437, into the State Budget
to right this wong and include DV advocat es
in this year's COLA

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you very
much.

DR LYMAN- TORRES: Thank you,

Chai rpersons and all nenbers of the
Legislature, for the opportunity to address
you t oday.

My nanme is Daniele Lyman-Torres, and
|"mthe president and CEO of the Bivona Child
Advocacy Center |ocated in Rochester,

New York, and serving a seven-county region.

Chil d advocacy centers, or CACs, were
codified into law in 2006 by the New York
State Legislature to serve child victins of

severe physical and/or sexual abuse. Today,
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we state that there are 47 CACs across the
state. However, outside of New York City
only a few CACs are nore than one staff and
can provide the multidisciplinary
one- st op-shop nodel, due to a |l ack of
infrastructure and funding in snaller

counti es.

Thi s pushes services into the |arge
regional centers, |ike the one in Rochester
represent.

At the time of the legislation in
2006, only $5.8 mllion was allocated to the
Ofice of Children and Fam |y Services to
i npl enent that policy. | have no idea what
happened to those funds then or, nearly
20 years later, nowthe 5.2 million that's
i ncluded in the budget, but | can tell you
it's not being equitably distributed to
centers doing the work.

The CAC | represent serves nore than
60 percent of the children seen in the entire
western part of the state, which includes
Buf fal o and Rochester and all the surrounding

counties -- and our allocation for CAC
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services is less than $270,000 a year, and
our operating budget is 4 mllion.

The preval ence of child abuse, severe
child abuse, and fatalities has not
decreased. One in seven children wll
experience abuse. |In Monroe County alone, in
the past three years our child fatalities
nore than doubl ed. Seventy percent of the
chil dren we see who have been severely abused
are under the age of 12.

The trauma is off the charts, and
here's how it's showi ng up. Children who
experience child abuse are nine tines nore
likely to be involved in crimnal activity.
About 30 percent of abused children wll
| ater abuse their own children. And
two-thirds, two-thirds of the people
recei vi ng substance abuse di sorder treatnent
wer e abused as children.

Qur asks: Increase the funding to
chil d advocacy centers to at | east
10 million -- heck, today, after what [|'ve
heard, | want to double that -- and

specifically to ensure that the funding
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actual ly reaches the Rochester region.

| urge the regionalization of child
advocacy centers to ensure that even the
exi sting resources can be better aligned to
serve both rural and urban areas.

Presi dent Cbana once said that a
budget is nmore than just a series of nunbers
on a page, it is an enbodi ment of our val ues.
If we can't value our children, then we don't
val ue our future. How we treat our children
is how we want our world to be. W nust do
better, New York

Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

MS. HESDORFER: (Good afternoon, and
t hank you for the opportunity to testify.

| "' m here representing Hunger Sol utions
New York, a statew de nonprofit dedicated to
al l eviating hunger for all New Yorkers by
maxi m zi ng federal nutrition assistance
prograns including SNAP, WC, school neals,
and other child nutrition prograns.

SNAP is our nation's |argest
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anti - hunger program providing nmonthly food
benefits to nore than 2.8 mllion
New Yor kers. For over 35 years, through a
contract with OTDA, we've worked to maxim ze
SNAP by providing statew de outreach and
application assistance through the Nutrition
Qutreach and Education Program or NOEP

Recogni zing the need to fully I everage
federal resources to alleviate hunger in
New York, |ast year the Legislature allocated
an additional $2 mllion in NCEP funding,
whi ch enabl ed us to add 22 new SNAP assi sters
in high-need and rural counties. Last year,
NOEP reached nore than 163, 000 New Yorkers.
Thank you for your advocacy for expanded NCEP
services in |ast year's budget.

Unfortunately, that added funding is
not sustained in the 2025 Executive Budget
proposal, and if it's not restored in the
final budget, NOEP will be forced to scale
back when hunger is on the rise. Services
woul d be reduced in Al bany, Broone, Erie,

Monr oe, Nassau, Ni agara, Onondaga, Rockl and

and Suffolk counties and in every borough of
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New York City. Chemung, Cortland, Essex,
Franklin, Lewi s, Schuyler, and Washi ngton
counties would lose all |ocal NCEP services.

To sustain SNAP outreach and
assi stance through NCEP statew de, we ask the
Legislature to restore $2 mllion in NOEP
funding, for a total of $5.503 mllion. This
nodest investnent brings an outsized return.
Every dollar the state invests in SNAP
outreach is federally matched. And because
NOEP draws down additional federal SNAP
benefits into New York, the program provides
an estimated 27-fold return on investnment to
t he state.

In addition to ensuring all eligible
New Yor kers can connect with SNAP, we al so
support efforts to make benefit amounts nore
adequate to neet famlies' food needs, and
encourage the Legislature to provide a state
suppl ement to increase the m ni num SNAP
benefit to $100 per nonth.

And | rmust nention anot her
far-reachi ng anti-hunger program outside of

t he Human Servi ces budget, but of great
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i mportance to your work. New York must fully
fund universal school nmeals. W are deeply
grateful for last year's historic expansion
of free school neals, but with nore than
320,000 students left behind, it's tine to

cl ose the gap and fully fund heal thy school
nmeal s for all New York kids.

We urge the Legislature to adopt the
vital anti-hunger proposals to support food
security for all New Yorkers.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

MR. WALTERS: Hell o, everybody. Thank
you for having ne here, and thank you for
bei ng here.

| think so nuch of what everybody says
just correlates with one another because we
are all advocates seeking so many things
Wi thin our respective conmunities.

My name is Gavin Walters. | ama
United States Air Force veteran. | received
nmy citizenship after | served in the

Air Force. | think that was the greatest
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t hi ng, because that's one of the reasons why
| went and served in the Air Force.

Now | actually facilitate the
Dwer Programin U ster County and
Greene County. | have coll eagues back here
that facilitate Essex, dinton, Franklin, and
Schoharie counties. So there's a |ot of
Dwyer progranms, you know, around.

And the reason why |I'mhere is
because -- | don't have to explain about the
Dwyer progranms, because you guys were able to
elevate it to be a 62-county program which
is really amazing. But the issue with that
is that so many of the prograns, the funding
that they receive doesn't equate to the job
that they even do day to day.

And for nme, that can speak about
U ster County, | can say that from our
enactment in 2020, we have not had a veteran
commt suicide that had went through our
program And | could bet you so nany ot her
programs can say that any veteran that
entered their programreceived care, service,

and resources.
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W | ook at the fam lies, because we
say nine times out of 10 the famlies are the
ones that is reaching out to us. So we know
that part of helping the individuals is
connecting the famly, caregivers, everybody,
to be a part of the process of hel ping that
i ndi vi dual .

And sonething | always say is that,
you know, sonetinmes we're not around, but we
can educate the individuals that's around
that veteran, and that's one of the biggest
things that we want to help wth.

And unfortunately, with the funding
that so nmany of these prograns receive -- and
| did the math, and | did so nmuch things to
break it down, but it doesn't equate to the
things that we're seeing day to day.

| work with a veteran that literally
had to deci de between com ng to our program
for nmental health or getting gas to trave
about 25 mles to our program And that is
just a shame where he has to deci de between
mental health and getting food. So we bring

food to him
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So food insecurity, housing issues, so
many di fferent things that are affecting our
mlitary conmunity is just prevalent, it's
out there. W see this day to day.

There's prograns that have, you know,
full-time staff, part-tinme individuals,
vol unteers. You know, we're a community of
i ndi vidual s reaching out to the community to
just get help for the things that we see day
to day. And our ask is just $2.1 mllion.
And that's -- and | actually equated that to
the 10 years of inflation that -- fromthe
program s enactnment, from 2012 to this, for
| ast year.

So we're not asking for big, but just
sonmet hing small enough that we coul d say,
okay, we could get a $25 gift card to
sonmebody just to get gas or decide to get
f ood.

Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbly or Senate?

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI :  Senat e.

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Ckay. Qur Senate
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chair of Veterans Affairs.

SENATOR SCARCELLA- SPANTON:  If | can
get the mc on

Thank you so much, Gavin, for your
testinmony. | know how inportant this funding
iS.

Coul d you piece the picture for nme of
how much of an increase would be benefici al
for each of those 62 counties so you can
continue to do that great work and fill in
t he gaps where you can? Because, you know,
mlitary famlies are incredibly inportant to
nme. | wanted to thank you for also bringing
that up, that often it's the famlies that
wi Il connect the veterans to those services.

W all want to nmake sure that the
programis funded appropriately so it can be
efficient and effective. So tell ne, you
know, do you have a nunber in mnd of what
woul d be hel pful with regard to inflation?

MR WALTERS: Yes. So | can send this
to everybody as well, but for every county --
for exanple, | use the exanple of Genesee,

Ol eans, and Wom ng, which has 185 split
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t hrough three counties, and if you -- if they
do a 4 percent COLA, that's |like $2,000. And
t hen we keep breaking that down, $2, 000
basically is like 80 gift cards for sonebody.
And if you say 80 gift cards to just split
across veterans for a whole year, that -- one
thing is that they don't equate veterans that
we usually see, which is other than

honor abl e/ di shonor abl e veterans. So those
nunbers that we see that they count as -- |
just got this data -- 580,000 veterans they
say is in New York, and that's in 2022, in

t he Census.

So if people are saying 700,000, so
many di fferent nunbers for veterans -- 1|iKke,
what is the real nunmber in our -- you know,
in New York State? So those nunbers -- you
know, | don't really go by those nunbers, but
t he nunbers that we see day to day is
di shonor abl e veterans, other than honorabl e
veterans, veterans that, you know, are stil
| ooking to get the discharge status that they
deserve

And a lot of -- so that's why | say
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t hose nunbers, you know -- | laugh at that,
sonetimes, when | hear |ike sonebody say
like, Oh, 22 veterans, but then they reduce
t he nunber -- like, no, are you counting the
ones that's dishonorable, that's actually
commtted suicide, because you didn't equate
themto be a part of the process of going
into VA?

| tell folks we're better than the VA
we do so nuch better work, because we are
there day to day, reaching out to veterans at
2 o'clock in the nmorning, going with themto
the hospitals. Because we know that if they
call the VA, nobody's going to cone | eave
their office and get themfromtheir house.
And that's the stuff that we do.

And I'"msorry that the nunbers just --

SENATOR SCARCELLA- SPANTON:  No, no,
listen -- we want to be supportive. | think
t he Dwyer Program has proven to work. Nobody
under stands veterans like a fellow veteran.
So we're going to do everything we can to try
to get you there, and we'll be putting in a

| etter on your behalf to request that.
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MR. WALTERS: Thank you.

SENATOR SCARCELLA- SPANTON:  Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y?

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI : Assenbl ynmenber
Jean-Pierre.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN JEAN-PIERRE: | f | can
get this on. |It's supposed to turn green,
right?

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI :  Yeah.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN JEAN- PI ERRE:  First, |
want to say thank you. This -- you know,
it's unfortunate that this is the | ast panel
but this is one of like -- this is the best
panel , because this is the
boot s-on-t he-ground panel. W' ve been
talking with agencies, but this is the boots
on the ground. This is the folks who are
connected to all of the popul ati ons, whet her
it be famlies, whether it be our veterans.

So | just want to say, first, thank
you for what you do for very -- with so
little.

But ny question is to Gavin. First,




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

501

to thank you, which you -- you're working
with nmy office constantly on how we can hel p
make the Dwyer Program work. The

Dwyer Program doesn't cone out of the
Veterans Committee, it conmes out of the
Mental Health Commttee. But we actually
support and wite a support letter in
conjunction with the chair to make sure that
we can make the Dwyer Program effective
across the 62 counti es.

But if we can get nore realistic
nunbers, as the Senator nentioned, and if you
can send that docunent, that would be very
hel pful to see how we can make -- how
effective we can make the Dwyer Program And
how much dollars is needed to nake it
ef fective across the 62 counties, that would
be hel pful.

MR. WALTERS: Yeah, absolutely.

And | can definitely say a | ot of
progranms will benefit fromtransportation,
whether it's having a vehicle -- which we
know i s one of the hardest thing for rural

counties. And | know from ny col | eagues over
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here, you know, hel ping an individual that's
in a situation and needs to get sonepl ace,
transportation can be the hardest thing for
them And trying to decide if they have to
go to a doctor or, you know, just speak to
sonmebody, and the communi cation as well.

So there's so many things that is
there that could -- you know, that wll
definitely hel p when the funding actually do
come to the -- especially the rural counties,
just having a vehicle that can transport
sonmebody to a hospital or to get groceries.
Because that's a good way to connect with
sonmebody within that car, just talking to
t hem and just having a natural conversation.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN JEAN- Pl ERRE
Absolutely. It's not just the rural
counties. You know, | represent Long Island.
So when | think of areas in ny area where
there's no bus transportation or it ends at
6: 30, how do we -- you know, how do we get
veterans fromone place -- but the question
have for you now is, what mechani sns do you

use for outreach in the comunities?
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MR WALTERS: Resource fairs. W
actually -- | facilitate the Dwyer Coalition,
so we actually ask the Reserves and
Nat i onal Guard representatives to actually be
in our neetings. W go to the Reserves base
and we go to -- we actually go to places and
talk to individuals. W go to -- have
events. W do so nuch resource fairs. And
we actually put up things in the conmunity
t hat everybody can see us.

Unfortunately, we don't have the
resources to actually create a website right
now, but that is our goal, to create a
website, so if anybody wants to | ook at --
for the Dwer Program or get connected to
resources, like ny colleagues right here,
they could just go straight there and get it.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN JEAN- PI ERRE:  Ckay,

t hank you.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECER:  Senat or Cor del
Cl eare.

SENATOR CLEARE: Thank you.

So | have questions for two of you.

Number one, we talked a little bit
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today about a registry for veterans to know
where services exist. And even inside of
New York City, you know, mny veteran
constituents -- | don't necessarily always
know all the places that they can go.

Maybe -- is that something that your
organi zation is working on or --

MR. WALTERS: Yeah, we actually are.
Qur goal is to actually, with the help of the
New Yor k Heal t h Foundati on, who's bringing
out -- who's going to have a needs assessnent
com ng out later this year for veterans,
they're going to hopefully be assisting us
with actually creating a website specifically
focused and geared towards havi ng resources,
whether it's |ooking for the VSA, |ooking for
housi ng services, |ooking for a food pantry.
Whatever it is, they click on the website,
they know it's veteran-friendly -- anything
and everything is going to be right there.

SENATOR CLEARE: (kay, thank you.

And also for Bivona, | think it is. |
know you are tal ki ng about services outside

of New York City, but it is certainly -- it's
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still a concern of ours anyway. And | don't
know, have you spoken to your Senator?
Because she's fierce.

DR. LYMAN- TORRES: Onh, yeah.

SENATOR CLEARE: Ckay. Al right. So
| will talk to her to see how we can all be
hel pful wi th making sure that those services
get to people |ike you who are on the ground,
who are servicing our famlies.

DR LYMAN- TORRES: Thank you.

SENATOR CLEARE: Thank you. Thank you
all for your testinony.

(Overtal k.)

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Don't go anywhere
yet.

SENATOR CLEARE: No, |'mjust saying
thank you all. This is the last tine you'l
probably hear fromnme. But thank you.

Hunger is inportant, and our donestic
vi ol ence. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI : Assenbl ynmenber
Ra.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA: Thank you.

And t hank you all for your patience
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and sticking it out to be here and tal k about
very inportant issues.

M. Walters, thank you for your
service. And to your colleagues in the
audi ence, thank you for your service as well.

You know, we had a little bit of a
di scussion earlier, as |I'msure you saw,
about whet her you woul d consider this a cut
in this budget. But putting that aside --
and | think we all are very confident that on
both sides of the aisle, in both houses, the
advocacy is going to be there to put that
noney back into the budget. But | wll say
that what that neans is getting back to where
we started.

We don't want to be just where we
started, right? W want to be above that, so
that you can do the types of things you're
tal ki ng about and reach out to additional
veterans and do the types of things -- |ike
you said, transportation, things to nmake sure
t hat peopl e can take advantage of your
servi ces.

So can you el aborate on just what sone
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addi tional funding would do in terns of being
able to serve additional veterans? Because
clearly your track record is great in hel ping
t hose individuals in your conmunity.

MR. WALTERS: Yeah, absolutely.

One thing that we will do actually is
hel p veterans that are in housing crisis.
Wth the little bit of funding our county
recei ves, about $185,000 -- which doesn't
equate to nothing these days -- but we're
able to at least allocate funds to help a
veteran if they come with a famly or by
t hensel ves and put themin a hotel until we
can get them connected to Support Services
for Veteran Famlies, which is SSVF, or any
ot her resources that could help the
i ndi vi dual .

Wiere if a dishonorable veteran can't,
you know, receive those type of services,
that we'll reach out to DSS and ot her
services to say, Hey, what can you do to help
this person? O help soneone with, like |
said, gift cards, which is the biggest thing.

Food insecurity is a major thing that's
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happeni ng for our county. You know, | focus
on the rural area, because our county is
pretty rural.

So we say food insecurity,
transportation. GCh, nan. And events,
different activities where -- a |ot of
progranms actually will do things where they
will take veterans out and do fishing. O
they'Il pay -- every programallows a veteran
to go there for free. So any veteran that
goes there with their famly -- we paid for
events at a baseball gane. W brought
everybody out, but al so they brought vendors
of -- everybody in the conmunity saying, Hey,
listen, if you have housing issues, if you
have to get connected to food, if you want to
get connected to resources, they're there.

Because we know veterans are not going
to go look for anything. |[If you have a
| uncheon and you have resource fairs around
there, a veteran will actually get sonme food
and then go talk to sonebody |like at the
Red Cross. They'll say, Ckay, what do you

have for ne? O they' Il speak to soneone
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fromthe Ofice of Aging or speak to soneone
that they'll never call. Because you'll say,
Hey, call this person because they can help
you -- nope, they're too prideful. They're
not going to call anybody.

And that's where peer-to-peer has been
t he absol ute best thing for veterans, because
so many of us will help a veteran get to the
VSA or the departnent or -- or the VA
because the veterans don't |ike the VA

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.

CHAl R{MOVAN KRUEGER:  |' m sorry.

Senat or Roxanne Per saud.

SENATCR PERSAUD: | want to thank al
of you for your testinony today.

You know, Gavin, | hear you. W heard
earlier the comm ssioner -- and | think
everyone was pushing, saying you should have
nmor e fundi ng, you should have nore funding.
So |'"m pleased that you are telling us you
definitely need nore funding.

And, you know, we will fight with our

col | eagues to ensure that you do receive the
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funding that you shoul d, because no veteran
shoul d be left wthout.

So thank you for -- thank you for your
service, and thank you for your advocacy on
behal f of all veterans.

MR. WALTERS: Thank you.

SENATOR PERSAUD: Ms. Gerhardt, you
know, we work together; | want to just thank
you again for everything that you' re doing.
And | want us to continue to talk about the
needs of the DV popul ation.

| think we have gotten lax in getting
our messagi ng across. W have a nunber of
DV victinms in shelter that -- they seemto
just be languishing. Wat can we do to
assi st then? Wat supports can we offer
t henf?

There are too many of themin our
shelters right now, and we're not having the

conversations that we were having |ike a few

years ago. You know, we -- it was always DV,
Dv, DV, DV -- but now we seem not to be
havi ng that conversation. | think we need to

get back to that, to show themthat they're
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not forgotten.

So if you can work with us, you know,
just to get that nmessage across --

M5. GERHARDT: Absol utely.

SENATOR PERSAUD: -- and get the
services into the places where they should
be.

And, Doctor, you know, we hear you.

W were having the conversation about, you
know, the needs -- the child poverty needs in
your area. We would like to work with -- you
know, with our coll eagues to nake sure that
you get the resources you nheed.

But we want to al so nmake sure that
you're part of the conversation for that
child poverty funding that's comng to your
comunity. It's not -- it's great that the
noney is going there. But if the people who
are in the know are not part of the
conversation on the disbursenment of the
noney, then we'll have sone probl ens.

So | want to make sure that you are at
that tabl e when the decisions are being nmade

on how that noney is going to be funded.
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DR LYMAN- TORRES: Thank you.
SENATOR PERSAUD: Thank you.
(To Ms. Hesdorfer.) And I'mcarrying

your NCEP letter pushing for that $2 mllion,

and | hope ny colleagues will continue to
support it.
But all in all, I thank all of you for

your advocacy. Thank you.
ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Thank you.
Assenbl ynenber Mankt el ow.
ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  Thank you,

Joan, really quick. D d you say that
you | ost 1200 enpl oyees? Did | hear you say
that really?

MS. GERHARDT: Twel ve hundred
positions across domestic viol ence and sexual
assault prograns.

ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOWN  Were t hey
filled positions and you | ost that many?

M5. CERHARDT: Yeah.

ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  \Where did they
go?

M5. GERHARDT: Well, that's a good
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guesti on.

| think because they're not paid as
wel | as other human service workers, they
left to go to other positions within their
unbrell a organi zation, let's say. They m ght
have gone to a governnment position -- you
know, maybe to the |ocal departnent of soci al
services. They m ght have gone to academ a.

So | can't say where each one of them
went, but the fact is we know there are so
many of those positions that are still
vacant. Because with the inability to pay
Iiving wages for donmestic violence advocates,
we just can't recruit people into those
positions. They'd rather go to healthcare.

ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  Thank you.

Gavi n, thank you for your service.

| was wondering, how nuch interaction
have you had wi th Conm ssi oner DeCohen?

MR WALTERS: On a -- well, | sat on
t he Governor's workgroup, so I'mable to
speak to her representative. Yeah. Yeah.

ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  As we' ve

tal ked about earlier -- earlier today we
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t al ked about her budget and the | oss of sone
funding there. W really need to nake sure
we have that funding. Because | did speak
with one of the mlitary -- or, I'msorry,
our veterans up above earlier, and he tal ked
about transportation, as you did.

Transportation for himand his office
to go out, is that sonething we should be
| ooking for funding for as well, as far as
you see it?

MR. WALTERS: Yeah, absolutely. |
think transportation's one of the biggest
things. And for a |ot of conversations that
|"ve had with many of ny surroundi ng
counties' colleagues, transportation is one
of those things that we've al ways been
sayi ng, How can we address it? \Were we
tal ked about Uber and Lyft and how do we
mtigate noney to themto help transport
veterans from U ster County or Orange County
down to the city, where they have to get a --
go to an appoi ntnent. \Were sonetines,

unfortunately, our peers, you know, don't get

pai d enough to travel all that way down there
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and then conme back where it mght be like

8 o' clock at night, when they |eave 8 o' clock
in the norning. And that's a typical day for
j ust one person getting transported, because
it can be a difficult time for that person.

ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  Yeah, |'mvery
famliar with it. Fromny district, ny
county, Syracuse is an hour away.

But | do know that transportation --
who the driver is, that peer-to-peer support
with that driver, is so crucial to our
vet er ans.

And you have our full support. W
will work on keeping that funding and see

what we can do to find the funding for all of

you.

And Dani el e, thank you for com ng
dowmn. | was at your place a few weeks ago.
Qut standi ng work, and we'll be there for you
as wel | .

DR. LYMAN- TORRES: Thank you.
ASSEMBLYMAN MANKTELOW  Thank you.
Thank you, Chair.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
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Senator Mirray.

SENATOR MURRAY: Yes, closing it out.

M. Walters, thank you so nuch for
your service. And to you gentlenen as well,
thank you. And to all of you for your
advocacy. Wat you do is incredible.

Ms. Gerhardt, I'd like to -- a couple
of questions. One, in ny district we have a
wor kf orce housing project that is starting
now, sone affordabl e housing, but they' ve set
aside -- the developer is setting aside a
certain portion for domestic violence
victins, for themto start over.

| s that something unique? O is --
are you seeing that, or is that collaboration
happeni ng around the state?

M5. CERHARDT: We've seen that in some
comunities. | wouldn't say all

You know, | think the chall enge of
finding affordable and safe housing is a
critical need for donestic violence
survivors. So | think that's wonderful that,
you know, there's going to be a project in

your comunity. But we certainly need nore.
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SENATOR MURRAY: (Okay. Now, anot her
issue -- I've talked to some folks -- I'm
very involved with animals and rescue and al
of this. And one of the big things that
we've run into is that you have donestic
violence victins with pets or aninmls at
home, and they won't |eave without them And
| can understand that a hundred percent.
They're afraid if they do, they're putting
them i n danger.

But we have a shortage with shelters
that allow animals. Are we -- is there any
funding in the budget to inprove on that or
to help with that problen? O are you --
again, are you seeing that there are nore
shelters that are allowing this? Were are
we with that?

M5. GERHARDT: Well, there's a
terrific new shelter in New York City which
opened specifically for survivors who have
pets.

But | will say it is an obligation of
every donestic violence programin the state

to make accommodati ons for an individual's
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pet, whether at that shelter or at another

comuni ty- based organi zation in that

comunity.
So it's -- it is very troubling that
abusers will, you know, take abusive behavi or

out on animals as well as humans. W
recogni ze that. It is heartbreaking that
survivors have to | eave their home and | eave
so many things behind, including their pets.

So if they are able to take those pets
with them we want to nmake every
accommodation for themto do that.

SENATOR MURRAY: | know space is a
probl em sonetines as far as at the shelter.
O even an issue where you have to have a
separate building, if you' re doing it
on-site, or finding space at different
shelters or rescues. So that's a chall enge
as wel | .

M5. GERHARDT: Absolutely. But we try
to make it work.

SENATOR MURRAY: Yes. Yes. And |
appreci ate what you do, | really do.

And finally, Ms. Hesdorfer, I'mwth
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you 1000 percent on Healthy Meals for All.

It's a shane we did not get that conpletely

done last year. |'mpraying we do this year.

But thank you all for what you do.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: Geat. Thank
you.

And I"'mgoing to use ny |ast three
mnutes, | will close us out.

A coupl e of coments. First,

M. Walters and the gentlenen in the
audi ence, | want to say thank you for your
service and your advocacy. | learned a | ot
today, and | very much appreciate it.

Ms. Hesdorfer, nothing aggravates ne
nore than leaving a federal match on the
table. So | appreciate your advocacy with
that. And | agree with a lot of ny
col | eagues about uni versal school neals.

And then I'm going to ask questions,
if I can, for Ms. Lyman-Torres and
Ms. Gerhardt. The thing that bothers nme the
nost, if | can, is the generational problem
that we're not addressing. W just never,

ever break these cycles.
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So, Ms. Lyman-Torres, let me ask you a
guestion. It was ny understanding that there
was going to be a shortfall of federal nopney
for the CACs. Can you speak to that? And
how -- how did the Governor do it in her
Executive Budget to address that? And what
el se can we do to nake sure you're whol e?

Because | think I have a limted
under st andi ng of just how dangerous it is for
children and famlies w thout your services.

DR. LYMAN- TORRES: That was the VOCA
funding at the federal level. And the
Governor's current budget has a stopgap in
there of $120 million to kind of protect from
that, and that's very inportant.

Al'l the child advocacy centers do
receive VOCA funding. [It's about 10 percent
of our funding. So it is -- it's really
i mportant.

But we need to continue to press
beyond that. Wen | talk about the child
fatalities and the conplexity of the -- you
know, the trauma that's intergenerational, it

really has to do with the fact that we aren't
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systematically dealing with prevention. W
are not dealing with high-risk parents who
are in other systens, whether it be DV,
nment al heal th, substance use. They are being
di scharged with children w thout case
managemnent, wi thout supports for those
children, and the child fatality rates
continue to go up

| stepped out of this session today
because we had another child lost in
Rochest er today --

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: | heard.

DR. LYMAN- TORRES: -- another baby,
fromthe same systenmi c kinds of issues.

And this -- it really is urgent that
we put noney into prevention.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: | very nuch
appreciate it. Thank you for your testinony.

And Ms. Gerhardt, I'mgoing to close
with you. And I don't know if you caught the
initial portion for the OCFS conm ssioner,
but | started by asking about the donestic
vi ol ence workforce. Particularly because

it's egregious that we have not increased pay
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for the workforce since 2008, is that -- is
nmy nunber right?

MS. GERHARDT: That's when the human
service group was put together. And we were
not included in 2008. So we've never
recei ved a COLA, period.

ASSEMBLYMAN HEVESI: That's
out r ageous.

And the fact that you' ve | ost
1200 positions -- that is devastating,
absol utely devastating. And | think it's
i ncunbent upon us elected officials to make
you and all of our providers a top priority
in this budget.

We cannot allow not only the services
not to be delivered to children and famlies
but, again, we've got to break the cycle
SO -- as Ms. Torres said, we've got to nake
sure this doesn't get taught from one
generation to the other.

And |'ve run out of ny own tine. So
think that is the end of this hearing.

| would |ike to thank all of ny

col | eagues and this panel, and particularly
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Senat or Krueger for her |eadership and
allowing nme to participate today.

Thank you.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: | "'mvery gl ad you
parti ci pat ed.

And t onorrow peopl e can cone back --
9:30, the sane room the topic is education.

So thank you all very nuch for your
testinmony tonight and for staying with us.

PANELI STS: Thank you.

(Wher eupon, the budget hearing
concluded at 5:45 p.m)




